
 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
Joint REGULAR Meeting 

Wednesday, November 28, 2018 * 6:00 p.m.  
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California  

 City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the 
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.  

 Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new 
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records 
Request. 

 
 

PUBLIC MEETING ACCESS  
The Regular Meetings of the City Council are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays and are broadcast live on 
Cox Communications-Channel 19, Spectrum(Time Warner)-Channel 24, and AT&T U-verse Channel 99. The video 
taping of meetings are maintained as a permanent record and contain a detailed account of the proceedings. 
Council meeting tapings are archived and available for viewing on the City’s Public Meetings webpage. 
 

AGENDA MATERIALS  
A full City Council agenda packet including relative supporting documentation is available at City Hall, the Solana 
Beach Branch Library (157 Stevens Ave.), La Colonia Community Ctr., and online www.cityofsolanabeach.org. 
Agendas are posted at least 72 hours prior to regular meetings and at least 24 hours prior to special meetings. 
Writings and documents regarding an agenda of an open session meeting, received after the official posting, and 
distributed to the Council for consideration, will be made available for public viewing at the same time. In addition, 
items received at least 1 hour 30 minutes prior to the meeting time will be uploaded online with the courtesy agenda 
posting. Materials submitted for consideration should be forwarded to the City Clerk’s department 858-720-2400. The 
designated location for viewing of hard copies is the City Clerk’s office at City Hall during normal business hours.  
 

SPEAKERS 
Please submit a speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting, or the announcement of the 
Section/Item, to provide public comment. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip for 
each agenda section: Oral Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports. 
 

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE NEEDED 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons with a disability may request an agenda in 
appropriate alternative formats as required by Section 202. Any person with a disability who requires a modification 
or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the City Clerk’s office (858) 720-
2400 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and pagers to silent mode 
and engage in conversations outside the Council Chambers. 

 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
David A. Zito, Mayor 

Jewel Edson, Deputy Mayor Judy Hegenauer, Councilmember 
Lesa Heebner, Councilmember Peter Zahn, Councilmember 

 
Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

 
 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 

PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY  

https://solanabeach.12milesout.com/#page=1
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F0F1200D-21C6-4A88-8AE1-0BC07C1A81A7&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.sdcl.org/locations_SB.html
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
mailto:clerkadmin@cosb.org?subject=City%20Clerk%20Notice%20of%20Special%20Services%20Needed
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=C38A5C14-3D2B-4356-BFEA-A35854AC6D45&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/


 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 2 of 8 

 
SPEAKERS: 
Please submit your speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting or the announcement of 
the Item. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip for Oral 
Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports. 
 
READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:  
Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an 
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title, 
further reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance 
or resolution shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by 
the council of such reading. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT: (when applicable) 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE: 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   
 
 
PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial  
None at the posting of this agenda 

 
 
PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.  
None at the posting of this agenda 
 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  
This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City 
Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a 
speaker slip (located on the back table) to the City Clerk.  Comments relating to items on this 
evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action 
shall be taken by the City Council on public comment items.  Council may refer items to the City 
Manager for placement on a future agenda.  The maximum time allotted for each presentation is 
THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais. 
 

 
COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY: 
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not 
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.  

 
 
 
 



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 3 of 8 

 
 
A. CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Action Items) (A.1. – A.4.) 
Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless 
pulled for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of 
concern by submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the 
Consent Calendar is addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of 
the Council will be trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the 
public will be discussed immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
 
A.1.  Minutes of the City Council.   

 
Recommendation: That the City Council  

 
1. Approve the Minutes of the City Council Meetings held May 30, 2018, June 13, 

2018, June 26, 2018 and June 27, 2018. 
Item A.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 
A.2.   Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 
1.  Ratify the list of demands for October 20 - November 09, 2018.  

Item A.2. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 
A.3.    General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Changes. (File 0330-30) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 General 
Fund Adopted Budget. 

Item A.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 4 of 8 

A.4. Public Safety 800 MHz Radios Purchase. (File 0260-40) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council 
 
1.  Adopt Resolution 2018-144: 

a. Authorizing the purchase of 800 MHz radios from Motorola Solutions in the 
amount of $146,696. 

b. Authorizing an appropriation of $12,243 to the Grant Revenue and the Marine 
Safety Equipment expenditure accounts in the Public Safety Special Revenue 
Fund for the use of SHSP funds. 

c. Authorizing an appropriation of $11,274 to the CSA-17 Revenue and the Fire 
Equipment expenditure accounts in the Public Safety Special Revenue Fund 
for the use of CSA -17 funds. 

d. Authorizing an appropriation of $3,483 and $18,096 in the Marine Safety and 
Fire Equipment expenditure accounts, respectively, in the Asset Replacement 
Fund. 

e. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2018/19 Adopted Budget 
accordingly.  

Item A.4. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 

 

C. STAFF REPORTS:  (C.1.) 
Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk. 
 
C.1. Solana Energy Alliance Activities and Operational Results Quarterly Report 

(File 1010-40) 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council  
 
1. Receive and file report on Solana Energy Alliance (SEA) Activities and 

Operations and provide comment and/or direction; and 
 
2. Consider adoption of Resolution 2018-150 authorizing the City Manager to enter 

into a Professional Services Agreement with Tosdal Law Firm for legal services 
not to exceed $75,000 in support of SEA. 

Item C.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
NOTE: The City Council shall not begin a new agenda item after 10:30 p.m. unless 
approved by a unanimous vote of all members present. (SBMC 2.04.070) 
 
B.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:  (B.1. – B.3.) 
This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific 
issue as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back 
table) to the City Clerk.  After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral 
testimony, the City Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be 
supported by substantial evidence in the record.  An applicant or designee(s) for a private 
development/business project, for which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen 
minutes to speak, as per SBMC 2.04.210.  A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to 
respond to those who speak in opposition.  All other speakers have three minutes each. Please be 
aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.  



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 5 of 8 

 

 
B.1.  Public Hearing: Fire Mitigation, Park and Public Use Facilities Development 

Impact Fees. (File 0390-23) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 
1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council 

Disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing. 
 
2. Introduce Ordinance 492 establishing the Fire Mitigation Impact Fee (FMIF). 
 
3. Introduce Ordinance 493 establishing the Park Development Impact Fee 

(PDIF). 
 
4. Introduce Ordinance 496 establishing the Public Use Facilities Impact Fee 

(PUFIF). 
 
5. Adopt Resolution 2018-147: 

a. Accepting the 2018 Development Impact Fee (DIFs) Nexus and Calculation 
Report (Nexus Report) dated July 2, 2018. 

b. Establishing the FMIF and determining that the FMIF shall be paid based 
upon the use of land set forth in the Summary of Development Impact Fee 
Rates table included in the Nexus Report, dated July 2, 2018.   

c. Establishing that the FMIF shall become effective upon the effective date of 
Ordinance 492. 

d. Establishing the PDIF and determining that the PDIF shall be paid based 
upon the use of land set forth in the Summary of Development Impact Fee 
Rates table included in the Nexus Report, dated July 2, 2018.   

e. Establishing that the PDIF shall become effective upon the effective date of 
Ordinance 493. 

f. Establishing the PUFIF and determining that the PUFIF shall be paid based 
upon the use of land set forth in the Summary of Development Impact Fee 
Rates table included in the Nexus Report, dated July 2, 2018. 

g. Establishing that the PUFIF shall become effective upon the effective date of 
Ordinance 496. 

Item B.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
B.2.  Public Hearing: City’s Schedule of Fees Update Fiscal Year 2018-19. (File 0390-

23) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 
1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing; Report Council 

Disclosures; Receive Public Testimony; Close the Public Hearing.  
2. Adopt Resolution 2018-148 updating the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Schedule of 

Fees.  
Item B.2. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 6 of 8 

 
B.3.  Public Hearing: Mixed Use Development Northwest Corner of Highway 101 

and Dahlia Drive, Applicant: Zephyr Partners, Case 17-14-08. (File 0610-60) 
 

The proposed DRP (Development Review Permit) condition amendments meet the 
minimum objective requirements under the Solana Beach Municipal Code and may 
be found consistent with the Highway 101 Specific Plan and General Plan. 
Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council: 

 
1. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the proposed DRP 

amendments, adopt Resolution 2018-146 for the Solana 101 project. 
Item B.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
C. STAFF REPORTS:  (C.2. - C.6.) 
Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk. 
 
C.2. Adopt (2nd Reading) Ordinance 489 – Mayoral Duties. (File 0410-90) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 
1. Adopt Ordinance 489 adding Section 2.04.015 to the Solana Beach Municipal 

Code which would codify Mayoral duties as set out in state law.  
Item C.2. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
C.3. Introduce (1st Reading) Ordinance 495 – Shared Mobility Program. (File 0840-40) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 
1. Introduce Ordinance 495 establishing the guidelines for the Shared Mobility Plot 

Program. 
Item C.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
C.4. Introduce (1st Reading) Ordinance 497 – Sidewalk Vending. (File 0390-45)  

 
Recommendation: That the City Council  

 
1. Find this action is exempt from the CEQA pursuant to Sections 15061(b)(3) and 

15378(b)(5) of the CEQA Guidelines because this action will not result in a 
physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly; and 

 
2. Introduce Ordinance 497 adding Chapter 4.52 “Sidewalk Vending” to the 

Solana Beach Municipal Code. 
Item C.4. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 7 of 8 

C.5. Citizen’s Initiative Petition for a Proposed Ordinance Regarding Commercial 
Cannabis (Marijuana) Retailers in Non-Residential Zones and 
Deliveries/Cultivation in All Zones. (File 0430-15) 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council  

 
1. Provide direction on Council’s course of action regarding the eligible petition: 

a. Adopt Ordinance 494 relating to use of the Commercial Cannabis 
(Marijuana) Retailers in Non-Residential Zones and Deliveries/Cultivation in 
All Zones Retailers in Non-Residential Zones and Deliveries/Cultivation in All 
Zones; or 

b. Submit Ordinance 494 to the voters at the next general election, November 
3, 2020; or 

c. Order a report and return within 30 days to a City Council meeting.  
Item C.5. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
C.6. Adopt (2nd Reading) Ordinance 491 adding Subsection 17.72.110(E) to the 

Solana Beach Municipal Code to Exempt City and City-Sponsored Projects. 
(File 0600-95) 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Ordinance 491 adding subsection 17.72.110(E) to make the expiration and 
extension requirements of section 17.72.110 inapplicable to City and City-
sponsored projects. 

Item C.6. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
WORK PLAN COMMENTS:  
Adopted June 13, 2018 
 
COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:  
GC: Article 2.3.  Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be 
limited to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief 
reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the 
legislative body.  
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees 
 

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council) 
a. City Selection Committee (meets twice a year) Primary-Edson, Alternate-Zito 
b. County Service Area 17: Primary-Zahn, Alternate-Hegenauer 
c. Escondido Creek Watershed Authority: Zahn /Staff (no alternate). 
d. League of Ca. Cities’ San Diego County Executive Committee: Primary-Edson, Alternate-

Heebner and any subcommittees. 
e. League of Ca. Cities’ Local Legislative Committee: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Heebner 
f. League of Ca. Cities’ Coastal Cities Issues Group (CCIG): Primary-Edson, Alternate-Heebner 
g. North County Dispatch JPA: Primary-Heebner, Alternate-Edson   
h. North County Transit District: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Heebner 
i. Regional Solid Waste Association (RSWA): Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Heebner  



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                    November 28, 2018                   Page 8 of 8 

j. SANDAG: Primary-Zito, Alternate-Edson, 2nd Alternate-Heebner, and any subcommittees.  
k. SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Committee: Primary-Zito, Alternate-Hegenauer 
l. San Dieguito River Valley JPA: Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Heebner  
m. San Elijo JPA: Primary-Zito, Primary-Zahn, Alternate-City Manager 
n. 22nd Agricultural District Association Community Relations Committee: Primary-Heebner, 

Alternate-Edson  
STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees) 
a. Business Liaison Committee – Zito, Edson.  
b. Fire Dept. Management Governance & Organizational Evaluation – Edson, Hegenauer  
c. Highway 101 / Cedros Ave. Development Committee – Edson, Heebner 
d. I-5 Construction Committee – Zito, Edson. 
e. Parks and Recreation Committee – Zito. Edson  
f. Public Arts Committee – Hegenauer, Heebner 
g. School Relations Committee – Hegenauer, Zahn  
h. Solana Beach-Del Mar Relations Committee – Zito, Heebner 

 
ADJOURN: 
 
 

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting is December 12, 2018 
Always refer the City’s website Event Calendar for updated schedule and special meetings 

or contact City Hall.   858-720-2400    www.cityofsolanabeach.org      
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

§ 
 
I, Angela Ivey, City Clerk of the City of Solana Beach, do hereby certify that this Agenda for the November 
28, 2018 Council Meeting was called by City Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, 
Public Financing Authority, and the Housing Authority of the City of Solana Beach, California, was provided 
and posted on November 20, 2018 at 5:50 p.m. on the City Bulletin Board at the entrance to the City Council 
Chambers. Said meeting is held at 6:00 p.m., November 28, 2018, in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 635 
S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California.       

Angela Ivey, City Clerk  
City of Solana Beach, CA  

 
 
UPCOMING CITIZEN CITY COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 
Regularly Scheduled, or Special Meetings that have been announced, as of this Agenda Posting. Dates, times, 
locations are all subject to change. See the Citizen Commission’s Agenda webpages or the City’s Events 
Calendar for updates.  
o Budget & Finance Commission 

Thursday, December 20, 2018, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall) 
o Climate Action Commission 

Wednesday, December 19, 2018, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall) 
o Parks & Recreation Commission  
       Thursday, November 29, 2018, 8:30 a.m. (Fletcher Cove Park) 
o Public Arts Commission 

Tuesday, November 27, 2018, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall) 
o View Assessment Commission 

Tuesday, December 18, 2018, 6:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 

http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=3302C065-5C8A-43D2-88C2-F03C61D1DA2A&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=FA26EC83-8D1C-4941-A3B2-20CA81EDCDDE&Type=B_EV
































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018 Development Impact Fee (DIFs) 
Nexus and Calculation Report 

for the City of Solana Beach 

 
 
 
 

1519 E Chapman Ave, Ste C 
Fullerton, CA 92831 

(714) 992-9020 
www.revenuecost.com 



Page | ii 

 
 
 
 
 
July 2, 2018 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 

via Greg Wade, City Manger 
City of Solana Beach 
635 South Highway 101 
Solana Beach, CA 92075 
 
RE: 2018 Development Impact Fee (DIFs) Nexus and Calculation Report 
 
Honorable Mayor, Council and City Manager Wade: 
 
This 2018 Development Impact Fee (DIFs) Nexus and Calculation Report provides the City 
of Solana Beach with the analysis and findings necessary to adopt impact fees that are 
imposed on new development. Revenue & Cost Specialists was contracted to provide the 
technical expertise in identifying the capital additions necessary to preserve the existing 
Levels of Service currently offered to and enjoyed by the existing community from the 
diminution of those existing LOS due to the addition of new residential and business 
development in Solana Beach and calculate the DIFs necessary to fund those required 
projects. 
 
The proposed DIF will update the City’s existing Fire Mitigation Fee and Park Impact Fee, 
which were adopted in the 1980s. The DIFs contained herein calculate only the costs of 
infrastructure required to support services provided only by the City of Solana Beach.  They 
do not include development impact fees imposed by the school district(s) or any other 
government agency. 
 
Chapter 1 discusses the background and introduction of the report. Chapter 2 summarizes 
the demographics and findings. Solana Beach has 15.5% of total private acres that is 
potentially developable land. At build-out, when all such land is developed, $6.5 million in 
public safety and quality of life capital improvement projects are needed to support the new 
development. Schedule 2.1 at the end of Chapter 2 proposes development impact fees which 
will recover such costs. Chapters 3-5 provides comprehensive analysis of the City’s three 
development impact fees. 
 
  



Page | iii 

The following management worked with RCS to generate the information and data critical in 
developing the DIF. Without their historical knowledge and willingness to provide the best 
data available, this Report could not have been completed to the degree of accuracy that it 
has. 
 

Marie Berkuti – Finance Manager/Treasurer 
Joseph Lim – Community Development Director 
Mike Stein – Encinitas Fire Chief 

   
The Development Impact Fee Calculation and Nexus Report is submitted for your review and 
consideration. RCS is prepared to assist in increasing the Council's and community's 
understanding of this very significant part of the City's revenue structure. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
SCOTT THORPE      CHU THAI 
Senior Vice President     Vice President 
  

 
  



Page | iv 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
2018-19 DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE (DIFS) 

NEXUS AND CALCULATION REPORT 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
Chapter 1 – Introduction and Background ................................................................................................. 1 

Chapter 2 – Demographics and Findings ..................................................................................................... 9 

Proposed Development Impact Fees/Summary Schedules ......................................................18 

Chapter 3 – Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment ..................................19 

Chapter 4 – Park Land Acquisition and Park Infrastructure Improvements ...............................29 

Chapter 5 – Dedicated Public Use Facilities ..............................................................................................37 

Appendix A – Park Construction Average Cost .......................................................................................42 

 
 

Commonly Used Report Acronyms and AKA’s 
 
Development Impact Fee ............................................................................................................................... DIF 
Government Code §66000 ........................................................................ Mitigation Fee Act or AB1600 
Geographical Information System .............................................................................................................. GIS 
Level of Service ................................................................................................................................................. LOS 
State Department of Finance ...................................................................................................................... DOF 
Thousand Square Feet .................................................................................................................................... KSF 



 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 1 

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Solana Beach (City) retained Revenue and Cost Specialists (RCS) to review and 
update its Fire Mitigation Fee and Park Impact Fee. In the late 1980’s, a Fire Mitigation Fee 
was adopted by the City to fund the expansion of fire protection facilities and equipment 
(Ord. 64 § 1, 1988; 1987 Code § 10.08.040). The City’s Park Impact Fee was originally 
established by San Diego County and the City carried forward the fee when it incorporated 
in 1986. Since then, both fees have not been adjusted for changing demographics, 
infrastructure needs or inflation. 
 
RCS worked with City staff on data collection, projection, analysis and discussion for 
updating the DIFs. Information was gathered from the General Plan; California Fire 
Incident Reporting System; and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Solana Beach’s 
General Plan was last updated in 2015 and provides pertinent information about the City’s 
land use inventory, projections, goals and policies. The General Plan identified the different 
land use categories, as each one has its own level of impact on the community. Goals and 
policies within the General Plan were used to determine the City’s growth potential and 
level of service. RCS also look at zoning maps, master plans, master facilities plans and 
capital improvement plans in calculating the impact fees. 
 
RCS held meetings with department representatives to identify the current and future 
needs of the City. City staff provided supporting documents to reaffirm land use data, 
determine current level of services, project future fire service needs and costs, and identify 
open space needs. 
 
This Development Impact Fee Calculation and Nexus Report (Report) has reasonably 
determined that new development within the City will require an additional $1,077,236 in 
fire suppression/rescue facilities, vehicles and equipment, $4,981,809 in park acquisition 
and park infrastructure development and $459,729 in dedicated public use facilities. While 
this calculation establishes 100% of the cost mitigation from new development, it is City 
Council policy which adopts and sets the fee amount.  
 

BACKGROUND ON IMPACT FEES 
 
The premise on which impact fees are based is that development should pay for the cost of 
adding the facilities necessary to accommodate its own demands from growth. The cost of 
projects needed to support growth are financed with impact fees based on some 
measurement of a development's impact on future needs.  Impact fees are not intended to 
be used for operational expenses or to pay for capital improvements to eliminate an 
existing deficiency or shortfall. 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 2 

Early water/wastewater fees were called capital recovery or expansion fees, and impact 
fees have also been referred to as system development charges, service availability charges, 
facility fees and exaction fees. This Report will prefer to use impact fees from this point 
forward. Municipal governments throughout the United States have established impact fees 
for sewer, water, solid waste, storm drains, transportation, parks, recreation, general 
government facilities, affordable housing, schools, police and fire. 
 
In California, the Mitigation Fee Act (the “Act”) and applicable law authorize cities to collect 
Development Impact Fees (DIFs) to off-set impacts from a development project. The Act 
allows the city to impose DIFs for the purpose of defraying all or part of the costs of public 
facilities related to a new development. Without such mitigation, the increased demand for 
public facilities resulting from new development would cause the quality of a community’s 
public services to decline. DIFs must have a reasonable relationship to the impact of the 
development project upon public services/facilities. If the City charges more, then such a 
fee may be regarded as a special tax. 
 
Under the Act, cities may impose DIF upon new development for “public facilities.” Such 
facilities are defined as public improvements, public services, and community amenities.  
This rather broad language, however, is restricted by Government Code § 65913.8 which 
states that a DIF “may not include an amount for the maintenance or operation of an 
improvement.”  “Facilities” and “improvements” are also defined elsewhere in the Act to 
include, without limitation, “public buildings” and “[a]ny other capital project identified in 
the capital facilities plan.”  It is important to restate that DIF cannot be used for employee 
salaries, fringe benefits ongoing supplies and services. 
 
The development impact cost calculations within this Report are intended to identify the 
cost of accommodating continued development in such a fashion as to safeguard the 
existing Levels of Service (LOS) currently enjoyed by the City’s existing residents and 
businesses. The development impact cost calculations identified in this report could then 
be formalized into a Development Impact Fee schedule by City Council action. 
 

THE IMPORTANCE OF CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
The Levels of Service (LOS) of any one City infrastructure is based upon (or limited) by the 
capacity of that infrastructure to support the City’s residents or businesses.  The design of 
any municipal project has a finite capacity and thus enjoyment by the citizens and business 
community.  Taken to an extreme, if the City owned but one picnic table or one sports field, 
each would be incapable of meeting the recreational demands of the City’s 13,000 plus 
population.  An adequate and sufficient offering of recreation offerings would be impossible 
without an adequate and sufficient inventory of recreational-based infrastructure. 
 
Good municipal service takes a balance of staff and infrastructure.  However, make no 
mistake about it, the amount of and complexity of any infrastructure defines (in part or all) 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 3 

of that infrastructures Level of Service (LOS).  This makes the one-time DIF financing of any 
City’s infrastructure that much more important.  It takes a balance to accommodate 
development with the inventory of recreational opportunities within the City’s desired 
standard. The importance of having a properly calculated and documented DIF schedule in 
order to accommodate development-related demands cannot be over-stated. 
 

CALCULATION OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
 
In California, State legislation sets certain legal and procedural parameters for the charging 
of these fees.  This legislation was passed as AB1600 by the California Legislature and is 
now codified as California Government Code Sections 66000 through 66009.  This State law 
went into effect on January 1, 1989.   
 
Government Code §66000 requires documentation of projects to be financed by 
Development Impact Fees prior to their levy and collection, and that the monies collected 
actually be committed1 within five years to a project of direct benefit to the development 
which paid the fees.  Many states have such controlling statutes.  Specifically, California 
Government Code §66000 requires the following process: 
 
✓ Delineation of the PURPOSE of the fee. 

 
✓ Determination of the USE of the fee. 

 
✓ Determination of the RELATIONSHIP between the use of the fee and the type of 

development paying the fee. 
 
✓ Determination of the relationship between the NEED for the facility and the type of 

development project. 
 
✓ Determination of the relationship between the AMOUNT of the fee and the COST of 

the portion of the facility attributed to the specific development project. 
 
This Report, with some additions, utilizes the basic methodology consistent with the above 
requirements of Government Code §66000.  The following steps were undertaken in the 
calculation of DIFs for the City: 
 

1. Review the Land use map and determine the existing mix of land uses and amount 
of undeveloped and developed land.  The magnitude of growth and its impacts can 
thus be determined by considering this land use data when planning needed 
infrastructure.  This inventory can be found in Table 2-1 in Chapter 2. 

                                                        
1 Committed does not mean expended.  Council merely need only restate that an amount of impact fee receipts 
are still committed to a particularly identified infrastructure project. 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 4 

2. Define the level of service desired within the General Plan area for each project or 
acquisition identified as necessary.  In most cases this would be the de facto or 
existing standard, or as in the case with Solana Beach, a standard based within the 
City’s General Plan. 

 
3. Identify all additions to the capital facilities or equipment inventory necessary to 

maintain the various identified levels of service in the area and accommodate new 
development, through General Plan buildout. Then, determine the cost of those 
capital additions. 

 
4. Identify a level of responsibility, which is the relative need for the facilities or 

equipment necessary to accommodate "growth" as defined, and as opposed to 
current needs. 

 
5. Distribute the costs identified as a result of development growth on a basis of land 

use.  Costs are distributed between each land use based on their relative use, or 
nexus, of the capital system. 

 

PROPORTIONAL USE 
 
A helpful component of this Report is the proportional analysis of the infrastructure needs 
required to accommodate continued development of the City as compared to the existing 
infrastructure that has been generated through years of taxes and other contributions and 
currently serves the existing community. This proportional analysis is intended to match 
the City's desired level of service of new development, with that of the de-facto, or actual 
level of service provided to the existing community. The inclusion of the proportional 
analysis will assist the City Council in adopting a DIF structure that is equitable to existing 
and future development. 
 
To date, RCS has identified 23 categories of facilities that can be financed by impact fees, 
while there are no doubt municipalities could creatively devise others. Below are what RCS 
identified, and the preferred units of impact. 
 
 Streets and thoroughfare facilities – traffic generation rates 
 Traffic control facilities – traffic generation rates 
 Bridges – traffic generation rates 
 Utility undergrounding – number of meters/service connections 
 Street lighting – traffic generation rates 
 Street trees and median landscaping – traffic generation rates 
 Parks and recreation facilities – population 
 Other Public facilities (city hall, civic center) – acreage 
 Law enforcement facilities, equipment, and training – responses 
 Fire protection facilities, equipment, and training – incidents 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 5 

 Solid-waste collection equipment – waste generation rates 
 Solid-waste disposal facilities – waste generation rates 
 Low- and moderate-income housing – local agency policy 
 Historical preservation and cultural facilities – population 
 Harbors, ports, and airports – modal transportation generated 
 Public art, museums, and cultural resources – population 
 Mass transit facilities and equipment – traffic generation rates 
 Day-care facilities – square footage of commercial/industrial 
 Water treatment and distribution facilities – usage 
 Wastewater collection and treatment facilities – usage 
 Reclaimed water treatment and distribution facilities – usage 
 Storm drainage facilities – runoff coefficient/impervious area 
 Electric generation and distribution facilities – usage 

 
Many agencies have resorted to devising impact fees that have a questionable relationship 
to the impact of growth on needed facilities. The following fees are not impact fees and 
should be questioned if they are characterized as such. 
 
 Ad-Valorem Fees (Based on Value) – Any impact fee that is based on the appraised 

value or estimated construction cost is probably a tax rather than a fee. However, 
the fees (or tax) may be valid due to state or local legislation. The taxes may also 
have been grandfathered or adopted prior to limiting legislation. 

 
 Front Footage Fees – Impact fees based on the lineal footage of property bordering 

on a facility such as a street or sewer line may not be valid. Front footage fees may 
be valid for reimbursement of previous construction but are not appropriate for 
impact fees. 

 
 Involving On-going Operational Costs – Impact fees collected and deposited into the 

general fund or used for operations are questionable. Impact fees that are not tied to 
a capital improvement plan, capital projects list or master facility plan may not be 
valid. 

 
 
 Flat Rates – Uniform, single-value impact fees for all uses (residential and 

commercial/industrial) would seldom be valid for impact fees. 
 
 Illogical Impact Indicator or Factor – Impact fees that are calculated on a factor that 

does not make sense are probably invalid. Traffic- signal impact fees based on 
population or water impact fees based on parcel size (regardless of use) may 
indicate invalid fees. 

 
 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 6 

 Impact-Fee Calculations that Don't Exist – Some communities simply establish 
impact fees based on the average or typical fees charged by adjacent communities. 
Such fees are not based on impact but are solely market-driven decisions that have 
no relationship to needed facilities. 

 
 Curing Existing Shortfall or Condition – Impact fees that are used to correct existing 

infrastructure problems are not valid. That is not to say that a project may not 
benefit both existing and new residents. In the latter case, impact fees should be 
used only in direct proportion to the benefits realized by future growth. 

 
 Monies Not Used for Stated Purposes – Impact fees may be used only for the facility 

and system for which they were imposed, calculated and collected. Impact fees 
collected for one purpose (e.g., traffic signals) should not be used for another 
purpose (e.g., water treatment and distribution). Monies collected for different types 
of impact fees are to be deposited in separate accounts. When the monies are 
needed they may be transferred into the appropriate capital fund. 

 
Impact fees must be proportional to the impact of each development on the need to 
construct additional or expanded facilities. The fees do not have to recover the full cost, but 
if the fees are reduced by a percentage from the full cost, the percentage reduction should 
apply evenly to all types of developments. If the City’s fire station is inadequate in serving 
current demand, the use of fire impact fee can only be used for the expansion of the facility 
to meet future demands. However, the city may adopt policy which commits other funding 
sources to improve current facilities to a higher standard. 
 
Development Impact fees must be used to serve the general area in which such fees were 
collected. Within a city where multiple DIF geographic areas are identified, fees collected 
within one area should serve that area.  Solana Beach’s limited size generally excludes it 
from this requirement. 
 
The method of calculating impact fees should be capable of being reconstructed. If the 
recalculation of the fee cannot reproduce the original fee, the calculation method may be 
flawed. 
 
Since the total development impact fee collected could take more than ten years, it is fair to 
recognize current and future standards may be affected. If, at population build out, the City 
was to collect enough fire impact fees to expand the fire station by 2,000 square feet, it is 
impractical to expand the facility by 200 square feet when only 10% of the impact fees are 
collected. At that time, the population has increased by 10%, and this "temporary 
overcapacity" is considered an inconvenience until enough DIFs have been collected for a 
practical expansion back up to the original standard. 
 
 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 7 

In addition to the land use assumptions contained in the next Chapter of this Report, other 
important assumptions of this study include the following: 
 
Land Acquisition Costs. Land acquisition cost estimates have been developed after 
discussions with City officials over recent acquisitions or current negotiations.  Arguments 
for higher or lower costs can be made; however, the herein contained per acre amounts 
appear to be the most appropriate current figure for the purposes of this study.  Land costs 
make up a significant portion of the park related fees. Solana Beach city staff provided RCS 
with information regarding recent 28,978 square foot land acquisition at a cost of $2.8 
million.  The result is a substantial $96.63 per square foot and indicative of the supreme 
lack of vacant parcels within the City’s limits.  Land costs included in this Report will be a 
derivation of this information. 
 
Financing Costs.  Such costs may be included in the project costs where debt financing was 
required due to the immediacy of the need for the facility or infrastructure to show the full 
costs of such facility or infrastructure and insure that new development also pays its "fair 
share" of these costs.  Financing should only be included for facilities where, based upon 
staff's estimate, the immediacy of need for the facility requires debt financing.  Or in the 
alternative, should financing be entered into on a facility, the impact fees should be 
recalculated to reflect those actual costs.  In such cases, the debt service payments would 
be discounted to today's cost to account for the diminishing value of the dollar and would 
be in keeping with the cost methodology used in this study to show projects in current 
costs.  To consider the face value of bond payments when determining costs, on the other 
hand, would be inaccurate as it would treat the value of a dollar today the same as the value 
of a dollar twenty years from now.  Such an approach would tend to overvalue the costs of 
debt service requirements and therefore cause an agency to overcharge on its DIFs.   
 

ACCOUNTING FOR IMPACT FEES 
 
Once the impact fees have been implemented, there is a need to provide accurate 
accounting or tracking of the fees collected and the use of those fees. California's AB 1600 
requires fees to be expended, or committed, within five years of their collection. 
 
Many impact fees are generally paid before construction begins. The money must be 
accounted for in special interest-bearing accounts, with a separate fund each type of impact 
fee (fire, park, etc.). Cities must provide an annual report on each of the impact fee, showing 
the source and amount of revenues, as well as the improvements financed with the 
revenue. 
 
For the fifth fiscal year following the first deposit into an impact fee fund, and every five 
years thereafter, the city is required to report on the remaining balance of in the fund.  It 
also require that the agency identify the original purpose to which the fee is to be put; 
demonstrate the reasonable relationship between the fee and purpose for which it is 



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 8 

charged; identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing in 
incomplete improvements; and designate the approximate dates on which the funding is 
expected to be deposited into the appropriate account or fund.  In short it is a restatement 
of the reason and purposes the impact fee was adopting in the first place.   
 
Cities should adopt impact fee ordinances which provide a legal basis for establishing the 
fee and all required procedures. The ordinance should include legislative findings 
regarding the fee imposition, types of impact fees necessary in the city, fee calculation 
methodology, benefit districts, updating frequency, spending limits, offsets and credits, and 
appeal process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF 
CHAPTER TEXT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 9 

CHAPTER 2: DEMOGRAPHICS AND IMPACT FEE FINDINGS 

Chapter 2 represents the beginning and end of the DIF calculation process.  It begins with 
an inventory of fully developed, undeveloped and under-developed units and acreage 
within the City and concludes with a summary of recommended DIF schedules with 
detailed infrastructure explanations in the following chapters of this Report. 
 

LAND USE DATABASE 
 
This Report contains an inventory of fully developed, undeveloped and underdeveloped 
land within the City limits of Solana Beach and is based upon the City’s most recent General 
Plan update.  The Undeveloped or under-developed parcels, identified as Potential 
Development, combine to form the base for the distribution of the estimated costs of the 
service-expanding capital projects necessary to accommodate that same anticipated 
development.  Without the expansion projects, the City would be unable to accommodate 
those new development demands for service. Table 2-1, is the resulting inventory of all 
private land uses contained within the current City and are based on the General Plan's 
land use inventory.  
 

Table 2-1 
Detailed Land Use Inventory 

 

 
 

  

City of Solana Beach

Land-Use Database Acres # Units/Sq Ft Acres # Units/Sq Ft Acres # Units/Sq Ft

Detached Dwellings (units) 643.89 3,150 207.31 557 851.20 2,287

Attached Dwellings (units) 359.20 3,464 19.70 223 378.90 4,289

Hotels/Motels (keyed rooms) 2.90 200 0.50 34 3.40 234

Commercial/Service (sq.ft) 138.49 2,706,379 2.71 53,008 141.20 2,759,387

Office/Professional (sq.ft) 27.20 829,382 1.00 30,492 28.20 859,874

Light Industrial (sq.ft) 22.59 688,816 0.41 12,500 23.00 701,316

Public/Institutional Uses (sq. ft) 73.46 2,879,777 0.94 37,000 74.40 2,916,777

Total Dwelling Units 1,003.09 6,614 227.01 780 1,230.10 7,394

Total Lodging Keyed Rooms 2.90 200 0.50 34 3.40 234

Total Business Square Feet 261.74 7,104,354 5.06 133,000 266.80 7,237,354

Existing Development Potential Development Total General Plan Build-out



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 10 

DIF LAND-USE TYPES DEFINITIONS 
 
For the purpose of this Report and DIF calculations, Solana Beach General Plan Land use 
designations are categorized into one of the seven broad types of land-use impact fee 
categories. These DIF Land-Use Types are defined following:  
 
Residential Land Uses: 
 

• Detached Dwelling Units - This DIF Land-Use Type is generally defined as a 
detached unit and corresponds to an allowable use within the City's land-use 
designations/zones of Low Density Residential, Low-Medium Density Residential, 
and Medium Density Residential. 

 
• Attached Dwelling Units – This category consists of apartments, townhomes, 

condominiums or any other living unit that is physically contiguous to (i.e. attached 
to) any other residential unit within the Medium-High Density Residential and High 
Density Residential.  

 
Business/Commerce Land Uses: 
 

• Hotel/Motel (keyed) Units - This DIF Land-Use Type corresponds as an allowable 
use within the Special Commercial zoning designation. 

 
• Commercial/Service Uses - As utilized in this Report, Commercial/Service uses 

include the general type of commercial services and thus includes outlets ranging 
from restaurants to auto repair shops to shopping centers.  General commercial and 
light commercial are the more specific uses. 
 

• Office/Professional Uses - As utilized in this Report, Office/Professional uses 
include the general type of commercial services and thus consists of the narrower 
Office/Professional uses such as medical, legal and tax/accounting and other 
professional uses. 

 
• Light Industrial - This DIF Land-Use Type contains all businesses engaged in light 

Industrial developments typical in very light manufacturing in a small business park 
setting. 

 
• Public/Institutional - This DIF Land-Use Type contains all businesses engaged in 

general group uses such as private schools, churches and other groups that 
congregate in common buildings.  They are typically non-profits uses. 
 
 



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 11 

POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTION 
 
The first component in determining the magnitude of the impact of future development is 
to determine available land within the City. For each of the DIF land-use categories detailed 
above and on Table 2-2, acreage is used as a unit of measure for both Existing Development 
and Potential Development.  Definitions regarding the status of each land use are as 
follows: 
 
Existing Development Acres/Units – This column identifies land in the City which is 
developed or land which has received entitlement from the City and building permits but 
may not yet be constructed.  Acreage in this category may include non-conforming use 
areas of the City which contain extensive development prior to an annexation or before 
changes to the General Plan were made. 
 
Development Opportunities Acres/Units – This column refers to all vacant non-public 
land located within the City.  This category also includes the acreage any vacant parcel.  
Table 2-2 provides a summary of the detailed land use inventory, limited to privately held 
property, provided on Table 2-1. Staff's land use inventory reveals that there are presently 
1,267.73 acres of privately-held developed parcels within the City's current boundaries.  
Conversely, there remain 232.57 acres of vacant or under-developed land. 
 

Table 2-2 
Summary of the City of Solana Beach’s 

Developed and Potential Development Acreage 
 

DIF 
Land-use 

Type 

Existing 
Developed 

Acres 

% of Total 
Private 

Acres 

Potential 
Development 

Acres 

% of Total 
Private 

Acres 

Total 
Private 

Acres 

Detached Dwelling Units 643.89 42.9 207.31 13.8 851.20 

Attached Dwelling Units 359.20 23.9 19.70 1.3 378.90 

Hotel/Motel Keyed Units 2.90 0.2 0.50 0.0 3.40 

Commercial/Service (SF) 138.49 9.2 2.71 0.2 141.20 

Office/Professional Uses (SF)  27.20 1.8 1.00 0.1 28.20 

Light Industrial Uses (SF) 22.59 1.5 0.41 0.0 23.00 

Public/Institutional Uses (SF) 73.46 4.9 0.94 0.1 74.40 

Total Acres 1,267.73 84.5 232.57 15.5 1,500.30 

 
 
 

  



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 12 

POPULATION PROJECTIONS 
 
A second component in determining the magnitude of the impact of future development 
and the necessary facilities needed to mitigate that impact is a realistic assessment of the 
build-out population of the City. Some of the facilities/infrastructure contained in this 
Report are sized according to either the estimated population at theoretical "build-out" or 
upon service levels which are based in part upon an estimation of the population to be 
served.  Parks and park improvements and dedicated public use facilities are examples of 
infrastructure areas which rely heavily on population projections to determine space and 
facility needs.  Park standards are usually stated in terms of the number of acres of park 
land per 1,000 persons, for instance. 
 
There are at least two generally accepted methods for projecting future population levels in 
a City:  They are: (A) past growth trends projected forward and (B) population holding 
capacity based on the General Plan land-use element.  Each of these methods can be useful 
even though both possess certain limitations. 
 
There are several serious flaws in projecting the build-out population of a community using 
the past growth trends methodology.  While this method is relatively simple and therefore 
easy for the general public to understand, it does not give consideration to when an area is 
actually built out.  Eventually there comes a point in time where the amount of available 
land to build on is negligible as is likely the case in Solana Beach (Table 2-1).  This 
technique does not help explain when that point is reached.  
 
The past growth trends approach is also not sensitive to policy changes made by Council or 
land use issues contained in the City's General Plan.  For these reasons, this technique is 
more useful in projecting short-term population levels and should not be used to forecast 
the built-out population of an area. 
 
This Report relies on the methodology of holding-capacity (described in the following 
section) to project future service levels and facility requirements. 
 
Holding Capacity Analysis. The methodology used in this Report to forecast the built-out 
population of Solana Beach is the current holding capacity approach.  This method 
calculates the sum of existing development and potential development allowable under 
current land use regulations, using average densities found in the City. 
 
The first step in projecting the City's population using the holding capacity approach is to 
inventory the remaining undeveloped acres within the City limits, which was previously 
accomplished in Tables 2-1 and 2-2 of this Chapter.  The next step is to estimate the 
potential dwelling units allowed per acre and then multiply the potential number of units 
by the average number of residents per unit. 
 



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 13 

The number of persons per unit for new residential units is based on the 2000 U.S. Census 
and ranges from 2.590 and 1.874 persons for detached dwellings and attached dwelling 
units respectively.  There are no manufactured/mobile home parks in park settings the City 
thus no per dwelling unit figure for the number of residents living in manufactured 
dwelling units.  Use of the 2000 Census data is required over the more recent 2010 Census 
due to an unfortunate change in the way household data is reported by eliminating the 
ability to recognize differing types of residential structures.  
 
Based on these 2000 Census dwelling density data, future residential development can be 
expected to generate somewhere from 1,740 to 1,861 additional residents2 to the City of 
Solana Beach, joining the 13,938 citizens already living in City resulting in a total estimated 
population at build-out (based upon the existing City limits) of between 15,678 and 15,799 
residents.  The higher number is based upon full occupancy of all new dwelling units and 
the lower figure is based upon that census-based vacancy/occupancy ratios.  The 15,739 
population is the average of the two. 
 
Table 2-4 following uses the additional housing projected in the Land-use Database and 
estimates the additional potential population for the City of Solana Beach through General 
Plan build-out.  The number of potential new dwelling units was calculated by multiplying 
the amount of vacant acreage for each land use zone by the average densities (i.e., number 
of units allowed per acre) indicated in the City's General Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This space left vacant to place the following table on a single page]. 
 
  

                                                        
2 Depending upon the vacancy factor based upon the average of 96.4% for all residences. 



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 14 

Table 2-3 
Average Occupants per Dwelling Density Calculation 

And Potential General Plan Build-out Population 
 

 
 

  

Total Vacant Occupied Total Number Average Percentage

Units Units Units of Occupants Occupancy Occupied

  Detached Dwellings 2,906 97 2,809 7,274 2.590 96.66%

Attached Dwelling Units

  Attached Dwelling Units 1,264 194 1,070 1,918 1.793 84.65%

  Duplex to Quadplex Units 611 110 501 1,036 2.068 82.00%

  Five to Forty-nine Units 884 184 700 1,478 2.111 79.19%

  Fifty or More Units (none) 745 104 641 1,024 1.598 0.00%

3,504 592 2,912 5,456 1.874 83.11%

13,938

Anticipated Occupancy Probable Dwelling Anticipated

Units Rate Occupancy Density Population

557 96.66% 538 2.590 1,393

223 83.11% 185 1.874 347

1,740 1,740

13,938

15,678

 G.P. Build-out Population Anticipated Occupancy Probable Dwelling Anticipated

  At 100% Occupancy Rate Units Rate Occupancy Density Population

557 100.00% 557 2.590 1,443

223 100.00% 223 1.874 418

Population to be Added Via Development at 100% Occupancy 1,861 1,861

13,938

15,799

15,678

15,799

15,739

      Existing Residential

Average      

Current State of California Department of Finance Population

Population at General Plan Build-out @ 100% Occupancy of Residential Dwellings

G.P. Build-out Population

  At Historic Occupancy Rates

Detached Dwelling Units

  Existing - State Department of Finance 01/01/18 Population

Population to be Added Via Development at Historic Occupancy Rates

Current State of California Department of Finance Population

Population at General Plan Build-out @ Historic Vacancy of Residential Dwellings

Potential Attached Dwellings

Potential Detached Dwellings

Potential Attached Dwellings

Potential Detached Dwellings

Added Population at General Plan Build-out @ Historic Vacancy of Residential Dwellings

Added Population at General Plan Build-out @ 100% Occupancy of Residential Dwellings

Average Population at General Plan Build-out



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 15 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
This report and nexus calculation identifies $6,518,774 in needed and master planned 
Public Safety and Quality of Life capital improvement projects that are required to 
accommodate the anticipated additional demands from future growth. All of the $6.5 
Million in development-related project list is required as the result of accommodating 
development.  Table 2-4 indicates the capital project costs by area. 
 

Table 2-4 
Total City-wide General Plan Build-out 

Capital Improvement Requirements 
 

Infrastructure 
Type 

Total – All 
Projects 

Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment $1,077,236 

Park Land Acquisition/Park Improvements $4,981,809 

Dedicated Public Use Facilities $459,729 

Total – All Proposed Projects $6,518,774 

 
The adoption of the maximum Quality of Life DIF schedule amounts supported by the 
calculations in this Report (Schedule 2.1) would finance roughly all of the identified 
projects by raising about $6.5 million in DIF receipts available to finance the identified 
growth-related capital projects.  
 
As stated previously, adoption of the maximum supported Development Impact Fes 
schedules would generate $6.5 million.  At first blush, this may seem like a great deal of 
money, and it is.  However, it is instructive to compare this figure of needed projects with 
the current replacement value of the City’s existing assets inventory at the same costs that 
have been used to calculate the future development costs.  To date, the City has invested a 
total of $56.5 Million in assets of these three infrastructures.  These assets have been 
committed by the existing community that a new resident in the proposed development in 
Table 2-1 could avail themselves of immediately upon occupancy.  Table 2-5, following, 
demonstrates this: 
 
 
 
 

[This space left vacant in order to place the following table on a single page]. 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 16 

Table 2-5 
Value of Existing Infrastructure Assets 

 

Quality of Life 
Asset 

Existing Square 
Feet, Acres or “Lot” 

Acquisition Cost 
per Unit 

Replacement 
Value 

Fire Suppression/Rescue “Lot”  See Schedule 3.3 $15,757,190 
Parks and Park Improvements 14.47 acres  $2,571,598 $37,211,029 
Dedicated Public Use  Facility 6,331 S. F. $543.38/S.F. $3,440,139 

Total Replacement Value   $56,408,358 

 
Development Impact Fee Schedule Summary.  Based on the existing standards, the 
supported  costs and the calculations found at the end of each of the infrastructure chapters 
of this Report, impact costs attributable to future development were derived on a per unit 
basis for residential land uses and on a per square foot of pad basis for business land uses.  
Schedule 2.1, found at the end of this Chapter, provides a summary of the recommended 
DIF schedules for each type of infrastructure by DIF land use category.  The total 
recommended maximum DIFs for each of the seven DIF Land Use Types within the General 
Plan area are summarized in Table 2-6 as following: 
 

Table 2-6 
Summary of Proposed Development Impact Fees 

 

DIF Land Use Type 
Potential 

Development 
Impact Fees 

Detached Dwelling Unit $9,164/Unit 

Attached Dwelling Unit $5,959/Unit 

Hotel/Motel Keyed Unit $1,392/Unit 

Commercial/Service Uses in S.F. $0.220/S.F. 

Office/Professional Uses in S.F. $0.220/S.F. 

Light Industrial Uses in S.F. $0.010/S.F. 

Public/Institutional Uses in S.F $0.090/S.F. 

Residential Room Addition $20.873/SF 

 
 
Specific DIF schedule rates for each land use type can be found at the end of each chapter 
relating to each infrastructure.   Schedule 2.1 at the end of this Chapter also identifies the 
estimated development impact fee revenue, the projected capital cost total and the 
difference, by individual infrastructure type (e.g. Dedicated Public Use Facilities). 



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 17 

FORMAT OF THIS REPORT 
 
The following chapters of this Report contain the detailed information relative to the 
calculation of DIF calculated within this Report for the City.  Appropriate textual explana-
tions are contained in each chapter with a chapter devoted to each of the three sets of cost 
schedules, following, and two appendices, the first of which contains a summary of DIF 
recommendations. 
 
CHAPTER 3: Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and equipment 
CHAPTER 4: Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 
CHAPTER 5: Dedicated Public Use Facilities 
      
APPENDIX A – Summary of Recommendations 
APPENDIX B – Park Construction Cost Detail 
 
 

 
NOTE REGARDING TEXTUAL MATHEMATICS: It is important to note that the use of a 
computer provides for calculations to a large number of decimal points.  Such data, when 
included in text and supporting textual tables, has often been rounded to usually no more 
than two or three decimals for clarity and thus may not be replicated to the necessary 
degree of accuracy as the spreadsheet schedules at the end of each chapter. If questions 
arise between the tables and schedules, the schedules at the end of the chapter will prevail 
as the more accurate.  The schedules at the end of the Chapter are instructive to 
recommendations.  The tables within each infrastructure text chapter are summaries of the 
schedule at the end of that chapter and are illustrative. 
 

 
 

END OF CHAPTER TEXT 
  



Chapter 2 Demographics and Impact Fee Findings 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 18 

Schedule 2.1 
 
 
 

Fire Suppression Park Land Dedicated

& Rescue and Park Public Use

Land-use Category Facilities Improvements Facilities

Schedule 2.2 Schedule 4.1 Schedule 5.1

Calculated Development Impact Costs

Detached Dwellings (units) $1,611 $6,913 $640 $9,164 per Unit

Attached Dwellings (units) $494 $5,002 $463 $5,959 per Unit

Hotels/Motels (keyed rooms) $1,392 No Fee No Fee $1,392 per Unit

Commercial/Service (sq.ft) $0.220 No Fee No Fee $0.220 per S.F.

Office/Professional (sq.ft) $0.220 No Fee No Fee $0.220 per S.F.

Light Industrial (sq.ft) $0.010 No Fee No Fee $0.010 per S.F.

Public/Institutional Uses (sq. ft) $0.090 No Fee No Fee $0.090 per S.F.

Single Bedroom Addition $0.616 $18.542 $1.715 $20.873 per S.F.

Potential Collection (1)

Detached Dwellings (units) $897,327 $3,850,541 $356,480 $5,104,348

Attached Dwellings (units) $110,162 $1,115,446 $103,249 $1,328,857

Hotels/Motels (keyed rooms) $47,328 No Fee No Fee $47,328

Commercial/Service (sq.ft) $11,662 No Fee No Fee $11,662

Office/Professional (sq.ft) $6,708 No Fee No Fee $6,708

Light Industrial (sq.ft) $125 No Fee No Fee $125

Public/Institutional Uses (sq. ft) $3,330 No Fee No Fee $3,330

Total $1,076,642 $4,965,987 $459,729 $6,502,358

Potential DIF Receipts $1,076,642 $4,965,987 $459,729 $6,502,358

   Less: Other Resources $0 $0 $0 $0

Financial Resource Total $1,076,642 $4,965,987 $459,729 $6,502,358

Required Infrastructure Total $1,077,236 $4,965,987 $459,729 $6,502,952

DIF Over or (Under) Collection ($594) $0 $0 ($594)

(1) Projected revenue is based upon the application of the DIF schedule multiplied by the number of units or S.F. identified in Table 2-1.

Development

Impact Fee Total  

Per Unit or Square Feet



 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 19 

CHAPTER 3: FIRE SUPPRESSION/RESCUE FACILITIES, 
VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

 
The Existing System. The City has invested in an adequate and sufficient system of fire 
suppression/rescue facilities, response vehicles and specialty equipment.  Fire Department 
management is obtained through a shared cost agreement with the cities of Encinitas and 
Del Mar.  The Fire Department responds to calls-for-service within the City from the single 
central station. The fire facilities are detailed as follows: 
 
Fire (Headquarters) Station #1, at 13,052 square feet, is a three bays wide by two vehicles 
deep facility and is located on a 54,426 square foot parcel at 500 Loma Santa Fe Drive.  The 
lot also supports a 2,269 square foot storage building.   The land and facilities replacement 
cost of the existing station/storage facilities is an estimated $12,210,580. 
 
The City also operates a fleet of equipped City-owned response units consisting of: 
 

• One front line engine and one reserve engine; 
• One aerial apparatus; and 
• One utility pick-up truck. 

 
The total investment in the vehicle compliment is about $3,486,800.  State or County 
vehicles and equipment are not included in the financial commitment figure.  The City’s 
fire-fighter assigned equipment and successful psychological/back-ground checks, at 
$8,591 per fire-fighter, amounts to a $163,246 total for the existing staff of 19 fire fighters.  
There is an inventory of specialty equipment (not normally stored on the response 
vehicles) of approximately $131,300. 
 
On the negative side, the station has a remaining debt of $234,736. 
  
Add it all, up, the current financial commitment or investment, in fire stations, training 
facilities, response fleet with specialty equipment and remaining debt is a sizable 
$15,757,190.  This figure represents what it would cost the City’s residents and businesses 
to establish the existing Department response capability at current vehicle, equipment, 
replacement land acquisition and construction costs.  The relevance of this figure will be 
established later in this Chapter. 
 
Demand Upon Infrastructure Created by the Development of Underdeveloped or Vacant 
Parcels. While it can be said that numerous factors are considered when determining the 
number and location of fire stations in any city, it can be stated without fear of 
contradiction that all new private development in the City will have an effect on the City's 
current ability to respond to fire, rescue and emergency calls-for-service.  The effect, 
simplified but not trivialized, is two-fold.  Initially, each new residential and business 
development will create, on average, more calls-for-service increasing the likelihood of 



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 20 

simultaneous (and thus competing) calls-for-service.  Additionally, as development spreads 
further from any existing station or stations, as large-scale development is often likely to 
do, the distances (and thus response times) will increase, taking the existing fire companies 
out-of-service for greater periods of time. 
 
The capacity of any fire station is finite and will reach practical limits (through call 
frequency and total time).  When that capacity is exceeded, the level of service afforded to 
existing development will be greatly reduced.  Or stated in another way, if development 
were to continue without the addition of fire response capacity (the ability to respond), the 
existing stations could become overwhelmed in terms of calls-for-service, making a timely 
response for emergency service a virtual coin flip.  That is, will the existing fire company be 
available to respond to your needs and with the correct equipment or will they be out-of-
service on a call in a different part of the community?  The former question is answered by 
acquiring additional specialty equipment; the latter issue is resolved with the City’s mutual 
aid agreements and the shared fire management. 
 
The Purpose of the Fee.  Revenues collected from Fire Impact Fees will be used for 
additional fire equipment and facility which helps mitigate the additional demand. In order 
to continue to be able to respond to a number of additional calls, the City fire management 
staff has identified the need to acquire an additional response vehicle and construct a 
storage building for the vehicle. The City will also invest in a traffic signal preemption 
system to better manage response time. 
 
The Use of the Fee.  The revenues generated from a properly calculated and legally-
supported Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment Impact Fee would 
be limited to capital costs related to that growth.  The fees could, if necessary, be used to 
expand the existing station (to increase the response capacity of that station) and increase 
the number of emergency response vehicles.  Conversely, the Fire Suppression/Rescue 
Facilities, DIF receipts would not be used to repair any existing fire stations or replace any 
existing emergency response vehicles.  Additional fire suppression/rescue capabilities are 
planned to come on-line, as needed, as development creates the General Plan anticipated 
780 detached and attached units, 133,000 square feet of retail/service, office, industrial 
and institutional uses and some additional commercial lodging rooms are expected to be 
constructed.  The proposed additions are based upon anticipated new call demand and the 
relative distance from the existing stations. The capital expansions to accommodate 
additional development include: 
 
FS-001, Emergency Response Vehicle.  It could be Type III brush engine, Rescue Engine or 
Type VI patrol vehicle.  Such a decision would be made as the City continues to grow and 
new call parameters are recognized. 
 
FS-002, Vehicle Storage Butler Building.  This low cost facility would likely be a Butler-style 
building to house the added equipment in FD-001. 
 



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 21 

FS-003, Specialty Rescue Equipment. As the City continues to grow, different kinds of 
rescue operations will present themselves, and the department may need specific urban 
search and rescue equipment, trench-shoring equipment, or any other specialty equipment. 
 
FS-004, Traffic Preemption System Equipment.  The City will likely construct additional 
intersections in the future and these intersections will need to be added to the City’s 
existing fire response traffic light preemption system.  This will provide the revenue source 
for at least four of them. 
 
FS-005, Remaining Debt on Fire Station #1.  There is a remaining debt on Fire Station #1 of 
$234,736.  The Existing station has excess capacity that will allow it to accommodate the 
additional fire/rescue calls-for-service expected from new development.  This project 
recognizes that the additional development can finance this last payment. 
 
The proposed projects and costs are identified on Schedule 3.1 and are detailed in the MFP.  
The total cost of completing the fire infrastructure system is $1,077,236.  
 
The Relationship Between the Need for The Fee and The Type of Development 
Project.  Fire service response standards extended to new development should be 
consistent with the fire response currently enjoyed by the City's existing citizens and 
business community. Additional construction and equipment acquisition will maintain the 
current level of service (LOS) for both existing residents and future citizens and businesses 
within the City of Solana Beach. It is appropriate to assess future development to 
contribute fire facility expansion. 
 
To project the impact of future development on fire services, it was first necessary to 
quantify the current impact on services from each of the City's land uses.  Then, a 
determination of the costs of future capital facilities necessary to meet this increased 
demand was made.  The following section illustrates the relative impact from each land use 
on fire services and facilities. 
 
The majority of fire requests for service were made by Solana Beach citizens from their 
residences, followed by hotel, commercial, office and public/institutional uses within the 
City.  Requests for service to public property, such as City parks and public right-of-way or 
intersections, were excluded thus distributing these calls pro-rata through the requests for 
service from privately held property.  This is based upon the argument that all public land 
serves privately held land in some manner. 
 
Table 3-1 following, identifies the number of calls-for-service received by the Fire 
Department during a recent 12 month period by the previously identified DIF categories.  
The number of requests for service received by the Department during the year was then 
divided by either the developed (1,000) square feet, the existing number of dwelling units 
to determine the number of requests generated per business square foot, per dwelling unit 
or commercial lodging unit. 



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 22 

Table 3-1 
Fire Suppression Calls-for-Service Generated by Land Use 

(Over a 12 Month Period) 
 

 
DIF Land-Use Type 

Developed 
Dwellings 

or Square Feet 

Actual Calls 
For Service 

Over 12 Months 

Total Calls per 
Dwelling 

or 1,000 SF (KSF) 

Detached Dwelling Units 3,150 527.00 0.167/Unit 

Attached Dwelling Units 3,464 175.00 0.051/Unit 

Hotel/Motel Units 200 29.00 0.145/Unit 

Commercial/Service Uses 2,706,379 60.40 0.022/KSF 

Office/Professional Uses 829,382 18.60 0.022/KSF 

Light Industrial Uses 688,816 1.00 0.001/KSF 

Public/Institutional Uses 2,879,777 25.00 0.009/KSF 

 
As an example, there were approximately 527 calls-for-service that generated a response 
to one of the 3,150 detached dwelling units in the City. The result indicates that, on 
average, each dwelling will generate just over 0.167 calls per year, on average.  The same 
analysis was undertaken for the other land uses.  Since these calls-for-service by land use 
are an average, they were used to project the number of additional calls that could be 
expected by multiplying the calls per residential unit or business acre by the number of 
anticipated number of new residential dwellings or business acres.  
 
Of residential land uses, a detached dwelling unit is more likely to require an emergency 
fire service response at 0.167 annual responses per unit, than an attached dwelling unit at 
0.051 annual responses per unit.  Of the business uses, Commercial/Service and 
Office/Professional uses (combined) are shown to generate the highest business use 
demand at 0.022 responses per 1,000 square foot of building space, while industrial, at 
0.001 calls per square feet, generates the least demand.  Industrial uses should be expected 
to be at the lowest demand given the greater density of employees and patrons in an office 
use establishment when compared to an industrial business of similar square feet.  
However, it should be noted that while there are fewer calls for industrial properties, 
significant training is required to be prepared for industrial responses, (i.e., trenching 
response and hazardous materials training).  It should be noted that there are also a 
significant number of calls-for-service to public right-of-way, parks and other public 
parcels.  These will also increase with the development of privately held parcels. 
 
Based upon these calls-for-service and the anticipated development, future demands in 
City-wide will increase from the 836 annual calls-for-service, by 111.52 to 947.52 calls-for-
service per year, about a 11.7% increase.  Continued development will benefit from the 
existence of the existing station and the fact that Station #1 has existing capacity.  
Resulting Fire Suppression/Rescue DIF Schedule.  The collection of the resulting DIFs 



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 23 

through build-out would finance all of the proposed physical expansions and required 
equipment.  This generally indicates that the City’s expansion of the Fire capital has 
maintained pace with the increases in calls-for-service from new development and that 
there are very few if any deficiencies in the infrastructure dedicated to fire 
suppression/rescue services.   
 
Table 3-2, following, indicates the development impact fee necessary to finance the cost of 
the additional building, response equipment and fire fighter specialty equipment. 
 

Table 3-2 
City of Solana Beach’s Basic Needs-based Fire Suppression Facilities, Vehicles 

and Equipment Development Impact Costs by DIF Land-Use Type 
 

DIF Land-Use Type 
Allocation 

of Development 
Costs 

Development Impact 
Cost Per Unit 

or Square Foot 

Detached Dwelling Units $898,370 $1,611/Unit    

Attached Dwelling Units $110,123 $494/Unit  

Commercial Lodging Units $47,333 $1,392/Unit 

Commercial/Service Uses $11,592 $0.22/S.F. 

Office/Professional Uses $6,480 $0.22/S.F. 

Industrial Uses $121 $0.01/S.F. 

Public/Institutional Uses $3,217 $0.09/S.F. 

 
The Relationship Between the Use of the Fee and the Type of Development Paying 
the Fee. The use of the fee is equivalent to the need for the fee.  The DIF would be collected 
as the development occurs (generally at building permit or some predetermined point in 
the process).  As the development occurs, the impact is generated.  The collected DIF 
receipts would be put to use to acquire additional specialty equipment, emergency 
response vehicle and an additional building necessary to respond to those additional calls-
for-service, without reducing the capability of responding to calls from the existing 
community. 
 
The Relationship Between the Amount of the Fee and the Cost of the Portion of the 
Facility Attributed to the Development Project.  The proposed additions maintain 
proportionality with the existing development and existing inventory of fire 
suppression/rescue assets.  Any new development will benefit from the assets previously 
generated by the existing community of residents and businesses.   
 
The current community’s commitment to public safety has been to establish the existing 
single (albeit large) station capability and thus capacity to respond to calls-for-service paid 
for via past City general receipts.  To allow future residents to benefit by use of all of the 
capital needs without contributing additional assets, would be clearly unfair to the existing 



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 24 

residents and would likely reduce their current level of service.  Table 3-3, following, 
summarizes the distribution of the $15,757,190 in replacement costs to the existing 
residents and business owners (Schedule 3.3 details this distribution). 
 
The replacement value of the existing fire infrastructure (station, response fleet and related 
rescue equipment) of $15,757,190, referenced earlier in this chapter, represents the 
current equity investment or financial commitment towards fire suppression/rescue 
capability and capacity by the existing community.  When this figure is distributed over the 
existing community in the same manner as the future costs, by the land use demands, an 
investment, or financial "commitment" (or equity for that matter) per unit can be 
determined.  As an example, each detached dwelling unit has invested about $3,155 into 
fire suppression/rescue capital while the proposed DIF is a limited 50% lower figure at 
$1,611 per detached dwelling generally indicating that there is not a disproportional 
amount being required of new development.  In the contrary, new development is getting 
quite the bargain for developing within the City’s limits. 
 

Table 3-3 
Existing Fire Suppression Community 

Financial Commitment Proportionality Analysis 
 

DIF Land-Use Type 
Allocation 

of Development 
Costs 

Asset/Equity 
Investment Per Unit 

or Square Foot 

Detached Dwelling Units $9,993,017 $3,155/Unit    

Attached Dwelling Units $3,298,453 $953/Unit  

Hotel/Motel Units $546,617 $2,733/Unit 

Commercial/Service Uses $1,138,457 $0.42/S.F. 

Office/Professional Uses $350,597 $0.42/S.F. 

Industrial Uses $18,909 $0.03/S.F. 

Institutional Uses $471,140 $0.16/S.F. 

 

ROOM ADDITION/ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT IMPACT  
FEES 
 
The City incurs additional demands in the form of calls-for-service from the construction of 
a complete detached dwelling.  However room additions and the construction of Accessory 
Dwelling Units (or ADU’s) will also increase demands in smaller, but admittedly cumulative 
amounts.  It is important to note that an ADU can be built to a maximum of 1,200 square 
feet.  Impact Fee should also be imposed upon these two unique residential developments. 
 
Recommended Approach for Addressing Room Addition/Accessory Dwelling Units.  The 
approach that is recommended for the calculation of DIFs for application to the 



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 25 

construction of either room additions or Accessory Dwelling Units (henceforth ADU’s) is to 
make it a function of the demand of one single detached dwelling unit.  According to the 
U.S. Census Bureau a typical detached dwelling is 2,616 square feet3.  Thus if the $1,611 
impact fee for a single detached dwelling unit were to be divided by the 2,616 square feet, a 
cost of $0.62 per square foot is determined.  Table 3-4 following demonstrates this. 
 

Table 3-4 
Calculation of a Detached Dwelling Square Foot 

Fire Suppression, et. al. Development Impact Fee  
 

Report DIF Total $1,611 

Average Detached Dwelling S.F. 2,616 

Room Addition or ADU/Square Foot $0.62/S.F. 

 

RECOMMENDED IMPACT FEES 
 
The Existing Community Financial Commitment Proportionality Analysis (Schedule 3.3) is 
significantly greater by double than the City-wide Marginal Needs-based Impact Costs 
(Schedule 3.2) are necessary and sufficient to maintain the established fire suppressions 
system in that area. 
 
Additionally, the construction of room additions and accessory dwelling units, will increase 
calls-for-service demand and thus the fee of $0.62/square foot is recommended for 
application to these two development actions. 
 
 
 

 
RECAP OF POTENTIAL DEDICATED PUBLIC USE FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
 
The City could adopt Schedule 3.1 for the two basic residential dwelling categories and two 
more limited residential unit constructions. 
 

 
 
 

END OF CHAPTER TEXT 
 
 
 

                                                        
3 United State Census Bureau Quarterly Statistics, Table Q1, 1st Quarter, 2017   



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 26 

  
S

ch
ed

u
le

 3
.1

C
it

y
 o

f 
S

o
la

n
a

 B
ea

ch

2
0

1
7

-1
8

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 C
o

st
 C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
st

 E
st

im
a

te
s

F
ir

e 
S

u
p

p
re

ss
io

n
/R

es
cu

e 
F

a
ci

li
ti

es
, V

eh
ic

le
s 

a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

E
st

im
a

te
d

P
er

ce
n

t
A

p
p

o
rt

io
n

ed
P

er
ce

n
t

A
p

p
o

rt
io

n
ed

L
in

e 
#

P
ro

je
ct

 T
it

le
C

o
st

N
ee

d
D

o
lla

r 
C

o
st

N
ee

d
D

o
lla

r 
C

o
st

F
S-

0
0

1
E

m
er

ge
n

cy
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 V

eh
ic

le
 (

1
)

$
4

7
5

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
$

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
$

4
7

5
,0

0
0

F
S-

0
0

2
V

eh
ic

le
 S

to
ra

ge
 B

u
tl

er
 B

u
il

d
in

g
$

2
1

7
,5

0
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
2

1
7

,5
0

0

F
S-

0
0

3
Sp

ec
ia

lt
y

 R
es

cu
e 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t
$

5
0

,0
0

0
0

.0
0

%
$

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
$

5
0

,0
0

0

F
S-

0
0

4
T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 P

re
em

p
ti

o
n

 S
y

st
em

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
(f

o
u

r 
ad

d
ed

 s
ig

n
al

s)
$

1
0

0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
1

0
0

,0
0

0

F
S-

0
0

5
R

em
ai

n
in

g 
D

eb
t 

o
n

 F
ir

e 
St

at
io

n
 #

1
$

2
3

4
,7

3
6

0
.0

0
%

$
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
2

3
4

,7
3

6

Su
b

-T
o

ta
l 

G
en

er
al

 P
la

n
 T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
st

s
$

1
,0

7
7

,2
3

6
0

.0
0

%
$

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
$

1
,0

7
7

,2
3

6

L
E

SS
:

O
ff

-s
et

ti
n

g 
R

ev
en

u
es

 (
n

o
n

e)
$

0
0

.0
0

%
$

0
0

.0
0

%
$

0

Su
b

-T
o

ta
l 

O
ff

-S
et

ti
n

g 
R

ev
en

u
es

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

T
o

ta
l 

N
et

 G
en

er
al

 P
la

n
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
st

s
$

1
,0

7
7

,2
3

6
0

.0
0

%
$

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
$

1
,0

7
7

,2
3

6

N
O

T
E

S:

1
. N

ee
d

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
et

 b
y

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g:
 T

y
p

e 
II

I 
B

ru
sh

 E
n

gi
n

e,
 R

es
cu

e 
E

n
gi

n
e 

o
r 

T
y

p
e 

V
I 

P
at

ro
l 

v
eh

ic
le

.

2
. C

o
st

s 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 b

as
ed

 u
p

o
n

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

"C
al

ls
-f

o
r-

Se
rv

ic
e"

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
s.

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 N
ee

d
s

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 N
ee

d
s

Su
p

p
o

rt
ed

 b
y

G
en

er
a

te
d

 b
y

 O
th

er
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
N

ew
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

em
a

n
d

  F
o

rw
ar

d
 t

o
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 4
.2



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 27 

 
 
  

S
ch

ed
u

le
 3

.2

C
it

y
 o

f 
S

o
la

n
a

 B
ea

ch

2
0

1
7

-1
8

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 C
o

st
 C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n

M
in

im
a

l 
N

ee
d

s-
b

a
se

d
 I

m
p

a
ct

 C
o

st
s

F
ir

e 
S

u
p

p
re

ss
io

n
/R

es
cu

e 
F

a
ci

li
ti

es
, V

eh
ic

le
s 

a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

C
a

ll
A

n
ti

ci
p

a
te

d
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f

C
o

st
A

ve
ra

g
e 

U
n

it
s

A
cr

es
U

n
it

s
G

en
er

a
ti

o
n

N
ew

 C
a

lls
o

f 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
E

xp
a

n
si

o
n

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

o
r 

Sq
u

a
re

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
a

n
d

 U
se

R
a

te
fo

r 
Se

rv
ic

e
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

a
lls

C
o

st
s

P
er

 A
cr

e
F

ee
t/

A
cr

e

D
et

ac
h

ed
 D

w
el

li
n

gs
 (

u
n

it
s)

2
0

7
.3

1
5

5
7

0
.1

6
7

9
3

.0
0

8
3

.4
0

%
$

8
9

8
,3

7
0

$
4

,3
3

3
2

.6
9

$1
,6

1
1

p
er

 U
n

it

A
tt

ac
h

ed
 D

w
el

li
n

gs
 (

u
n

it
s)

1
9

.7
0

2
2

3
0

.0
5

1
1

1
.4

0
1

0
.2

2
%

$
1

1
0

,1
2

3
$

5
,5

9
0

1
1

.3
2

$4
9

4
p

er
 U

n
it

H
o

te
ls

/M
o

te
ls

 (
k

ey
ed

 r
o

o
m

s)
0

.5
0

3
4

0
.1

4
5

4
.9

0
4

.3
9

%
$

4
7

,3
3

3
$

9
4

,6
6

7
6

8
.0

0
$1

,3
9

2
p

er
 U

n
it

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
/S

er
v

ic
e 

(s
q

.f
t)

2
.7

1
5

3
,0

0
8

0
.0

2
2

1
.2

0
1

.0
8

%
$

1
1

,5
9

2
$

4
,2

7
4

1
9

,5
4

2
$0

.2
2

p
er

 S
.F

.

O
ff

ic
e/

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 (

sq
.f

t)
1

.0
0

3
0

,4
9

2
0

.0
2

2
0

.6
7

0
.6

0
%

$
6

,4
8

0
$

6
,4

8
0

3
0

,4
9

2
$0

.2
2

p
er

 S
.F

.

L
ig

h
t 

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 (
sq

.f
t)

0
.4

1
1

2
,5

0
0

0
.0

0
1

0
.0

1
0

.0
1

%
$

1
2

1
$

2
9

5
3

0
,4

9
2

$0
.0

1
p

er
 S

.F
.

P
u

b
li

c/
In

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 U

se
s 

(s
q

. f
t)

0
.9

4
3

7
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
9

0
.3

3
0

.3
0

%
$

3
,2

1
7

$
3

,4
0

8
3

9
,2

0
4

$0
.0

9
p

er
 S

.F
.

T
O

T
A

L
2

3
2

.5
8

--
--

1
1

1
.5

2
1

0
0

.0
0

%
$

1
,0

7
7

,2
3

6

R
o

o
m

 A
d

d
it

io
n

s:

D
et

ac
h

ed
 D

w
el

li
n

g 
U

n
it

 (
se

e 
ab

o
v

e)
$1

,6
1

1
p

er
 U

n
it

N
at

io
n

al
 A

v
er

ag
e 

D
et

ac
h

ed
 D

w
el

li
n

g 
Sq

u
ar

e 
F

ee
t

2
,6

1
6

   
   

 
Sq

. F
t.

R
o

o
m

 A
d

d
it

io
n

 o
r 

A
cc

es
so

ry
 D

w
el

li
n

g 
U

n
it

$0
.6

1
6

p
er

 S
.F

.

U
n

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

Im
p

a
ct

 F
ee

 p
er

 U
n

it

o
r 

Sq
u

a
re

 F
o

o
t

T
o

ta
l 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
 C

ap
it

al
 N

ee
d

s



Chapter 3 Fire Suppression/Rescue Facilities, Vehicles and Equipment 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 28 

 
 
 

S
ch

ed
u

le
 3

.3

C
it

y
 o

f 
S

o
la

n
a

 B
ea

ch

2
0

1
7

-1
8

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 C
o

st
 C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n

E
xi

st
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
t 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

F
ir

e 
S

u
p

p
re

ss
io

n
/R

es
cu

e 
F

a
ci

li
ti

es
, V

eh
ic

le
s 

a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

C
a

ll
E

xi
st

in
g

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e
A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
A

ve
ra

g
e 

U
n

it
s

A
cr

es
U

n
it

s
G

en
er

a
ti

o
n

C
a

lls
 f

o
r

o
f 

E
xi

st
in

g
In

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
o

f 
"E

q
u

it
y"

o
r 

Sq
u

a
re

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
a

n
d

 U
se

R
a

te
Se

rv
ic

e
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

a
lls

"E
q

u
it

y"
p

er
 A

cr
e

F
ee

t/
A

cr
e

D
et

ac
h

ed
 D

w
el

li
n

gs
 (

u
n

it
s)

6
4

3
.8

9
3

,1
5

0
0

.1
6

7
5

2
7

.0
0

6
3

.0
4

%
$

9
,9

3
3

,0
1

7
$

1
5

,4
2

7
4

.8
9

$3
,1

5
5

p
er

 U
n

it

A
tt

ac
h

ed
 D

w
el

li
n

gs
 (

u
n

it
s)

3
5

9
.2

0
3

,4
6

4
0

.0
5

1
1

7
5

.0
0

2
0

.9
3

%
$

3
,2

9
8

,4
5

3
$

9
,1

8
3

9
.6

4
$9

5
3

p
er

 U
n

it

H
o

te
ls

/M
o

te
ls

 (
k

ey
ed

 r
o

o
m

s)
2

.9
0

2
0

0
0

.1
4

5
2

9
.0

0
3

.4
7

%
$

5
4

6
,6

1
7

$
1

8
8

,4
8

9
6

8
.9

7
$2

,7
3

3
p

er
 U

n
it

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
/S

er
v

ic
e 

(s
q

.f
t)

1
3

8
.4

9
2

,7
0

6
,3

7
9

0
.0

2
2

6
0

.4
0

7
.2

3
%

$
1

,1
3

8
,4

5
7

$
8

,2
2

1
1

9
,5

4
2

$0
.4

2
p

er
 S

.F
.

O
ff

ic
e/

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 (

sq
.f

t)
2

7
.2

0
8

2
9

,3
8

2
0

.0
2

2
1

8
.6

0
2

.2
3

%
$

3
5

0
,5

9
7

$
1

2
,8

9
0

3
0

,4
9

2
$0

.4
2

p
er

 S
.F

.

L
ig

h
t 

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 (
sq

.f
t)

2
2

.5
9

6
8

8
,8

1
6

0
.0

0
1

1
.0

0
0

.1
2

%
$

1
8

,9
0

9
$

8
3

7
3

0
,4

9
2

$0
.0

3
p

er
 S

.F
.

P
u

b
li

c/
In

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 U

se
s 

(s
q

. f
t)7

3
.4

6
2

,8
7

9
,7

7
7

0
.0

0
9

2
5

.0
0

2
.9

9
%

$
4

7
1

,1
4

0
$

6
,4

1
4

3
9

,2
0

4
$0

.1
6

p
er

 S
.F

.

T
O

T
A

L
1

,2
6

7
.7

2
--

--
8

3
6

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
1

5
,7

5
7

,1
9

0

$
1

2
,2

1
0

,5
8

0

L
an

d
-u

se
Sq

. F
t.

%
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l
C

SF
 p

er
 K

SF
$

3
,4

8
6

,8
0

0

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
/S

er
v

ic
e 

(s
q

.f
t)

2
,7

0
6

,3
7

9
7

6
.5

%
6

0
.4

0
$

1
3

1
,3

0
0

O
ff

ic
e/

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 (

sq
.f

t)
8

2
9

,3
8

2
2

3
.5

%
1

8
.6

0
$

1
6

3
,2

4
6

in
 F

ir
e 

F
ig

h
te

r 
A

ss
ig

n
ed

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t

T
o

ta
l

3
,5

3
5

,7
6

1
1

0
0

.0
%

7
9

.0
0

-$
2

3
4

,7
3

6

T
o

ta
l 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
 A

ss
et

s

D
ev

el
o

p
ed

C
u

rr
en

t 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
t 

p
er

 U
n

it

 o
r 

Sq
u

a
re

 F
o

o
t

in
 F

u
ll

y
 E

q
u

ip
p

ed
 F

ir
e 

R
es

p
o

n
se

 V
eh

ic
le

s 

in
 F

ir
e 

Su
p

p
re

ss
io

n
/R

es
cu

e 
F

ac
il

it
ie

s 
A

ss
et

s

in
 E

m
er

ge
n

cy
 R

es
cu

e 
Sp

ec
ia

lt
y

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t

in
 R

em
ai

n
in

g 
F

ir
e 

St
at

io
n

 #
1

 D
eb

t



 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 29 

CHAPTER 4: PARK LAND ACQUISITION AND PARK 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
This Chapter summarizes the City's existing inventory of parks and identifies the ratio of 
park land per resident allowable to be imposed under the Quimby Act (§66477 of the 
Government Code)4 for residential developments involving the subdivision of land and the 
Mitigation Fee Act (§66000 of the Government Code) for the construction of residential 
developments not involving the subdivision of land.  The existing per capita standard is 
then utilized to calculate the park dedication requirement for future residential 
development. 
 
California’s Quimby Act.  Unlike the other facilities discussed in this Report, the California 
Government Code contains enabling legislation for the acquisition and development of 
community and neighborhood parks by a City.  This legislation, codified as Section 66477 of 
the Government Code is commonly referred to as the Quimby Act and is contained within 
the State’s Subdivision Map Act and thus limited in application to only those residential 
development application that involve a subdivision of land. The Act establishes criteria for 
charging new development for park facilities based on specific adopted park standards. 
 
Allowable Park Standard Under §66477 of the Government Code, the City may charge new 
residential development based on a standard of 3.0 acres per 1,000 residents even if the 
City does not presently possess a ratio of 3.0 acres per 1,000 for the existing population.  
The Government Code also enables a city to charge development based on a standard 
higher than 3.0 acres (to a maximum of 5.0 acres) if the municipality can demonstrate that 
it currently exceeds the minimum benchmark ratio of 3.0 acres per 1,000 residents or has 
adopted standards or plans to exceed that amount.  The maximum standard, for Quimby 
Act application, is capped at 5.0 acres per 1,000 residents. 
 
The law states that "if the amount of existing neighborhood and community park area ... 
exceeds the [3 acres of park area per 1,000 person] limit ... the legislative body may adopt 
the calculated amount as a higher standard not to exceed 5 acres per 1,000 persons”5.  Park 
fees may be required by the City provided that the City meets certain conditions including: 
 

• The amount and location of land to be dedicated or the fees to be paid shall bear a 
reasonable relationship to the use of the park by the future inhabitants of the 
subdivision. 

 
• The legislative body has adopted a General Plan containing a recreational element, 

and the park and recreational facilities are in accordance with definite principles 
and standards contained therein. 

                                                        
4 Adoption of a Quimby Act Fee requires a park “plan”. 
5 California Government Code, Title 7, Division 2, Section 66447 (b). 



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 30 

• The city shall develop a schedule specifying how, when, and where it will use the 
land or fees, or both, to develop park or recreational facilities. Any fees collected 
under the ordinance shall be committed within five years after the payment of such 
fees. 

 
However, the Quimby Act is contained within the Subdivision Map Act and is thus only 
applicable to the construction of detached dwellings within a subdivision, an uncommon 
prospect in Solana Beach given the paucity of large vacant parcels within the City.  Thus 
RCS recommends a Mitigation Fee Act based development impact fee calculation based 
upon the existing ratio of park acres per 1,000 residents. 
 

EXISTING PARKS AND RECREATION SYSTEM 
 
Intensive parks and recreational facilities constitute one of the City of Solana Beach's 
greatest challenges with respect to recreation and social facilities for both current and 
future residents.  The provision of a well-planned park system, with a variation in the size 
and nature of facilities offered, is an important amenity to residents of any city.  A mixture 
of passive and active uses with facilities and programs which appeal to a broad spectrum of 
potential park users is considered optimal in most urban cities.  A city’s park system often 
can be a major factor in selection of a place to live. The current acres dedicated to park use 
may serve well to meet the City’s current needs. However if the number of park acre 
offerings currently available to City residents remains static at 14.47 acres, it may prove 
difficult to continue to meet the recreational demands of the community in light of even a 
relatively minor 13.35% increase in the City’s population. 
 
Future residential development, by increasing the City's population, will impact the City's 
park system by requiring additional active/passive sports fields and adequate space for 
other various non-athletic activities.  Given the limited residential growth projected in this 
Report, the City still has a challenge to provide new facilities and park land to serve the 
recreational needs of these new residents.  Without additional park land acquisition and 
continued development of currently owned but possibly underutilized park land, the City's 
parks can, on occasion, become overcrowded and overused, with the ultimate result 
becoming a negative experience for park users. 
 
The Purpose of the Fee.  The purpose of the fee is to maintain currently met standards by 
determining the cost of expanding the park-land and park related improvements by a 
proportional amount necessary to accommodate the added demands created by the 
construction of additional residential dwelling units through General Plan build-out at the 
existing (defacto) standard. 
 
  



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 31 

Existing Active/Passive Park and Activity Field Inventory.  City residents have a modest 
amount of park and activity field space available for use6.  Currently, the City has 14.47 
acres of park land within its boundaries, most of it developed. The 8.61 acre Coast Rail Trail 
is the largest City-owned “park” representing over 59.5% of the City park system acreage 
and provides a limited amount of passive/active uses, primarily hiking.  La Colonia Park, at 
3.18 acres, provides that most space for active (sports) activities at 22% of the total 
available park space. 
 
Table 4-1, following, is a summary of the park acreage available within the City’s limits.   

 
Table 4-1 

Inventory of Owned and Developed Park Land 
 

Park or Space Name Park Acres 

Tide Beach Access 0.07 

Fletcher Cove Park 1.67 

Seaside Sur Beach Access 0.14 

La Colonia Park 3.18 

Fletcher Cove Community Center Overlook 0.41 

Coast Rail Trail 8.61 

Overlook at Solana Beach/Tennis Club 0.18 

Pacific Avenue Overlook at Ocean Street 0.03 

Sun Valley Pocket Park 0.09 

El Viento/Granados pocket Park 0.09 

Total - Park Acres 14.47 

 
City de facto Park Standard.  Table 4-2 following is a comparison of the acreage of park 
offerings to the City of Solana Beach's current population and indicates that the City 
presently possesses a fairly modest standard of 1.038 acres of park land offerings per 1,000 
residents, (14.47 acres  [13,938 residents  1,000], rounded). The resulting park 
acres/1,000 resident’s standard is less than the low end benchmark bench-mark of 3.0 
acres per 1,000 persons contained in Section 66477 of the California Government Code 
(more commonly known as the Subdivision map Act) relating to dedication of parks. 
 
  

                                                        
6 Admittedly, the list of park opportunities does not include the incalculable recreation/social interaction benefit 
of the 1.5 miles of pristine coastline available through Solana Beach which is no doubt a partial explanation the 
relatively low acres per 1,000 resident park standard. 



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 32 

Table 4-2 
Calculation of City Park Acre Standard 

 
 Park Acres 

Total Park Acres Available 14.47 

Current City Population 13,938 

Population Divided by 1,000 13.938 

Park Acres per 1,000 Population 1.038 

 
The Use of the Fee.  The collected Mitigation Fee Act-based development impact fee 
receipts could be imposed, collected, and expended on the acquisition of additional park 
space and construction of additional park improvements that directly benefits new City 
residents or on creating enhancements to the existing park infrastructure, but would not be 
expended upon the rehabilitation of the any existing parks infrastructure.  The collected 
park impact fee receipts could not be used for rehabilitation of any existing park 
infrastructure. 
 

Table 4-3 
Calculation of Required 

Park Acres per Existing Park Land Standard 
 

General Plan Anticipated  Population Increase (Table 2-2) 1,861 

Additional Population Divided by 1,000 1.861 

Allowable Standard in Acres/1,000 Residents 1.038 

Acres Required to Merely Maintain the Park Standard 1.932 

 
Planned Park Improvements.  In addition to improving any of the existing 14.47 improved 
park acres7, the City could acquire an additional 1.932 park acres, per Table 4-3, and 
develop these new parks to serve the additional 1,861 residents anticipated at General Plan 
build-out. 
 
The limited 1.932 acres provides few differing park configurations unless constructed 
contiguous to an existing park.  The 1.9 acres cannot support a recreational ball field much 
less a competitive ball field or any other active sports field.  In fact, there may not be any 
opportunity to acquire additional park land at all.   A mini or pocket park is the smallest of 
the parks designations and though generally not planned due to higher maintenance costs, 
are usually the result of acquiring an unusual parcel of land or sometimes one based upon 
local historical significance. 
 

                                                        
7  The Quimby Act does allow for the use of receipts raised by the adoption of a Quimby Act park Impact Fee to be 
used for rehabilitation of existing park configurations. 



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 33 

CALCULATION OF IMPACT COSTS 
 
Once a per capita standard for parks is determined, the cost of residential development's 
impact on the City's park system can then be computed as follows. 
 
Park Land Acquisition Costs.  Land costs will vary significantly from one park to another. 
Given the high cost of land in the Solana Beach area, and that the resulting park land 
development impact fee is a function of the cost of land.  However, City staff has provided 
some direction in the form of the cost of a recent 28,978 square foot land acquisition at 
some $2.8 million resulting in a staggering $96.63 per square foot.   RCS staff recommends 
using 50% of that figure based upon the assumption that parcels that may be difficult to 
privately develop may be the only parcels available to the City. 
 
Park Improvement Construction Costs.  Park improvement construction costs are 
estimated to be approximately $446,997 per acre.  This figure is detailed in Appendix B and 
is based upon actual costs per types of park improvement (i.e. benches, restrooms, etc.) and 
the number of those units per acre and type of park updated to more current costs by the 
Engineering News Record.  Dedicated Public Use Facilities have not included as a 
component within this cost calculation (see Chapter 5). 
 
The Relationship Between the Use of the Fee and the Type of Development Paying 
the Fee.  The fee will be used to expand the amount of park offerings in proportions 
consistent with the average persons per dwelling by type of residential dwelling.  Park 
offerings would be expanded in the following amounts following, by type of residential 
dwelling as different types of residential dwellings generally have differing numbers of 
people dwelling in them.  Table 2-2 within Chapter 2 calculated the average number of 
residents per type of dwelling. Census data indicates the following occupancy statistics for 
the City.  Table 4-4 restates these following:  
 

Table 4-4 
Average Residential Density 

Persons per Type of Residential Unit 
per Table 2-3 

 
Detached Dwelling Units 2.590 Persons/Dwelling Unit 
Attached Dwelling Units 1.874 Persons/Dwelling Unit 
  
Single Room Addition 1.00 Persons/Room Addition           

      
The Relationship Between the Need for the Facility and the Type of Development 
Project. Residential development creates housing for additional residents who are likely to 
use the existing facilities, thus by limiting the access to existing resident.  An impact fee can 
be used to maintain the existing standards to protect the access to existing park offerings to 



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 34 

the City existing residents.  The relationship is based upon the average number of persons 
that reside in the various types of residential construction.   
 
The Relationship Between the Amount of the Fee and the Cost of the Portion of the 
Facility Attributed to the Specific Development Project.  Schedule 3.1 identifies the 
costs involved in the pro-rata expansion of the City’s park-related infrastructure. One 
additional resident generates additional park infrastructure costs of $2,184.58 for park 
land acquisition and $484.74 for park infrastructure improvements. The resulting 
development impact fees are based upon these costs per individual resident multiplied by 
the average number of residents residing in each of the two major types of dwelling unit. 
 
Average Cost per Type of Dwelling Unit.  Schedule 3.1 further calculates the cost from a per 
resident to a per of dwelling unit type basis.  A detached dwelling incurs costs of $6,913 per 
unit ($5,658 for land acquisition and $1,255 for park improvements construction) based 
upon 2.590 residents and $5,002 per attached dwelling unit ($4,094 for land acquisition 
and $908 for park improvements construction) with 1.874 residents.  A single room 
addition8, generally assumed to support one person, would require a DIF imposition of 
$2,670 for that one room addition ($2,185 for land acquisition and $485 for park 
improvements construction). 

 
Table 4-5 

Summary of Park Development Fees for 
Residential Dwelling Construction 

 

DIF Land-use 
Type 

Development 
Impact Cost 

Detached Dwelling Unit $6,913/Unit 

Attached Dwelling Unit $5,002/Unit 

Single Room Addition $2,670/Unit 
 
For greater ease in application of the impact fee on a single room addition, a single room 
appropriate for living in, it is assumed that a single room addition will be a generous 144 
square feet (at 12’ X 12’).  Table 4-6, following, converts the detached dwelling unit cost to 
a square foot impact fee. 
 
  

                                                        
8 Defined as any room addition that appears to be able to serve as a bedroom, thus excluding well-defined 
kitchens, living rooms, bathrooms, etc. 



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 35 

Table 4-6 
 Conversion of Dedicated Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements  

Impact Fee to a Square Foot Application 
 

Single Room Addition $2,670 
Designated Average Bedroom Addition 144 

Cost per Square Foot of Bedroom Addition $18.54 
 
The development impact costs for detached dwelling residential development involving the 
subdivision of land, as identified in Table 4-4, should be adopted under the auspices of the 
Government Code § 66000 Mitigation Fee Act supported DIF9. 
 
Findings Required for Development Impact Fees Imposed upon Developments Not 
Requiring Sub-division.  As stated earlier the Quimby Act exists within the State’s Sub-
division Map Act and developments not requiring a sub-division are not subject to 
requirements of that Act.  Proposals not requiring subdivision are adopted within the 
Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §66000) and thus require findings identified within 
that code.  Those findings have been incorporated within the chapter text. 
 
 

 
RECAP OF POTENTIAL PARK LAND ACQUISITION AND PARK INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
 
Residential Housing – In order to maintain the City’s existing park acre per 1,000 residents, 
the City should adopt Schedule 4.1 for Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements for 
the two basic residential land-uses and the single room addition cost. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

END OF CHAPTER TEXT 
 
  

                                                        
9  This is required because the Quimby Act is referenced in the State Subdivision Code 



Chapter 4 Park Land Acquisition and Park Improvements 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 36 

 
 

Schedule 4.1

City of Solana Beach

2017-18 Development Impact Cost Calculation

Park Land Acquisition and Park Facilities Development

   (Quimby and Mitigation Act Calculation)

Acres Developed/

Owned or Constructed

LT Lease Acres

0.07 0.07

Fletcher Cove Park 1.67 1.67

Seascape Sur Beach Access 0.14 0.14

La Colonia Park (County) 3.18 3.18

Fletcher Cove Community Center Overlook 0.41 0.41

Coast Rail Trail 8.61 8.61

Overlook at Solana Beach & Tennis Club 0.18 0.18

Pacific Avenue Overlook at Ocean Street 0.03 0.03

Sun Valley Pocket Park 0.09 0.09

0.09 0.09

14.47 14.47

14.47              14.47              

13,938            13,938            

13.938            13.938            

1.038              1.038              

1.038              1.038              

$466,997

$2,104,601

$2,104,601 $466,997

$2,184,576 $484,743

1,000.00 1,000.00

$2,184.58 $484.74

Occupants/ Land Park Total Park

Dwelling Acquisition Construction Costs

$2,184.58 $484.74 $2,669.32

Detached Dwellings (units) 2.590 $5,658 $1,255 $6,913

Attached Dwellings (units) 1.874 $4,094 $908 $5,002

Single Room Addition 1.000 $2,185 $485 $2,670

Single Bedroom Addition $2,670

Average Bedroom Size 144

Cost per Square Foot $18.54

Cost per Additional Resident

Total Park Acres

Total Acres

Total Cost per Acre   

Acquisition/Construction Cost per Resident

Construction Cost per Acre

Land Acquisition Cost per Acre

Population Served by Standard

Acres/1,000 Population Standard

El Viento/Granados Pocket Park

Park Name

Tide Beach Access

Current City Population

Population Divided by 1,000 

Current Standard of Acre/1,000 Population

Cost X 3.0 Acre/1,000 Residents Standard



 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 37 

CHAPTER 5: DEDICATED PUBLIC USE FACILITIES 
DEVELOPMENT 

 
This important component of the City’s offerings to its citizens has been removed from the 
Park Land and Park Improvements DIF category and created as a separate DIF 
infrastructure category.  This has been undertaken for three reasons.  
 
First, few parks contain a dedicated public use center.  Secondly, it is difficult to ensure that 
the cost for such a facility is properly included in the average park development cost per 
acre.  Lastly and perhaps most importantly, it has been the experience of RCS staff, that 
when the cost for Dedicated Public Use Facilities is included as a cost of park development, 
these facilities simply do not get built.  This is because the park impact fee revenues get 
used on the costly demand for turfed park acres with sports or passive-use park 
improvements.  
 
The Existing System.  The City has a number of facilities currently dedicated for use as 
dedicated public use facilities.  Such facilities are available to community groups and 
individuals for meetings and other civic functions.  This category of buildings differs from 
General Facilities, which are those used by the City staff to undertake their municipal 
service duties (City Hall as an example).  
 
Table 5-1 shows the City’s existing Dedicated Public Use Facilities. 

 
Table 5-1 

Inventory of Existing Dedicated Public Meeting Facilities 
 

Dedicated Public Use Facility 
Square 

Feet 

Fletcher Cove Community Center 1,232 

Heritage Museum 724 

La Colonia Community Center 4,375 

Total – Dedicated Public Use Square Feet 6,331 

 
Based upon an existing State Department of Finance 2018 City population of 13,938, the 
6,331 square feet creates a very modest standard of 0.454 square feet per resident.  This 
standard indicates that the City has probably not had a great many opportunities in its 
relatively short life of 32 years with which to acquire more dedicated public use facility 
space for the City’s public groups and residents. Table 5-2, following, demonstrates the 
calculation establishing the square foot standard: 
 
 



Chapter 5 Dedicated Public Use Facilities Development 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 38 

Table 5-2 
Calculation of Public Use Facilities 

 Square Foot Standard 
 

Public Meeting Space Square Feet 6,331 

Current City Population 13,938 

Square Foot per Resident Standard 0.454 

 
Demand Upon Infrastructure Created by the Development of Underdeveloped or 
Undeveloped Parcels.  Simply stated, additional residential dwelling units will increase the 
population, placing greater demands for use of a static amount of public use facilities.  The 
construction of a detached dwelling unit will create, on average, 2.590 potential new 
community center users.  The addition of a new attached dwelling will create on average 
1.874 potential new users.  The construction of a room addition is assumed to add one 
potential new user. 
 
Table 5-3, following, demonstrates the calculation of the number of additional square feet 
required to merely maintain the existing dedicated public use facilities standard: 
 

Table 5-3 
Square Feet of Additional Dedicated Public Use Space 

Required to Maintain Existing Standard 
 

Residential 
DIF Land-Use Type 

Number of 
Units 

Anticipated 

Persons per 
Dwelling 

Population 
Generated 

Detached Dwelling Units 557 2.590 1,443 
Attached Dwelling Units 223 1.874 418 

Additional City Residents from Added Dwelling Units 1,861 

Square Foot per Person Existing Standard 0.454 

Public Use Facilities S.F. Required to Maintain Standard 845 

 
The Purpose of the Fee.  The purpose of the fee is to determine the cost of expanding the 
dedicated public use type facilities by some number of square feet needed to meet the 
added demands created by the construction of additional residential dwelling units.  It 
should be noted that 845 square feet of dedicated public use facilities may not meet all of 
the needs of the General Plan build-out community and that additional square feet beyond 
that and financed by this impact fee may be desired by the community.  The reference to 
the 845 square feet indicates only the amount of additional public use facilities square feet 
that could be financed by DIFs to merely maintain the existing level of service. 
 
 



Chapter 5 Dedicated Public Use Facilities Development 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 39 

The Use of the Fee.  The fee, if adopted, would be imposed, collected, and expended on the 
construction of additional dedicated public use space that benefits City of Solana Beach 
residents, but not for the rehabilitation of any existing dedicated public use facility. 
 
The Relationship Between the Need for The Fee and The Type of Development 
Project.  Different types of residential dwellings generally have differing amounts of people 
dwelling in them.  Census data indicates the following residential dwelling occupancy 
statistics (Table 2-2) for the City: 
 

Detached Dwelling Units ...................................................................................... 2.590 Persons/Unit           
Attached Dwelling Units ....................................................................................... 1.874 Persons/Unit 
Single Room Addition ............................................................................................ 1.000 Persons/Unit 

 
The Relationship Between the Use of the Fee and the Type of Development Paying 
the Fee.  The fee will be used to expand the amount of dedicated public use facility square 
feet in proportions consistent with the average persons per dwelling.  Dedicated public use 
facilities would be expanded in the following amounts following, by type of residential 
dwelling: 
 
   Detached Dwelling Unit .... 2.590 Persons per Unit X 0.454 Square Feet = 1.176 Square Feet         
   Attached Dwelling Unit ..... 1.874 Persons per Unit X 0.454 Square Feet = 0.851 Square Feet         
   Single Room Addition ........ 1.000 Persons per Unit X 0.454 Square Feet = 0.454 Square Feet         
 
Amount of the Facility Attributed to the Development Project.  The cost of adding 
0.454 square feet of building space per person is roughly $247 based upon a $543.38 per 
square foot ($525.00 for construction and $18.38 for interior furnishings).  A detached 
dwelling unit with 2.590 persons would require 1.176 square feet of public meeting space 
at a cost of $640 (1.176 square feet X $543.38 per square foot, rounded).  An attached 
dwelling unit requires 0.851 square feet of public meeting space at a cost of about $463 
(0.851 square feet X $543.38 per square foot). Table 5-4, following, indicates the proposed 
Dedicated Public Use DIF.   A single room addition is assumed to support one additional 
resident at $247.00.  
 
 Table 5-4 
 Summary of Dedicated Public Use Facilities Impact Fee 
 

DIF Land-use 
Type 

Impact Fee 
Per Unit 

Detached Dwelling Unit $640 

Attached Dwelling Unit $463 

Single Room Addition  $247 

 
 



Chapter 5 Dedicated Public Use Facilities Development 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 40 

For ease in computation the single room addition is assumed to be 144 square feet (also at 
a generous at 12’ feet by 12”).   Table 5-5 converts this cost to a square foot fee. 
 

Table 5-4 
 Conversion of Dedicated Public Use Facilities Impact Fee 

to a Square Foot Application 
 

Single Room Addition $247 
Designated Average Bedroom Addition 144 

Cost per Square Foot of Bedroom Addition $1.72 
 
 
 

 
RECAP OF POTENTIAL PARK LAND ACQUISITION AND PARK INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
 
Residential Housing – The City could adopt Schedule 5.1 for dedicated Public Use Facilities 
for the two basic residential land-uses and single room addition and ADU’s. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF CHAPTER TEXT 
 
 
 
 
  



Chapter 5 Dedicated Public Use Facilities Development 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 41 

 
 

 
 
 

Schedule 5.1

City of Solana Beach

2017-18 Development Impact Cost Calculation Public Use 

Dedicated Public Use Facilities Facility S.F.

Fletcher Cove Community Center 1,232

Heritage Museum 724

La Colonia Community Center 4,375

Total Dedicated Public Use Square Feet 6,331

Current Population 13,938

0.454

$525.00

Interior Furnishings $18.38

$543.38

$543.38

0.454

$247

Public Use Facility Cost per Land Use Density per Public Use

Residential Dwelling Unit Dwelling Unit Facility Cost

Detached Dwellings (units) 2.590 $640

Attached Dwellings (units) 1.874 $463

Single Room Addition 1.000 $247

Single Bedroom Addition $247

Average Bedroom Size 144

Cost per Square Foot $1.72

Square Foot of Public Use Facility Space per Resident

Public Use Facility Construction Cost per Resident (rounded) 

Public Use Facility Construction per Square Foot

Land Acquisition and Construction per Square Foot

Cost per Public Use Facility Square Foot

Existing Public Use Facility Standard



 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 42 

APPENDIX A – PARK CONSTRUCTION AVERAGE COST 

 

 
  



 Appendix A – Park Construction Average Cost 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 43 

 
 
  



 Appendix A – Park Construction Average Cost 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 44 

 

 
  



 Appendix A – Park Construction Average Cost 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 45 

 
 
  



 Appendix A – Park Construction Average Cost 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 46 

 
  



 Appendix A – Park Construction Average Cost 

 

 

City of Solana Beach  Development Impact Fee 
July 2018  Calculation and Nexus Report 
 Page 47 

 























































































Fee Study Update

for the

City of Solana Beach

JULY 2018

Prepared by:

Revenue & Cost Specialists, LLC

1519 East Chapman Ave, Suite C

Fullerton, CA  92831

www.revenuecost.com
(714) 992-9020

Copyright, 2018 by Revenue & Cost Specialists     



 



 

 

 

 

 

July 2, 2018 

 

Ms. Marie Berkuti, Finance Manager 

City of Solana Beach 

635 South Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

 

Ms. Berkuti, 

 

This Report is submitted pursuant to our contract with the City to perform a revenue and cost 

analysis and to develop a cost distribution and cost control system for the City for its services. 

 

The motivation for this study is the need of both the City Council and City staff to maintain City’s 

services at a level commensurate with the standards previously set by the City Council, and to 

maintain effective policy and management control of City services. 

 

This Report provides current information about the City’s status on recovery of costs for all City 

services.  In addition, it will assist in projecting and determining the future level and equity of 

these City services. 

 

RCS wishes to thank all City department heads and staff for their assistance and cooperation 

extended to us during the accomplishment of our work, without whose aid this Report could not 

have been produced.  The response, awareness and information gathered and supplied by 

numerous City employees make this Report the sound one we believe it to be. 

 

We also believe that your constituents will appreciate your subjecting the City’s operations to 

business costing methodologies, and your willingness to be informed of the true and full costs of 

those services which you have decided the City should provide its citizens. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

     
 

ERIC JOHNSON     CHU THAI 

President      Vice President 



 

 

1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

  
 

 

By acceptance of the Revenue & Cost Specialists (RCS) proposal, the City of Solana Beach 

decided to subject its fee-based services to detailed analysis dedicated toward seeking 

alternate, and more equitable, ways to finance City services provided to the community.  Due to 

the various demands made of the City, it is essential that the City Council and management have 

complete information upon which to assess fees charged to the public for services provided.  

Schedule 1 at the end of this Executive Summary lists each service reviewed in this study.  It 

indicates that the City could realize approximately $692,200 in additional new revenue if the 

recommendations provide herein are adopted and implemented.  

 

Organization of Report.  This Executive Summary explains RCS’s philosophy concerning fee-

based services and cost analysis with a discussion of Costs Generally Defined.  The report then 

lists the Types of Costs included in our analysis and our General Recommendations. 

 

COSTS GENERALLY DEFINED 

 

The basic costs of operating any business are direct labor and employee benefits, direct 

materials, allied indirect costs, overhead costs, and fixed asset or "depreciation" charges.   

 

Determination of Costs.  After the passage of Proposition 13, the California Taxpayers 

Association, the California Chamber of Commerce, the National Tax Limitation Committee and 

the California Association of Realtors put Proposition 4 before the voters. It was adopted by 

74.3% of the voters of California on November 6, 1979, and became effective on July 1, 1980, 

retroactive to Fiscal Year 1978-79. 

 

This proposition, which became Article XIIIB of the State Constitution, addressed all city 

revenues and established a limit on the growth of tax revenues.  Also, because of Proposition 4, 

fee services cannot exceed the “costs reasonably borne” by the City in providing the service. If 

the fee exceeds the cost, the excess fee is defined to be a special tax, which Proposition 13 

requires be approved by two-thirds of the voters. 

 

As Article XIIIB was written by the above business groups, it is not surprising that they 

recommended a business-oriented approach to the costs of governmental services. For 

example: 

 

The phrase costs reasonably borne by such entity in providing the regulation, 

product, or service is intended to incorporate all appropriations by an entity for 



City of Solana Beach Fee Study Update 
 

 

 

2 

reasonable costs appropriate for the continuation of the service over time. This 

includes ongoing expenses such as operation costs and a reasonable allocation 

for overhead and administration, but it also includes reasonable allocation for 

start-up costs and future capacity. Thus, reasonable allocations for capital 

replacement, expansion of services, and repayment of related bond issuances 

would be considered “costs reasonably borne.”1 

  

Principle Involved.  A basic principle involved in this Report is the recognition of those full 

business costs as they are as defined by the authors of the Constitutional amendment, NOT just 

those costs which  1) the City might recognize and decide to budget; or 2) which it might decide 

to use in some other cost analysis methodology; or 3) that other jurisdictions not so complying 

might use; or 4) that some accounting or other consulting firm might decide it should use, based 

on some external, non-California legal requirements. 

 

These cost elements have been determined in a businesslike manner per basic business 

principles, and applied to each and every fee-financed or fee-financeable service provided by the 

City, modified only slightly to accommodate the published intent and definitions of the authors 

of Article XIIIB.  Thus a logical, legal, and Constitutionally-mandated cost-consciousness can 

now be applied to City operations. 

 

TYPES OF COSTS 

 

The following costs, identified above as part of "costs reasonably borne" by the Authors of 

Proposition 4, make up the cost detail found on the right-hand page in Appendix B for each 

service center. 

 

Salaries and Wages 

 

City government is in fact a service industry, and therefore, it is natural that salaries make up the 

largest single element of cost for most services. 

 

Interview Process. In order to allocate the salaries, lengthy interviews were held, documents 

sought and researched, and reports and accounting records examined by RCS. The result was, 

in most cases, a percentage or hours distribution of individual employee personal services costs. 

 

One hundred percent of the time of all City employees was distributed. In other words, everyone 

                     
1  A Summary of Proposed Implementing Legislation and Drafter’s Intent with Regard to Article XIIIB of the California 

Constitution (Proposition 4, November 6, 1979); Spirit of 13, Inc.; 1980; California Chamber of Commerce; page 6. 



City of Solana Beach Fee Study Update 
 

 

 

3 

had to be someplace, all of their time. No judgments were made about what personnel should 

or might be doing. Their time was distributed to those service centers where the time was 

expended. 

 

Employee Fringe Benefits 

 

Since fractional time -- to as low as three minutes per unit of service or one-twentieth of a 

percent of the annual time of an employee has been allocated to service centers, fringe benefit 

costs also must be fractionalized to carefully and accurately distribute those ancillary personnel 

costs. 

 

The City finances numerous benefits for its employees, thereby incurring measurable costs for 

these items, including: 

 

 PERS Retirement 

 Group Health Insurance 

 Medicare Insurance 

 Long Term Disability Insurance 

 Life Insurance 

 Deferred Compensation 

All of these costs are current operating expenses, and the amounts were isolated. Actual costs 

were determined and reduced to a percentage of salary for each of the positions.  

 

Maintenance and Operation Costs 

 

All maintenance and operation costs, including non-personnel expenses such as professional 

services, insurance, operating supplies etc., were derived from the 2017-2018 Council-approved 

budget and allocated via percentages or through actual allocation to each of the service centers 

identified in a department or division. 

 

General and Departmental Overhead Costs 

 

Overhead costs provide the vital glue that holds an organization together operationally and 

provide important coordinating capabilities. They also provide the day-to-day support services 

and facilities required for the organization to function effectively.  RCS has used a detailed Cost 

Allocation Plan (CAP) to identify and allocate these costs to the remainder of the City 



City of Solana Beach Fee Study Update 
 

 

 

4 

organization.  In the CAP, costs were allocated to end-user departments and divisions by 

applying an overhead allocation factor. Each factor was related to the work effort of its particular 

overhead element and was assessed for relevance and reasonableness. 

 

Full Cost Distribution.  The purpose of deriving overhead costs to apportion these amounts to 

direct service program costs.  By adopting this method the City will be aware of its true costs 

and be able to emulate business methods.  Article XIIIB’s (Proposition 4 of 1979) authors 

intended this, defining as part of “costs reasonably borne” a calculated “reasonable allocation 

for overhead and administration.” 

 

General City Overhead.  These services primarily set policy and support other departments 

without providing a deliverable service to the public. Where they do perform an end-user service, 

such costs have not been allocated to other departments. 

 

Costs in this general administration category include the following functions:  

 

 
 

Departmental Administration.  Costs in this category involve intra-departmental support 

functions, outside the above listed general City overhead functions, and involve the allocation 

of staff time within and among departmental functions.  These services also do not provide end-

user deliverables to the public, but instead provide vital administrative support within specific 

departments.   

City Council
6%

City Clerk
9%

City Manager
14%

City Attorney
11%

Finance
20%

Info Syst
6%

HR
4%

Non-Dept
1%

Public Works
11%

Comm Svcs
0%

Equip Use
6%

Bldg Use
12%

Other
5%

General City Administrative Costs



City of Solana Beach Fee Study Update 
 

 

 

5 

 

Fully Allocated Hourly Rates 

 

All of the above items make up the fully allocated hourly rate which is calculated for each 

position in the City.  The makeup of each component of the City-wide average fully allocated 

hourly rate is detailed in the chart below. 

 

 
 
 

Calculation of Revenues.  Many of the revenues included in this Report are calculated based on 

the current fee and the number of projected units of service.  This may be different than the 

current budgeted revenues due to changes to projected volume, which comes from looking at 

historic volume and estimates of current year levels. 

 

  

Salaries
42%

Benefits
12%

Operating 
Expenses

12%

City Overhead
27%

Dept. Overhead
7%

Fully Allocated Hourly Rate Components



City of Solana Beach Fee Study Update  

 

 

 

 

6 

GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Adoption of Modifications to Current Fee Structure 

 

It is recommended that the City Council adjust the fee schedule for the enumerated City services 

presented in Appendix A of this Report.  Continued use of the "full business costing" concept will 

create consistency in the establishment of fees, and allow for timely adjustment to reflect 

changes in the cost of providing services 

 

Review of Suggested Recovery Rates 

 

The City Council should review each service and the suggested recovery rate to determine how 

much of each service should be recovered through fees, and how much should be subsidized 

through the City’s tax dollars.  This review is very important because it gives City staff direction 

as to what the Council wants to subsidize and what it does not. 

 

CONCLUSION 

 

If all the recommendations and suggestions made in this Report are adopted, the City's financial 

picture would be improved.  Also, far more equity between taxpayers and fee-payers, as well as 

fairness between property-related and non-property-related services could be secured, assisting 

in the City's continued financial stability into the future.  The following Schedule 1 portrays the 

various services assessed during our analysis.   

 

Appendix A – Summary of Current and Proposed Fees 

 

Appendix A includes a summary of the current City fees matched up with the proposed fees for 

each service presented. 

 

Appendix B - Detailed Worksheets 

 

The substance of RCS’s work effort on this project is primarily comprised of two different 

worksheets shown in the detail of this report (see Appendix B).  The first, "Revenue and Cost 

Summary Worksheet" is on the left hand side.  These worksheets include a description of the 

service, the current fee structure, the recommended recovery rate, and other pertinent 



City of Solana Beach Fee Study Update  

 

 

 

 

7 

information.  Also included are the revenue and cost comparisons and suggestions for fee 

modifications. 

 

Presented on the facing page, titled "Cost Detail Worksheet", is the worksheet which details the 

costs involved with each service.  This page identifies those employees providing the service, the 

time spent, and their related costs. 

 

 



SCHEDULE 1

POSSIBLE

PROFIT/ NEW

REF # SERVICE TITLE REVENUE COST (SUBSIDY) CURRENT SUGGEST REVENUE

S-001 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESSING $55,800 $51,968 $3,832 107.4% 100% ($3,800)

S-002 COND. USE PERMIT - REVISION/MODIF. $4,336 $6,089 ($1,753) 71.2% 100% $1,800

S-003 COND. USE PERMIT - TIME EXTENSION $1,568 $2,271 ($703) 69.0% 100% $0 #

S-004 DIRECTORS USE PERMIT $16,289 $18,847 ($2,558) 86.4% 100% $2,600

S-005 PLNG DIR. HRNG USE PMT - REVISION $1,222 $1,435 ($213) 85.2% 100% $200

S-006 PLNG DIR HRNG USE PER - TIME EXTEN. $1,020 $1,214 ($194) 84.0% 100% $0 #

S-008 MINOR EXCEPTION REVIEW PROCESSING $1,690 $2,321 ($631) 72.8% 100% $600

S-011 TEMPORARY USE PERMIT PROCESSING $1,425 $1,483 ($58) 96.1% 100% $100

S-012 TEMPORARY USE PERMIT - TIME EXTEN. $630 $725 ($95) 86.9% 100% $0 #

S-013 ZONING LETTER $540 $619 ($79) 87.2% 100% $100

S-014 VARIANCE REVIEW - PROCESSING $2,163 $6,553 ($4,390) 33.0% 100% $4,400

S-017 APPEAL TO THE CITY COUNCIL $5,316 $8,179 ($2,863) 65.0% 100% $2,900

S-018 GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT $10,000 $11,016 ($1,016) 90.8% 100% $0 #

S-019 REZONING/SPECIFIC PLAN REVIEW $10,000 $11,016 ($1,016) 90.8% 100% $0 #

S-020 ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT $5,000 $11,248 ($6,248) 44.5% 100% $0 #

S-021 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT - PROCESS $221,160 $375,399 ($154,239) 58.9% 100% $154,200

S-022 DEVELOP REV PERMIT - REVIS/MODIF $6,704 $6,336 $368 105.8% 100% ($400)

S-023 DEVELOP REV PERMIT - TIME EXTENSION $1,977 $2,069 ($92) 95.6% 100% $0 #

S-024 MAJOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP $10,858 $13,997 ($3,139) 77.6% 100% $0 #

S-025 MAJOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAP $5,777 $4,857 $920 118.9% 100% $0 #

S-026 MAJOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT. $3,332 $4,094 ($762) 81.4% 100% $0 #

S-027 MAJOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSION $2,615 $3,778 ($1,163) 69.2% 100% $0 #

S-028 MINOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP $17,348 $21,446 ($4,098) 80.9% 100% $4,100

S-029 MINOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAP $8,004 $7,865 $139 101.8% 100% ($100)

S-030 MINOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT. $2,593 $3,219 ($626) 80.6% 100% $0 #

S-031 MINOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSION $2,418 $3,116 ($698) 77.6% 100% $0 #

S-032B ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION N/A N/A N/A N/A 100% $0

S-035 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT N/A N/A N/A N/A 100% $0

S-036 STRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT $5,208 $25,129 ($19,921) 20.7% 100% $19,900

S-036A STRUCTURE DEV PERM WAIVER/TIME EXT $7,920 $6,618 $1,302 119.7% 100% ($1,300)

S-037 APPLICATION FOR VIEW ASSESSMENT $18,000 $80,474 ($62,474) 22.4% 100% $62,500

S-038A VIEW ASSESSMENT COMM. APPEAL TO CC $300 $1,754 ($1,454) 17.1% 100% $0 #

PERCENT RECOVERY

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SUMMARY OF REVENUES, COSTS, AND SUBSIDIES

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018

Page 1 of 4



SCHEDULE 1

POSSIBLE

PROFIT/ NEW

REF # SERVICE TITLE REVENUE COST (SUBSIDY) CURRENT SUGGEST REVENUE

PERCENT RECOVERY

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SUMMARY OF REVENUES, COSTS, AND SUBSIDIES

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018

S-038B VIEW ASSESSMENT CD DIR APPEAL TO CC N/A N/A N/A N/A 100% $0

S-039 STANDARD SIGN PERMIT PROCESSING $10,045 $11,608 ($1,563) 86.5% 100% $1,600

S-040 COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN REVIEW $1,722 $2,815 ($1,093) 61.2% 100% $1,100

S-041 COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN AMENDMENT $532 $496 $36 107.3% 100% $0

S-044 TEMPORARY SIGN/BANNER $232 $442 ($210) 52.5% 100% $200

S-045 LANDSCAPE PLAN REVIEW/INSPECTION N/A N/A N/A N/A 100% $0

S-046 STREET ADDRESS CHANGE $1,784 $2,004 ($220) 89.0% 100% $200

S-046A PLANNING PUBLIC NOTICING $0 $50,516 ($50,516) 0.0% 100% $50,500

S-046B TECHNOLOGY SURCHARGE $0 $34,160 ($34,160) 0.0% 100% $34,200

S-047 LOT LINE ADJ./CERT. OF COMPL. REV. $4,161 $5,499 ($1,338) 75.7% 100% $1,300

S-048 GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. PLAN CHECK $59,800 $83,189 ($23,389) 71.9% 100% $23,400

S-050 GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. INSPECTION $59,800 $51,727 $8,073 115.6% 100% ($8,100)

S-051 ENCROACHMENT PERMIT PROC/INSPECTION $65,863 $90,449 ($24,586) 72.8% 100% $24,600

S-051A MISCELLANEOUS ENGINEERING PERMIT $0 $1,112 ($1,112) 0.0% 100% $1,100

S-051B EASEMENT ABANDON/STREET VACATION $0 $1,715 ($1,715) 0.0% 100% $0 #

S-051C EASEMENT/R.O.W. DEDICATION $0 $950 ($950) 0.0% 100% $1,000

S-051D GOLF CART PERMIT $1,000 $399 $601 250.6% 100% ($500)

S-052 PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW $7,730 $13,833 ($6,103) 55.9% 100% $3,000

S-053 BUILDING PLAN CHECK & INSPECTION $515,000 $616,688 ($101,688) 83.5% 100% $77,300

S-056 BUILDING PERMIT EXTENSION REVIEW $329 $232 $97 141.8% 100% $0 #

S-079 MARINE SAFETY PERMIT $3,000 $3,247 ($247) 92.4% 100% $0

SUBTOTAL - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  $1,162,211 $1,666,216 ($504,005) 69.8% $458,700

S-053A FIRE BUILDING PLAN CHECK/INSPECTION $7,070 $26,027 ($18,957) 27.2% 100% $19,000

S-054 COMM. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSP $230 $723 ($493) 31.8% 100% $500

S-054A RES. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSP $1,970 $2,420 ($450) 81.4% 100% $500

S-055 FIRE ALARM/MONITOR SYSTEM PC/INSP $205 $560 ($355) 36.6% 100% $400

S-055A FIRE SPEC PROT SYSTEM PC/INSP $205 $199 $6 103.0% 100% $0

S-055B FIRE SOLAR SYSTEM PLAN CHECK/INSP $0 $1,061 ($1,061) 0.0% 100% $1,100

S-066 BUSINESS FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION $85,590 $210,304 ($124,714) 40.7% 100% $124,700

S-067 FIRE ALT. MATERIALS & METHODS REV. $0 $1,591 ($1,591) 0.0% 100% $1,600

Page 2 of 4



SCHEDULE 1

POSSIBLE

PROFIT/ NEW

REF # SERVICE TITLE REVENUE COST (SUBSIDY) CURRENT SUGGEST REVENUE

PERCENT RECOVERY

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SUMMARY OF REVENUES, COSTS, AND SUBSIDIES

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018

S-068 U/G TANK INSTALL/REMOVE PC/INSPECT. $351 $398 ($47) 88.2% 100% $0

S-069 NEW DEVELOPMENT FLOW TEST N/A N/A N/A N/A 100% $0

S-070 MISCELLANEOUS FIRE INSPECTION $0 $133 ($133) 0.0% 100% $100

S-071 AFTER HOUR INSPECTION $330 $265 $65 124.5% 100% $0

S-073 STAND-BY CHARGE $470 $623 ($153) 75.4% 100% $0

S-077 JUNIOR LIFEGUARD PROGRAM $371,000 $516,888 ($145,888) 71.8% 60% $0

SUBTOTAL - PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES  $467,421 $761,192 ($293,771) 61.4% $147,900

S-080 SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT $2,000 $31,201 ($29,201) 6.4% 100% $29,200

S-085 CONTRACT ENRICHMENT CLASSES N/A N/A N/A N/A 100% $0

S-086 DAY CAMP PROGRAM $59,700 $95,234 ($35,534) 62.7% 40% $0

S-091 SPORTS FIELD MANAGEMENT $0 $3,116 ($3,116) 0.0% 50% $0

S-094 FACILITY RENTAL (COMM. CENTER) $27,822 $208,002 ($180,180) 13.4% 20% $0

SUBTOTAL - RECREATION SERVICES  $89,522 $337,553 ($248,031) 26.5% $29,200

S-057A SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL PERMIT $5,260 $11,753 ($6,493) 44.8% 100% $6,500

S-111 BUSINESS REGISTRATION - DUPLICATE $170 $190 ($20) 89.5% 100% $0

S-112 BUSINESS REGISTRATION - NEW $80,400 $104,119 ($23,719) 77.2% 100% $23,700

S-113 BUSINESS REGISTRATION - RENEWAL $73,700 $99,204 ($25,504) 74.3% 100% $25,500

S-114A AMUSEMENT PERMIT $508 $373 $135 136.2% 100% $0 #

S-114B DANCE PERMIT $192 $373 ($181) 51.5% 100% $0 #

S-114C ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT $780 $373 $407 209.1% 100% $0 #

S-114D FIREARMS SALE PERMIT $224 $506 ($282) 44.3% 100% $300

S-114E MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT PERMIT $2,425 $774 $1,651 313.3% 100% ($1,700)

S-114F SECONDHAND DEALER PERMIT $374 $506 ($132) 73.9% 100% $100

S-114G SOLICITORS PERMIT $241 $746 ($505) 32.3% 100% $500

S-114H TAXI BUSINESS PERMIT $7,831 $8,878 ($1,047) 88.2% 100% $1,000

S-114I TOBACCO SALES PERMIT $685 $907 ($222) 75.5% 100% $200

SUBTOTAL - BUSINESS REGISTRATION SVCS  $172,790 $228,702 ($55,912) 75.6% $56,100

Page 3 of 4



SCHEDULE 1

POSSIBLE

PROFIT/ NEW

REF # SERVICE TITLE REVENUE COST (SUBSIDY) CURRENT SUGGEST REVENUE

PERCENT RECOVERY

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SUMMARY OF REVENUES, COSTS, AND SUBSIDIES

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018

S-115 NOTARY PUBLIC SERVICE $70 $264 ($194) 26.5% 40% $0

S-116 DOCUMENT CERTIFICATION $420 $452 ($32) 92.9% 100% $0

S-117 CC MEETING REPRODUCTION $1,005 $1,136 ($131) 88.5% 100% $100

S-118 ANNUAL AGENDA MAILING SUBSCRIPTION $436 $325 $111 134.2% 100% $0 #

S-118A ANNUAL AGENDA PACKET SUBSCRIPTION $1,063 $957 $106 111.1% 100% $0 #

S-118B ANNUAL SPECIAL NOTICE SUBSCRIPTION $44 $50 ($6) 88.0% 100% $0 #

S-119 DOCUMENT PRINTING & COPYING $280 $479 ($199) 58.5% 100% $0

S-120 CANDIDATE PROCESSING $0 $1,808 ($1,808) 0.0% 5% $100

S-121 INITIATIVE PROCESSING $200 $1,205 ($1,005) 16.6% 15% $0

S-122 VERIFICATION OF RESIDENCY $63 $188 ($125) 33.5% 50% $0

S-123 NSF CHECK $175 $276 ($101) 63.4% 100% $100

SUBTOTAL - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES  $3,756 $7,140 ($3,384) 52.6% $300

GRAND TOTAL  $1,895,700 $3,000,803 ($1,105,103) 63.2% $692,200

NOTES:

# - INSUFFICIENT VOLUME

Page 4 of 4



THIS PAGE

INTENTIONALLY BLANK



APPENDIX A

SUMMARY
OF

CURRENT FEES
AND

PROPOSED FEES



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-001 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$8,660 per application

Bluff Retention Device CUP - requires additional deposit for third 
party reviews plus 15%

Wireless Communications Facility CUP - requires additional 
deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

$9,300 per application

Bluff Retention Device CUP - requires additional deposit for third 
party reviews plus 15%

Wireless Communications Facility CUP - requires additional 
deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

S-002 COND. USE PERMIT - REVISION/MODIF.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$3,045 per application$2,168 per application

S-003 COND. USE PERMIT - TIME EXTENSIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$2,270 per application$1,568 per application

S-004 DIRECTORS USE PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Telecomm - $2,600 per application
Other - $2,820 per application

Wireless Communications Facility - requires additional deposit for 
third party reviews plus 15%

$2,327 per application

S-005 PLNG DIR. HRNG USE PMT - REVISIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,435 per application$1,222 per application

S-006 PLNG DIR HRNG USE PER - TIME EXTEN.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,215 per application$1,020 per application

June 28, 2018
    1



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-008 MINOR EXCEPTION REVIEW PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,160 per application$845 per application

S-011 TEMPORARY USE PERMIT PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,485 per application$1,425 per application

S-012 TEMPORARY USE PERMIT - TIME EXTEN.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$725 per application$630 per application

S-013 ZONING LETTERREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$155 per letter$135 per letter

S-014 VARIANCE REVIEW - PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$6,555 per application$2,163 per application

S-017 APPEAL TO THE CITY COUNCILREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

The total cost is $4,090 per appeal

Fees with current subsidies:
  Resident - $1,635 per appeal
  Other - $4,090 per appeal

Resident - $1,063 per appeal
Other - $2,658 per appeal

June 28, 2018
    2



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-018 GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.

S-019 REZONING/SPECIFIC PLAN REVIEWREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.

S-020 ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.

$5,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the 
fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.

S-021 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT - PROCESSREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Level I - $10,215 per application
Level II - $17,115 per application or a deposit determined by staff 
with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

Current subsidy policy is for projects not requiring an EIR that are 
submitted by a resident be charged at 50% total cost recovery.

Projects not requiring an EIR:
  Resident - $3,030 per application
  Other - $6,058 per application

Projects requiring an EIR - $10,000 deposit or a deposit determined 
by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all 
personnel involved plus any outside costs.

S-022 DEVELOP REV PERMIT - REVIS/MODIFREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Total cost is $3,170 per application

Resident - $1,585 per application
Other - $3,170 per application

Resident - $1,595 per application
Other - $3,352 per application

June 28, 2018
    3



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-023 DEVELOP REV PERMIT - TIME EXTENSIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$2,070 per application$1,977 per application

S-024 MAJOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$14,000 per map$10,858 per map

S-025 MAJOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$4,855 per map$5,777 per map

S-026 MAJOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$4,095 per application$3,332 per application

S-027 MAJOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$3,780 per application$2,615 per application

S-028 MINOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$10,725 per map$8,674 per map

June 28, 2018
    4



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-029 MINOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$3,935 per map$4,002 per map

S-030 MINOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$3,220 per application$2,593 per application

S-031 MINOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$3,115 per application$2,418 per application

S-032B ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

S-035 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

S-036 STRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$3,590 per application for 100% cost recovery

If in conjunction with a Development Review Permit, this fee will 
instead be $1,075 per application (30% of the total fee).

$744 per application

This fee is not charged in conjunction with a Development Review 
Permit.

June 28, 2018
    5



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-036A STRUCTURE DEV PERM WAIVER/TIME EXTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$550 per application

Time Extenstion Fee is not charged in conjunction with a 
Development Review Permit Time Extension.

$660 per application

Time Extenstion Fee is not charged in conjunction with a 
Development Review Permit Time Extension.

S-037 APPLICATION FOR VIEW ASSESSMENTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

To recover 100% of the costs:

$2,435 - neighbor
$2,435 - original applicant
These fees are paid by each.

$2,475 - each additional meeting after the first meeting

If resolved before review by the View Assessment Commission, 
then 50% of the fee shall be refunded.

$600 - neighbor 
$600 - applicant 

These fees are paid by each.

S-038A VIEW ASSESSMENT COMM. APPEAL TO CCREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,755 per application for 100% cost recovery$300 per appeal

S-038B VIEW ASSESSMENT CD DIR APPEAL TO CCREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

This fee would be charged as an Appeal to the City Council (S-017) 
and not as a separate fee.

$600 per appeal

S-039 STANDARD SIGN PERMIT PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$330 per application

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a 
permit.

$287 per application

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a 
permit.

June 28, 2018
    6



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-040 COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN REVIEWREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$940 per application

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a 
permit.

$574 per application 

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a 
permit.

S-041 COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN AMENDMENTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$495 per application$532 per application

S-044 TEMPORARY SIGN/BANNERREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$110 per application$58 per application

S-045 LANDSCAPE PLAN REVIEW/INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

Deposit for contractor at $125/hr with additional 15% for City review

S-046 STREET ADDRESS CHANGEREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$245 for first five addresses plus $55 for each additional five 
addresses per application

$223 per address

S-046A PLANNING PUBLIC NOTICINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$535 per notice plus actual postage and newspaper costs

If a project has more than one notice, this fee would be charged for 
each notice.

None

June 28, 2018
    7



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-046B TECHNOLOGY SURCHARGEREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Charge 1% of all Building Plan Check and Permit feesNone

S-047 LOT LINE ADJ./CERT. OF COMPL. REV.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,835 per application or a deposit determined by staff with 
charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved 
plus any outside costs.

$1,387 per application

S-048 GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. PLAN CHECKREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Construction Valuation: ($1,000 minimum fee)
$0-$20,000 - 10% of the constructution value
$20,001-$80,000 - $2,000 + 3% of the construction value over 
$20,000
$80,001-$200,000 - $3,800 + 1% of the construction value over 
$80,000
$200,001+- $5,000 + 1% of the construction value over $200,000 
or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated 
hourly rates

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the 
fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel used.

Construction Valuation: ($1,020 minimum fee)
$0 - $20,000 - 5%
$20,001 - $80,000 - 4.5%
$80,001 - $400,000 - 4%
$400,001+ - 3%

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the 
fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel used.

S-050 GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Construction Valuation: ($1,000 minimum fee)
$0-$20,000 - 5% of the constructution value
$20,001-$80,000 - $1,000 + 1.5% of the construction value over 
$20,000
$80,001-$200,000 - $1,900 + 1% of the construction value over 
$80,000
$200,001+- $3,100 + 1% of the construction value over $200,000 
or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated 
hourly rates

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the 
fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel used.

Construction Valuation: ($1,020 minimum)
$0 - $20,000 - 5%
$20,001 - $80,000 - 4.5%
$80,001 - $400,000 - 4%
$400,001+ - 3%

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the 
fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel used.

June 28, 2018
    8



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-051 ENCROACHMENT PERMIT PROC/INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Street Cut - $755 per permit
Standard - $530 per permit

Street Cut - $611 per permit
Standard - $261 per permit

S-051A MISCELLANEOUS ENGINEERING PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$220 per permitNone

S-051B EASEMENT ABANDON/STREET VACATIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$1,715 per application or a deposit determined by staff with 
charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved 
plus any outside costs.

None

S-051C EASEMENT/R.O.W. DEDICATIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$475 per applicationNone

S-051D GOLF CART PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$10 per permit$20 per permit

S-052 PRE-APPLICATION REVIEWREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$2,765 per application

50% of the fee to be credited against future fees if the project goes 
forward within six months.

$1,546 per application

50% of the fee to be credited against future fees if the project goes 
forward.

June 28, 2018
    9



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-053 BUILDING PLAN CHECK & INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Increase all Building Plan Check and Permit fees by 15%, except 
for:

Green Building Fees - No Change

Commercial Photovoltain Plan Check/Inspection - No Change

Contract with Esgil in which the City receives 25% of the plan 
check and permit revenues collected.  Esgil uses the Uniform 
Building Code Table 3-A to establish fees to be charged.

Green Building PC/Inspection - 0-50,000 SF - 3% of Bldg PC/Insp 
fee
    50,001+ SF - 1% of Bldg PC/Insp Fee 

Commercial Photovoltaic PC/Inspection (based on valuation - 
$0-$100,000 - $695    $100,001-$500,000 - $865    
$500,001-$1,000,000 - $950    $1,000,001+ - $1,120

S-053A FIRE BUILDING PLAN CHECK/INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Commercial:
  Plan Check - $200 per plan
  Inspection - $135 per inspection
Residential:
  Plan Check - $135 per plan
  Inspection - $100 per inspection

Reinspection (3rd Inspection) - $100 per reinspection

$70 per plan

S-054 COMM. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Plan Check:
  Tenant Improvement - $65
  New - Actual Costs
Inspection:
  Tenant Improvement - $135
  New - $525
 

Plan Check:
  1-10 heads - $45
  11-50 heads - $135
  51+ heads - $270
Inspection:
  1-10 heads - $70
  11-50 heads - $300
  51+ heads - $600

June 28, 2018
   10



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-054A RES. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

0-2,500 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $200    Inspection Only - $100
2,501-5,000 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $265    Inspection Only - $135
5,001-7,000 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $300    Inspection Only - $165
7,001-10,000 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $400    Inspection Only - 
$200
10,000+ Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $430    Inspection Only - $230

Plan Check:
  1-10 heads - $45
  11-50 heads - $135
  51+ heads - $270
Inspection:
  1-10 heads - $70
  11-50 heads - $300
  51+ heads - $600

S-055 FIRE ALARM/MONITOR SYSTEM PC/INSPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Plan Check - $135 or actual costs with charges at the fully 
allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any outside 
costs.
Inspection - $430

Plan Check:
  1-10 devices - $135
  11-50 devices - $270
  51+ heads - $400
Inspection:
  1-10 devices - $70
  11-50 devices - $135
  51+ heads - $200

S-055A FIRE SPEC PROT SYSTEM PC/INSPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$200 per planPlan Check - $135
Inspection - $70

S-055B FIRE SOLAR SYSTEM PLAN CHECK/INSPREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Single Family Residential - included as part of Building fees
Multi-Family, Commercial, or Industrial - $265

None

S-056 BUILDING PERMIT EXTENSION REVIEWREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$230 per application$329 per application

June 28, 2018
   11



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-057A SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $100 per permit
  Late Fee - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
Renewal - $55 per permit
  Late Fees - 31-90 days late - $17 plus renewal fee
    91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

By Municipal Code, this fee is defined as the same fee as a new 
business certificate.  The code should be changed to remove that 
conenction.

New - $110 per permit
  Late Fee - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
Renewal - $17 per permit
  Late Fees - 31-90 days late - $17 plus renewal fee
    91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

S-066 BUSINESS FIRE SAFETY INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

B, R2, R2.1 Occupancies:
  0-1,000 SF - $100
  1,001-3,500 SF - $200
  3,501-10,000 SF - $265
  10,001 SF - $795
All Other Occupancies:
  0-1,000 SF - $200
  1,001-3,500 SF - $400
  3,501-10,000 SF - $530
  10,001 SF - $1,060

New:
  0-1,000 SF - $150
  1,001-3,500 SF - $170
  3,501-10,000 SF - $265
  10,001 SF - $570
Renewal:
  0-1,000 SF - $55
  1,001-3,500 SF - $75
  3,501-10,000 SF - $170
  10,001 SF - $475

S-067 FIRE ALT. MATERIALS & METHODS REV.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$265 per application plus actual costs at the fully allocated hourly 
rates for all time after two hours

None

S-068 U/G TANK INSTALL/REMOVE PC/INSPECT.REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$400 per permit$351 per permit

S-069 NEW DEVELOPMENT FLOW TESTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

This service is now provided by the Water District.$191 per test

June 28, 2018
   12



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-070 MISCELLANEOUS FIRE INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$135 per hourNone

S-071 AFTER HOUR INSPECTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates ($265 minimum)$330 minimum plus actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates

S-073 STAND-BY CHARGEREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates ($600 minimum)$470 minimum plus actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates

S-077 JUNIOR LIFEGUARD PROGRAMREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

This program is recovering 101% of its direct program costs and 
72% of its total costs.

Due to upcoming changes to the program, no changes to the fees 
are recommended at this time until the effects of the program 
changes are identified.

2 week session - $250 (Non-resident) $225 (Resident)
4 week session - $375 (Non-resident) $350 (Resident)
5 week session - $450 (Non-resident) $425 (Resident)

S-079 MARINE SAFETY PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Ramp Fee - $5.30 per round trip
Trip Fee - $2.70 per ton
plus $27 per day for days 1-30 and $53 per day for 31 and 
subsequent days
plus actual staffing costs

plus 15% deposit management fee

Ramp Fee - $5.30 per round trip
Trip Fee - $2.70 per ton
plus $27 per day for days 1-30 and $53 per day for 31 and 
subsequent days
plus actual staffing costs

A deposit is collected and these fees are charged agains tthe 
deposit.

June 28, 2018
   13



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-080 SPECIAL EVENT PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$765 per permit

If event involves a lane or street closure, then charge the actual 
cost for the planning of the event.

Plus actual costs incurred the day of the event

Resident/Non-Profit - $50
Non-Resident - $250

S-085 CONTRACT ENRICHMENT CLASSESREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

No ChangeThe Class Instructor receives 70% of the class fee and the City 
receives 30% of the class fee.

S-086 DAY CAMP PROGRAMREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

This program is recovering 102% of its direct program costs, and 
63% of its total costs, including facility maintenance and 
replacement.

Resident - $106 per week 
Non-Resident - $123 per week
Aftercare Program - $27 per week

S-091 SPORTS FIELD MANAGEMENTREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

No ChangeResident/Non-Profit - No Charge
Other - $20 per hour

S-094 FACILITY RENTAL (COMM. CENTER)REF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

No ChangeLa Colonia:
  Resident - $60 per hour
  Non-Resident - $65 per hour

Fletcher Cove - fees are set by initiative

S-111 BUSINESS REGISTRATION - DUPLICATEREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$20 per duplicate$17 per duplicate

June 28, 2018
   14



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-112 BUSINESS REGISTRATION - NEWREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Home Base/Located outside the City - $100 per application
Business located within the City - $225 per application

Late Fees:
  90 days late - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
  91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

Home Base/Outside City - $110
Inside City:
  0-1,000 SF - $150
  1,001-3,500 SF - $170
  3,501-10,000 SF - $265
  10,001 SF - $570
Late Fees:
  90 days late - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
  91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

S-113 BUSINESS REGISTRATION - RENEWALREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$47 per renewal

Plus 100% late fee if more than 60 days late

Thereafter Administrative Citation Process

Home Base/Outside City - $17
Inside City:
  0-1,000 SF - $55
  1,001-3,500 SF - $75
  3,501-10,000 SF - $170
  10,001 SF - $475
Late Fees:
  31-90 days late - $17 plus the cost of the Renewal
  91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

S-114A AMUSEMENT PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $271 per permit plus $62 per device
Renewal - $237 per permit plus $62 per device

S-114B DANCE PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $117 per permit
Renewal - $75 per permit

S-114C ENTERTAINMENT PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $406 per permit
Renewal - $374 per permit

June 28, 2018
   15



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-114D FIREARMS SALE PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $138 per permit
Renewal - $43 per permit

S-114E MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $541 per permit ($509 + $32 DOJ fee + $32 for each 
co-owner or corporate officer
Renewal - $471 per permit + 10% per month for late renewal fees 
after 30 days expired

S-114F SECONDHAND DEALER PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $278 per permit + $32 DOJ Fees plus $32 for each 
co-owner or corporate officer plus $195 for additional state fees
Renewal - $48 per permit plus $10 State fees

S-114G SOLICITORS PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240 per permit plus $105 for each additional solicitor plus 
DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

New - $159 per permit + $32 DOJ Fees plus $82 for each 
additional solicitor
Renewal - None

S-114H TAXI BUSINESS PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $345 per permit plus $20 for each cab plus DOJ and other 
State fees
Renewal - $185 per permit plus $20 for each cab plus DOJ and 
other State fees

New - $131 per permit + $32 DOJ Fees plus $32 for each 
co-owner or corporate officer plus $195 for additional state fees 
plus $53 per cab
Renewal - $113 per permit plus $10 State fees plus $53 per cab

June 28, 2018
   16



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-114I TOBACCO SALES PERMITREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

New - $240
Renewal - $135
Late Fee - Renewal fee + 10%

New - $135
Renewal - $110
Duplicate - $10
Late Fee - Renewal fee + 10%

S-115 NOTARY PUBLIC SERVICEREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$15 per signature.

This fee is set by the State

$10 per signature.

This fee is set by the State

S-116 DOCUMENT CERTIFICATIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$40 per item$35 per item

S-117 CC MEETING REPRODUCTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

Audio CD - $21.25
DVD - $21.25
Convert VHS to DVD - $41.25
Convert Audio Cassette to CD/MP4 - Actual Costs

Audio CD - $15
DVD - $15
Convert VHS to DVD - $45

S-118 ANNUAL AGENDA MAILING SUBSCRIPTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$325 staff costs plus $57 copying/mailing costs = $382 per 
subscriber per year

$436 staff costs plus $38 copying/mailing costs = $474 per 
subscriber per year

S-118A ANNUAL AGENDA PACKET SUBSCRIPTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$955 staff costs plus $600 copying/mailing costs = $1,555 per 
subscriber per year

$1,063 staff costs plus $478.50 copying/mailing costs = $1,542 per 
subscriber per year

June 28, 2018
   17



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-118B ANNUAL SPECIAL NOTICE SUBSCRIPTIONREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$50 staff costs plus $4 copying/mailing costs = $54 per subscriber 
per year

$44 staff costs plus $3 copying/mailing costs = $47 per subscriber 
per year

S-119 DOCUMENT PRINTING & COPYINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

All Copies - First 10 pages - No Charge   $0.20 per page for every 
page thereafter
Document Imaging  - First 10 pages - No Charge   $0.15 per page 
for every page thereafter
Data Copy - $8 per device
Agenda Packet - $65
Maps/Blueprints - Actual Costs

Black and White Copy - $1 for first page plus $0.10 per page for 
every page thereafter
Color Copy - $1 for first page plus $0.20 per page for every page 
thereafter
Document Imaging  - $1 for first page plus $0.02 per page for every 
page thereafter
Data Copy - $8
Agenda Packet - $65
Maps/Blueprints - Actual Costs

S-120 CANDIDATE PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$25 per candidate

This fee is set by the State.

None

S-121 INITIATIVE PROCESSINGREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$200 per intiative

This fee is set by the State.

$200 per initiative

S-122 VERIFICATION OF RESIDENCYREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$19 per request$12.50 per request

June 28, 2018
   18



City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

FEE COMPARISON REPORT

S-123 NSF CHECKREF #: TITLE:

CURRENT FEE RECOMMENDED FEE

$55 per NSF check$35 per NSF check

June 28, 2018
   19



APPENDIX B

REVENUE AND COST
SUMMARY WORKSHEETS

Matched With
COST DETAIL WORKSHEETS



S-001CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESSING

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing request for discretionary entitlement and developing compliance conditions to meet community 
standards. Examples are religious facilities, private schools, night clubs, bars and liquor stores in commercial 
zones.

$9,300 per application

Bluff Retention Device CUP - requires additional deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

Wireless Communications Facility CUP - requires additional deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

$8,660 per application

Bluff Retention Device CUP - requires additional deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

Wireless Communications Facility CUP - requires additional deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

   100%

       $9,300.00

       $8,661.33

        $638.67

             6

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   107.37%

         $3,832

         $51,968

         $55,800

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESSING S-001

             6

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            6         $4,953

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            6         $1,327

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          35.00      $5,413.80            6        $32,483

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           6.00        $838.26            6         $5,030

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           4.00        $928.20            6         $5,569

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $331.34            6         $1,988

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            6           $619

       $51,968     $8,661.33         53.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $51,968         53.00TOTALS         $8,661.33



S-002COND. USE PERMIT - REVISION/MODIF.

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a revision or modification to an already approved conditional use permit.

$2,168 per application

$3,045 per application

   100%

       $2,168.00

       $3,044.50

       $(876.50)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    71.21%

        $(1,753)

          $6,089

          $4,336

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

COND. USE PERMIT - REVISION/MODIF. S-002

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            2           $550

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            2           $442

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          13.00      $2,010.84            2         $4,022

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $139.71            2           $279

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            2           $464

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            2           $331

        $6,089     $3,044.51         19.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $6,089         19.00TOTALS         $3,044.50



S-003COND. USE PERMIT - TIME EXTENSION

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing an extension of time on an approved conditional use permit to allow the applicant more time to 
complete the project.

$1,568 per application

$2,270 per application

   100%

       $1,568.00

       $2,271.00

       $(703.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    69.04%

          $(703)

          $2,271

          $1,568

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

COND. USE PERMIT - TIME EXTENSION S-003

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            1           $275

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           8.00      $1,237.44            1         $1,237

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $139.71            1           $140

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            1           $232

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            1           $166

        $2,271     $2,271.11         14.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $2,271         14.00TOTALS         $2,271.00



S-004DIRECTORS USE PERMIT

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing request for discretionary entitlement and developing compliance conditions to meet community 
standards as defined by the Zoning Ordinance.

$2,327 per application

Telecomm - $2,600 per application
Other - $2,820 per application

Wireless Communications Facility - requires additional deposit for third party reviews plus 15%

   100%

       $2,327.00

       $2,692.43

       $(365.43)

             7

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    86.43%

        $(2,558)

         $18,847

         $16,289

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DIRECTORS USE PERMIT S-004

             7

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           0.50         $69.86            7           $489

          $489        $69.86          0.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            3         $2,476

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER          16.00      $1,768.80            3         $5,306

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           1.00        $154.68            3           $464

        $8,247     $2,748.90         20.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR Telecom Only           3.00        $825.42            4         $3,302

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER Telecom Only          14.00      $1,547.70            4         $6,191

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Telecom Only           1.00        $154.68            4           $619

       $10,111     $2,527.80         18.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $18,847         38.50TOTALS         $2,692.43



S-005PLNG DIR. HRNG USE PMT - REVISION

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a revision or modification to an already approved Planning Director Use Permit.

$1,222 per application

$1,435 per application

   100%

       $1,222.00

       $1,435.00

       $(213.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    85.16%

          $(213)

          $1,435

          $1,222

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

PLNG DIR. HRNG USE PMT - REVISION S-005

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           2.00        $550.28            1           $550

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           8.00        $884.40            1           $884

        $1,435     $1,434.68         10.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,435         10.00TOTALS         $1,435.00



S-006PLNG DIR HRNG USE PER - TIME EXTEN.

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing an extension of time on an approved Planning Director Use Permit to allow the applicant additional 
time to complete the project.

$1,020 per application

$1,215 per application

   100%

       $1,020.00

       $1,214.00

       $(194.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    84.02%

          $(194)

          $1,214

          $1,020

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

PLNG DIR HRNG USE PER - TIME EXTEN. S-006

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           2.00        $550.28            1           $550

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           6.00        $663.30            1           $663

        $1,214     $1,213.58          8.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,214          8.00TOTALS         $1,214.00



S-008MINOR EXCEPTION REVIEW PROCESSING

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing proposed (variance) minor deviation with City codes to determine if the deviation is within permissable 
limits for Parking Standards and Wall/Fence Heights.

$845 per application

$1,160 per application

   100%

         $845.00

       $1,160.50

       $(315.50)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    72.81%

          $(631)

          $2,321

          $1,690

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MINOR EXCEPTION REVIEW PROCESSING S-008

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            2           $550

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           6.00        $663.30            2         $1,327

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           1.00        $154.68            2           $309

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           0.25         $41.42            2            $83

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           0.25         $25.80            2            $52

        $2,321     $1,160.34          8.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $2,321          8.50TOTALS         $1,160.50



S-011TEMPORARY USE PERMIT PROCESSING

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing request for a temporary use permit for a specific use of a specific parcel of property within terms of 
the Zoning Code.  Examples are parking lot sales, christmas tree lots, temporary construction trailers.

$1,425 per application

$1,485 per application

   100%

       $1,425.00

       $1,483.00

        $(58.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    96.09%

           $(58)

          $1,483

          $1,425

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT PROCESSING S-011

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            1           $825

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           4.00        $442.20            1           $442

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           0.75         $99.47            1            $99

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           0.50        $116.03            1           $116

        $1,483     $1,483.12          8.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,483          8.25TOTALS         $1,483.00



S-012TEMPORARY USE PERMIT - TIME EXTEN.

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a temporary use permit application to determine if time extension should be permitted with or without 
new restrictions.

$630 per application

$725 per application

   100%

         $630.00

         $725.00

        $(95.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    86.90%

           $(95)

            $725

            $630

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT - TIME EXTEN. S-012

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.50        $412.71            1           $413

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           0.25         $33.16            1            $33

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           0.25         $58.01            1            $58

          $725       $724.98          4.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $725          4.00TOTALS           $725.00



S-013ZONING LETTER

LETTER Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Processing a request for the zoning information of a particular parcel

$135 per letter

$155 per letter

   100%

         $135.00

         $154.75

        $(19.75)

             4

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    87.24%

           $(79)

            $619

            $540

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ZONING LETTER S-013

             4

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           1.00        $154.68            4           $619

          $619       $154.68          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $619          1.00TOTALS           $154.75



S-014VARIANCE REVIEW - PROCESSING

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

A review to determine if unique site-specific circumstances warrant flexibility in application of standard code 
requirements.

$2,163 per application

$6,555 per application

   100%

       $2,163.00

       $6,553.00

     $(4,390.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    33.01%

        $(4,390)

          $6,553

          $2,163

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

VARIANCE REVIEW - PROCESSING S-014

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            1           $825

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          35.00      $5,413.80            1         $5,414

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           0.25         $34.93            1            $35

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           0.25         $58.01            1            $58

        $6,553     $6,553.26         40.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $6,553         40.50TOTALS         $6,553.00



S-017APPEAL TO THE CITY COUNCIL

Request Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Processing and reviewing an appeal of the Planning Director's interpretation of the code to the City Council.

Resident - $1,063 per appeal
Other - $2,658 per appeal

The total cost is $4,090 per appeal

Fees with current subsidies:
  Resident - $1,635 per appeal
  Other - $4,090 per appeal

   100%

       $2,658.00

       $4,089.50

     $(1,431.50)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    65.00%

        $(2,863)

          $8,179

          $5,316

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

APPEAL TO THE CITY COUNCIL S-017

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           9.00      $2,476.26            2         $4,953

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            2           $442

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           9.00      $1,392.12            2         $2,784

        $8,179     $4,089.48         20.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $8,179         20.00TOTALS         $4,089.50



S-018GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing and making recommendations regarding proposed amendment to the City Comprehensive General 
Plan.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

   100%

      $10,000.00

      $11,016.00

     $(1,016.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    90.78%

        $(1,016)

         $11,016

         $10,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT S-018

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR          10.00      $2,751.40            1         $2,751

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          52.00      $8,043.36            1         $8,043

       $11,016    $11,015.86         64.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $11,016         64.00TOTALS        $11,016.00



S-019REZONING/SPECIFIC PLAN REVIEW

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a request for rezoning, specific plan, or specific plan amendment on a specific parcel.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

   100%

      $10,000.00

      $11,016.00

     $(1,016.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    90.78%

        $(1,016)

         $11,016

         $10,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

REZONING/SPECIFIC PLAN REVIEW S-019

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR          10.00      $2,751.40            1         $2,751

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          52.00      $8,043.36            1         $8,043

       $11,016    $11,015.86         64.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $11,016         64.00TOTALS        $11,016.00



S-020ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Processing and reviewing a change to the text of the Zoning Code.

$5,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

$10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel 
involved plus any outside costs.

   100%

       $5,000.00

      $11,248.00

     $(6,248.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    44.45%

        $(6,248)

         $11,248

          $5,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT S-020

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR          10.00      $2,751.40            1         $2,751

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          52.00      $8,043.36            1         $8,043

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            1           $232

       $11,248    $11,247.91         65.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $11,248         65.00TOTALS        $11,248.00



S-021DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT - PROCESS

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Review of larger projects and projects where special environmental, design, or access and circulation 
considerations exist.  For development in special overlay zones, on a coastal bluff top property, or more than 50 
yards of grading.

Projects not requiring an EIR:
  Resident - $3,030 per application
  Other - $6,058 per application

Projects requiring an EIR - $10,000 deposit or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated 
hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any outside costs.

Level I - $10,215 per application
Level II - $17,115 per application or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for 
all personnel involved plus any outside costs.

Current subsidy policy is for projects not requiring an EIR that are submitted by a resident be charged at 50% total 
cost recovery.

   100%

       $7,372.00

      $12,513.30

     $(5,141.30)

            30

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    58.91%

      $(154,239)

        $375,399

        $221,160

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT - PROCESS S-021

            30

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR Level I           3.00        $825.42           20        $16,508

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER Level I           2.00        $221.10           20         $4,422

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Level I          45.00      $6,960.60           20       $139,212

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Level I           2.00        $265.24           20         $5,305

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER Level I           2.00        $279.42           20         $5,588

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER Level I           2.00        $464.10           20         $9,282

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER Level I           1.00        $165.67           20         $3,313

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH Level I          10.00      $1,032.10           20        $20,642

      $204,273    $10,213.65         67.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR Level II           6.00      $1,650.84           10        $16,508

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER Level II           2.00        $221.10           10         $2,211

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Level II          70.00     $10,827.60           10       $108,276

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Level II           4.00        $530.48           10         $5,305

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER Level II           4.00        $558.84           10         $5,588

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER Level II           4.00        $928.20           10         $9,282

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER Level II           2.00        $331.34           10         $3,313

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH Level II          20.00      $2,064.20           10        $20,642

      $171,126    $17,112.60        112.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

      $375,399        179.00TOTALS        $12,513.30



S-022DEVELOP REV PERMIT - REVIS/MODIF

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing of a revision or modification to a development review permit already approved.

Resident - $1,595 per application
Other - $3,352 per application

Total cost is $3,170 per application

Resident - $1,585 per application
Other - $3,170 per application

   100%

       $3,352.00

       $3,168.00

        $184.00

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   105.81%

           $368

          $6,336

          $6,704

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DEVELOP REV PERMIT - REVIS/MODIF S-022

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            2           $550

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            2           $442

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          13.00      $2,010.84            2         $4,022

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $139.71            2           $279

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            2           $464

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           0.50         $82.84            2           $166

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           2.00        $206.42            2           $413

        $6,336     $3,168.10         20.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $6,336         20.50TOTALS         $3,168.00



S-023DEVELOP REV PERMIT - TIME EXTENSION

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a development review permit application to determine if time extension should be permitted with or 
without new restrictions.

$1,977 per application

$2,070 per application

   100%

       $1,977.00

       $2,069.00

        $(92.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    95.55%

           $(92)

          $2,069

          $1,977

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DEVELOP REV PERMIT - TIME EXTENSION S-023

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            1           $275

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           8.00      $1,237.44            1         $1,237

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            1           $232

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            1           $103

        $2,069     $2,068.94         13.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $2,069         13.00TOTALS         $2,069.00



S-024MAJOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP

Map DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a major subdivision tentative map to identify any special conditions and determine the extent to which 
it complies with appropriate code requirements.

$10,858 per map

$14,000 per map

   100%

      $10,858.00

      $13,997.00

     $(3,139.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    77.57%

        $(3,139)

         $13,997

         $10,858

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP S-024

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           8.00      $2,201.12            1         $2,201

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          35.00      $5,413.80            1         $5,414

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           5.00        $663.10            1           $663

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER          20.00      $2,794.20            1         $2,794

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           8.00      $1,856.40            1         $1,856

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $331.34            1           $331

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           5.00        $516.05            1           $516

       $13,997    $13,997.11         85.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $13,997         85.00TOTALS        $13,997.00



S-025MAJOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAP

Map DeveloperENGINEERING

Reviewing a subdivision final map to identify any special conditions and determine that it applies to the 
appropriate code requirements.

$5,777 per map

$4,855 per map

   100%

       $5,777.00

       $4,857.00

        $920.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   118.94%

           $920

          $4,857

          $5,777

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAP S-025

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            1           $275

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           2.00        $309.36            1           $309

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           1.00        $132.62            1           $133

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER          20.00      $2,794.20            1         $2,794

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           2.00        $464.10            1           $464

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $331.34            1           $331

ENGINEERING Surveyor           0.00        $550.00            1           $550

        $4,857     $4,856.76         28.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $4,857         28.00TOTALS         $4,857.00



S-026MAJOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT.

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing changes to the conditions of an already approved major subdivision.

$3,332 per application

$4,095 per application

   100%

       $3,332.00

       $4,094.00

       $(762.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    81.39%

          $(762)

          $4,094

          $3,332

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT. S-026

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           4.00      $1,100.56            1         $1,101

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          10.00      $1,546.80            1         $1,547

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           4.00        $558.84            1           $559

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            1           $232

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $331.34            1           $331

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            1           $103

        $4,094     $4,093.90         24.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $4,094         24.00TOTALS         $4,094.00



S-027MAJOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSION

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing an expiring major subdivison map to determine if time extension should be permitted with or without 
new restrictions.

$2,615 per application

$3,780 per application

   100%

       $2,615.00

       $3,778.00

     $(1,163.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    69.22%

        $(1,163)

          $3,778

          $2,615

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSION S-027

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           4.00      $1,100.56            1         $1,101

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          10.00      $1,546.80            1         $1,547

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $279.42            1           $279

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           2.00        $464.10            1           $464

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            1           $166

        $3,778     $3,777.65         21.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $3,778         21.00TOTALS         $3,778.00



S-028MINOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP

Map DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a minor subdivision tentative map to identify any special conditions and determine extent to which it 
complies with appropriate code requirements.

$8,674 per map

$10,725 per map

   100%

       $8,674.00

      $10,723.00

     $(2,049.00)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    80.89%

        $(4,098)

         $21,446

         $17,348

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MINOR SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP S-028

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           6.00      $1,650.84            2         $3,302

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            2           $442

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          32.00      $4,949.76            2         $9,900

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           3.00        $397.86            2           $796

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER          12.00      $1,676.52            2         $3,353

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           6.00      $1,392.30            2         $2,785

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $331.34            2           $663

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            2           $206

       $21,446    $10,722.93         64.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $21,446         64.00TOTALS        $10,723.00



S-029MINOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAP

Map DeveloperENGINEERING

Reviewing a minor subdivision final map to identify any special conditions and determine that it applies to the 
appropriate code requirements.

$4,002 per map

$3,935 per map

   100%

       $4,002.00

       $3,932.50

         $69.50

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   101.77%

           $139

          $7,865

          $8,004

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MINOR SUBDIVISION FINAL MAP S-029

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            2           $550

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           2.00        $309.36            2           $619

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           1.00        $132.62            2           $265

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER          16.00      $2,235.36            2         $4,471

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           2.00        $464.10            2           $928

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            2           $331

ENGINEERING Surveyor           0.00        $350.00            2           $700

        $7,865     $3,932.25         23.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $7,865         23.00TOTALS         $3,932.50



S-030MINOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT.

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing changes to the conditions of an already approved minor subdivision.

$2,593 per application

$3,220 per application

   100%

       $2,593.00

       $3,219.00

       $(626.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    80.55%

          $(626)

          $3,219

          $2,593

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MINOR SUBDIVISION AMEND OF CONDIT. S-030

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            1           $825

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           9.00      $1,392.12            1         $1,392

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $279.42            1           $279

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            1           $232

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            1           $166

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            1           $103

        $3,219     $3,218.99         19.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $3,219         19.00TOTALS         $3,219.00



S-031MINOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSION

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing an expiring minor subdivision map to determine if a time extension should be permitted with or without 
new restrictions.

$2,418 per application

$3,115 per application

   100%

       $2,418.00

       $3,116.00

       $(698.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    77.60%

          $(698)

          $3,116

          $2,418

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MINOR SUBDIVISION TIME EXTENSION S-031

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            1           $825

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           9.00      $1,392.12            1         $1,392

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           2.00        $279.42            1           $279

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            1           $232

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            1           $166

        $3,116     $3,115.78         18.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $3,116         18.00TOTALS         $3,116.00



S-032BENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

APPLICATION DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing an outsourced non-exempt project to determine if it will have any environmental impacts which 
require further study.  Examples are shopping centers, residential subdivisions, office projects.

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

   100%

           $0.00

           $0.00

          $0.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

             $0

              $0

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION S-032B

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Contract +15% Mgt           0.00          $0.00            1             $0

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER +Fire, Engineering           0.00          $0.00            1             $0

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Plng Review/Oversght           0.00          $0.00            1             $0

            $0         $0.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

            $0          0.00TOTALS             $0.00



S-035ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

Application DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing and commenting on contract -provider- prepared environmental impact report.

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

   100%

           $0.00

           $0.00

          $0.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

             $0

              $0

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT S-035

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

          0.00          $0.00            0             $0

            $0         $0.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

            $0          0.00TOTALS             $0.00



S-036STRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Public notification and review of new construction to insure that it meets the City's assessment provisions.

$744 per application

This fee is not charged in conjunction with a Development Review Permit.

$3,590 per application for 100% cost recovery

If in conjunction with a Development Review Permit, this fee will instead be $1,075 per application (30% of the 
total fee).

   100%

         $744.00

       $3,589.86

     $(2,845.86)

             7

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    20.73%

       $(19,921)

         $25,129

          $5,208

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

STRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT S-036

             7

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            7         $1,926

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            7         $1,548

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          20.00      $3,093.60            7        $21,655

       $25,129     $3,589.84         23.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $25,129         23.00TOTALS         $3,589.86



S-036ASTRUCTURE DEV PERM WAIVER/TIME EXT

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Processing a request to be waived from the terms of the Structure Development Permit or a time extension of an 
existing Structure Development Permit.

$660 per application

Time Extenstion Fee is not charged in conjunction with a Development Review Permit Time Extension.

$550 per application

Time Extenstion Fee is not charged in conjunction with a Development Review Permit Time Extension.

   100%

         $660.00

         $551.50

        $108.50

            12

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   119.67%

         $1,302

          $6,618

          $7,920

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

STRUCTURE DEV PERM WAIVER/TIME EXT S-036A

            12

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14           12         $3,302

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.50        $276.38           12         $3,317

        $6,618       $551.52          3.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $6,618          3.50TOTALS           $551.50



S-037APPLICATION FOR VIEW ASSESSMENT

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing a request from the neighbors of a project to reassess the view requirements at the view assessment 
commission.

$600 - neighbor 
$600 - applicant 

These fees are paid by each.

To recover 100% of the costs:

$2,435 - neighbor
$2,435 - original applicant
These fees are paid by each.

$2,475 - each additional meeting after the first meeting

If resolved before review by the View Assessment Commission, then 50% of the fee shall be refunded.

   100%

       $1,200.00

       $5,364.93

     $(4,164.93)

            15

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    22.37%

       $(62,474)

         $80,474

         $18,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

APPLICATION FOR VIEW ASSESSMENT S-037

            15

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III          11.00      $1,228.04           15        $18,421

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           4.00      $1,100.56           15        $16,508

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10           15         $3,317

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER          15.00      $2,320.20           15        $34,803

       $73,049     $4,869.90         32.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III Each Addl Meeting           4.00        $446.56            3         $1,340

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR Each Addl Meeting           4.00      $1,100.56            3         $3,302

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Each Addl Meeting           6.00        $928.08            3         $2,784

        $7,426     $2,475.20         14.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $80,474         46.00TOTALS         $5,364.93



S-038AVIEW ASSESSMENT COMM. APPEAL TO CC

Request Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Appealing a view assessment matter from the decision of the View Assessment Commission to the City Council.

$300 per appeal

$1,755 per application for 100% cost recovery

   100%

         $300.00

       $1,754.00

     $(1,454.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    17.10%

        $(1,454)

          $1,754

            $300

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

VIEW ASSESSMENT COMM. APPEAL TO CC S-038A

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           3.00        $825.42            1           $825

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           6.00        $928.08            1           $928

        $1,754     $1,753.50          9.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,754          9.00TOTALS         $1,754.00



S-038BVIEW ASSESSMENT CD DIR APPEAL TO CC

Request Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Appealing a view assessment matter from the decision of the Community Development Director to the City 
Council.

$600 per appeal

This fee would be charged as an Appeal to the City Council (S-017) and not as a separate fee.

   100%

           $0.00

           $0.00

          $0.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

             $0

              $0

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

VIEW ASSESSMENT CD DIR APPEAL TO CC S-038B

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

          0.00          $0.00            0             $0

            $0         $0.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

            $0          0.00TOTALS             $0.00



S-039STANDARD SIGN PERMIT PROCESSING

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Checking sign plan (1-4 signs) and inspecting sign on-site to assure compliance with appropriate code 
requirements.

$287 per application

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a permit.

$330 per application

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a permit.

   100%

         $287.00

         $331.66

        $(44.66)

            35

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    86.54%

        $(1,563)

         $11,608

         $10,045

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

STANDARD SIGN PERMIT PROCESSING S-039

            35

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER 1-4 Signs           3.00        $331.65           35        $11,608

       $11,608       $331.65          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $11,608          3.00TOTALS           $331.66



S-040COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN REVIEW

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing comprehensive sign plan (more than 4 signs for a specific site) to determine if it meets the City 
requirements.

$574 per application 

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a permit.

$940 per application

plus 100% fine of original sign permit if the sign was built without a permit.

   100%

         $574.00

         $938.33

       $(364.33)

             3

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    61.17%

        $(1,093)

          $2,815

          $1,722

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN REVIEW S-040

             3

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR More Than 4 Signs           1.00        $275.14            3           $825

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER More Than 4 Signs           6.00        $663.30            3         $1,990

        $2,815       $938.44          7.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $2,815          7.00TOTALS           $938.33



S-041COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN AMENDMENT

Application Developer/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Amending an already approved comprehensive sign plan (for a specific site) due to changes by the applicant.

$532 per application

$495 per application

   100%

         $532.00

         $496.00

         $36.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   107.26%

            $36

            $496

            $532

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN AMENDMENT S-041

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.00        $275.14            1           $275

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           2.00        $221.10            1           $221

          $496       $496.24          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $496          3.00TOTALS           $496.00



S-044TEMPORARY SIGN/BANNER

Application Business/Comm. GroupCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Checking temporary special event sign plan and inspecting sign on-site to assure compliance with appropriate 
code requirements.

$58 per application

$110 per application

   100%

          $58.00

         $110.50

        $(52.50)

             4

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    52.49%

          $(210)

            $442

            $232

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

TEMPORARY SIGN/BANNER S-044

             4

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           1.00        $110.55            4           $442

          $442       $110.55          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $442          1.00TOTALS           $110.50



S-045LANDSCAPE PLAN REVIEW/INSPECTION

APPLICATION Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Review of the plans for landscape improvements and inspection of those improvemetns for compliance with City 
codes and standards.

Currently deposit for contractor at $125/hr with 15%

Deposit for contractor at $125/hr with additional 15% for City review

Deposit based on 115% of contract estimate.

15% of the contract cost is a City review fee.

   100%

           $0.00

           $0.00

          $0.00

            35

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

             $0

              $0

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

LANDSCAPE PLAN REVIEW/INSPECTION S-045

            35

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Deposit           0.00          $0.00           35             $0

            $0         $0.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

            $0          0.00TOTALS             $0.00



S-046STREET ADDRESS CHANGE

Address Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Review a request to change a street address.

$223 per address

$245 for first five addresses plus $55 for each additional five addresses per application

   100%

         $223.00

         $250.50

        $(27.50)

             8

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    89.02%

          $(220)

          $2,004

          $1,784

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

STREET ADDRESS CHANGE S-046

             8

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER First 5 Addresses           2.00        $221.10            8         $1,769

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL First 5 Addresses           0.17         $22.55            8           $180

        $1,949       $243.65          2.17TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER Each Add'l 5 Addr           0.50         $55.28            1            $55

           $55        $55.28          0.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $2,004          2.67TOTALS           $250.50



S-046APLANNING PUBLIC NOTICING

NOTICE DeveloperCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Public notification of a development project through the production of mailers and newspapers advertisments.

None

$535 per notice plus actual postage and newspaper costs

If a project has more than one notice, this fee would be charged for each notice.

   100%

           $0.00

         $537.40

       $(537.40)

            94

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

       $(50,516)

         $50,516

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

PLANNING PUBLIC NOTICING S-046A

            94

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK           2.00        $159.44           94        $14,987

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III           2.00        $223.28           94        $20,988

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           1.00        $154.68           94        $14,540

       $50,516       $537.40          5.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $50,516          5.00TOTALS           $537.40



S-046BTECHNOLOGY SURCHARGE

PERMIT Developer/Resident/BusinessCPMM DEVELOPMENT

Recovery of the techonology costs needed for the efficient processing of development applications and permits.

None

Charge 1% of all Building Plan Check and Permit fees

   100%

           $0.00

      $34,160.00

    $(34,160.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

       $(34,160)

         $34,160

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

TECHNOLOGY SURCHARGE S-046B

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING TrakIt Software           0.00     $34,160.00            1        $34,160

       $34,160    $34,160.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $34,160          0.00TOTALS        $34,160.00



S-047LOT LINE ADJ./CERT. OF COMPL. REV.

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessENGINEERING

Reviewing the proposed change to the property boundary between two lots and issuing a certificate of 
compliance.

$1,387 per application

$1,835 per application or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all 
personnel involved plus any outside costs.

   100%

       $1,387.00

       $1,833.00

       $(446.00)

             3

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    75.67%

        $(1,338)

          $5,499

          $4,161

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

LOT LINE ADJ./CERT. OF COMPL. REV. S-047

             3

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           1.00        $154.68            3           $464

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           5.00        $698.55            3         $2,096

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           2.00        $464.10            3         $1,392

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67            3           $497

ENGINEERING Surveyor           0.00        $350.00            3         $1,050

        $5,499     $1,833.00          9.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $5,499          9.00TOTALS         $1,833.00



S-048GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. PLAN CHECK

Plan DeveloperENGINEERING

Review of public improvement constructed by a developer for eventual dedication to the City to assure 
compliance with appropriate code requirments.

Review of proposed grading plans to ensure compliance with appropriate codes and standard

Construction Valuation: ($1,020 minimum fee)
$0 - $20,000 - 5%
$20,001 - $80,000 - 4.5%
$80,001 - $400,000 - 4%
$400,001+ - 3%

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel 
used.

Construction Valuation: ($1,000 minimum fee)
$0-$20,000 - 10% of the constructution value
$20,001-$80,000 - $2,000 + 3% of the construction value over $20,000
$80,001-$200,000 - $3,800 + 1% of the construction value over $80,000
$200,001+- $5,000 + 1% of the construction value over $200,000 or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel used.

   100%

       $2,491.67

       $3,466.21

       $(974.54)

            24

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    71.88%

       $(23,389)

         $83,189

         $59,800

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. PLAN CHECK S-048

            24

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER Minor <$20k           4.00        $558.84            6         $3,353

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER Minor <$20k           8.00        $953.04            6         $5,718

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER Minor <$20k           1.00        $232.05            6         $1,392

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER Minor <$20k           1.00        $165.67            6           $994

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH Minor <$20k           1.00        $103.21            6           $619

       $12,077     $2,012.81         15.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER $20-80k           8.00      $1,117.68           12        $13,412

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER $20-80k          16.00      $1,906.08           12        $22,873

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER $20-80k           2.00        $464.10           12         $5,569

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER $20-80k           1.00        $165.67           12         $1,988

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH $20-80k           1.00        $103.21           12         $1,239

       $45,081     $3,756.74         28.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER $80-200k          12.00      $1,676.52            3         $5,030

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER $80-200k          20.00      $2,382.60            3         $7,148

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER $80-200k           2.00        $464.10            3         $1,392

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER $80-200k           1.00        $165.67            3           $497

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH $80-200k           1.00        $103.21            3           $310

       $14,376     $4,792.10         36.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER >$200k          16.00      $2,235.36            2         $4,471

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER >$200k          24.00      $2,859.12            2         $5,718

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER >$200k           2.00        $464.10            2           $928

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER >$200k           1.00        $165.67            2           $331

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH >$200k           1.00        $103.21            2           $206

       $11,655     $5,827.46         44.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $83,189        123.00TOTALS         $3,466.21



S-050GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. INSPECTION

Plan DeveloperENGINEERING

Inspection of public improvement constructed by a developer for eventual dedication to the City to assure 
compliance with appropriate code requirments.

Inspection of proposed grading plans to ensure compliance with appropriate codes and standard

Construction Valuation: ($1,020 minimum)
$0 - $20,000 - 5%
$20,001 - $80,000 - 4.5%
$80,001 - $400,000 - 4%
$400,001+ - 3%

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel 
used.

Construction Valuation: ($1,000 minimum fee)
$0-$20,000 - 5% of the constructution value
$20,001-$80,000 - $1,000 + 1.5% of the construction value over $20,000
$80,001-$200,000 - $1,900 + 1% of the construction value over $80,000
$200,001+- $3,100 + 1% of the construction value over $200,000 or a deposit determined by staff with charges at 
the fully allocated hourly rates

Bluff Projects - Staff determined deposit with charges made at the fully allocated hourly rate for all personnel used.

   100%

       $2,491.67

       $2,155.29

        $336.38

            24

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   115.61%

         $8,073

         $51,727

         $59,800

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

GRADING & PUBL IMPROVE. INSPECTION S-050

            24

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER Minor <$20k           0.50         $69.86            6           $419

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER Minor <$20k           8.00        $953.04            6         $5,718

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER Minor <$20k           0.25         $58.01            6           $348

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH Minor <$20k           0.50         $51.61            6           $310

        $6,795     $1,132.52          9.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER $20-80k           2.00        $279.42           12         $3,353

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER $20-80k          14.00      $1,667.82           12        $20,014

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER $20-80k           0.25         $58.01           12           $696

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH $20-80k           1.00        $103.21           12         $1,239

       $25,302     $2,108.46         17.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER $80-200k           2.00        $279.42            3           $838

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER $80-200k          24.00      $2,859.12            3         $8,577

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER $80-200k           0.50        $116.03            3           $348

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER $80-200k           0.50         $82.84            3           $249

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH $80-200k           1.00        $103.21            3           $310

       $10,322     $3,440.62         28.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER >$200k           4.00        $558.84            2         $1,118

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER >$200k          30.00      $3,573.90            2         $7,148

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER >$200k           1.00        $232.05            2           $464

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER >$200k           0.50         $82.84            2           $166

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH >$200k           2.00        $206.42            2           $413

        $9,308     $4,654.05         37.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $51,727         92.00TOTALS         $2,155.29



S-051ENCROACHMENT PERMIT PROC/INSPECTION

Application Developer/UtilityENGINEERING

Reviewing proposed encroachment on public rights-of-way on behalf of private parties.

Can be for sewer/utilities/driveways/sidewalks

Street Cut - $611 per permit
Standard - $261 per permit

Street Cut - $755 per permit
Standard - $530 per permit

   100%

         $495.21

         $680.07

       $(184.86)

           133

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    72.82%

       $(24,586)

         $90,449

         $65,863

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT PROC/INSPECTION S-051

           133

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ADMIN ASSISTANT III Standard           1.00         $86.60           44         $3,810

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER Standard           2.00        $238.26           44        $10,483

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH Standard           2.00        $206.42           44         $9,082

       $23,376       $531.28          5.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

ENGINEERING ADMIN ASSISTANT III Street Cut           1.00         $86.60           89         $7,707

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER Street Cut           3.00        $357.39           89        $31,808

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH Street Cut           3.00        $309.63           89        $27,557

       $67,072       $753.62          7.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $90,449         12.00TOTALS           $680.07



S-051AMISCELLANEOUS ENGINEERING PERMIT

Permit Developer/Resident/BusinessENGINEERING

Review and inspection os miscellaneous Engineering permits, including swimming pool removal, discharge, or 
stormwater.

None

$220 per permit

   100%

           $0.00

         $222.40

       $(222.40)

             5

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

        $(1,112)

          $1,112

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MISCELLANEOUS ENGINEERING PERMIT S-051A

             5

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $119.13            5           $596

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            5           $516

        $1,112       $222.34          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,112          2.00TOTALS           $222.40



S-051BEASEMENT ABANDON/STREET VACATION

Application DeveloperENGINEERING

Review of a request to abandon an easement or a public street.

None

$1,715 per application or a deposit determined by staff with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all 
personnel involved plus any outside costs.

   100%

           $0.00

       $1,715.00

     $(1,715.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

        $(1,715)

          $1,715

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

EASEMENT ABANDON/STREET VACATION S-051B

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           6.00        $838.26            1           $838

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           2.00        $464.10            1           $464

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           4.00        $412.84            1           $413

        $1,715     $1,715.20         12.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,715         12.00TOTALS         $1,715.00



S-051CEASEMENT/R.O.W. DEDICATION

Application DeveloperENGINEERING

Review of a request to create an easement or public right-of-way.

None

$475 per application

   100%

           $0.00

         $475.00

       $(475.00)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

          $(950)

            $950

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

EASEMENT/R.O.W. DEDICATION S-051C

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $139.71            2           $279

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            2           $464

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21            2           $206

          $950       $474.97          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $950          3.00TOTALS           $475.00



S-051DGOLF CART PERMIT

Permit ResdientENGINEERING

Review of a request to drive a golf cart on public streets in designated areas of the City.

$20 per permit

$10 per permit

   100%

          $20.00

           $7.98

         $12.02

            50

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   250.63%

           $601

            $399

          $1,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

GOLF CART PERMIT S-051D

            50

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

ENGINEERING ADMIN ASSISTANT III 2hrs Total           0.04          $3.46           50           $173

STREET MAINTENANCE PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 1hr Total           0.02          $4.51           50           $226

          $399         $7.97          0.06TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $399          0.06TOTALS             $7.98



S-052PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Providing review of concept(s) and plans to insure compliance with the General Plan, Zoning Code, Highway 101 
Specific Plan, etc., before review by Esgil.

$1,546 per application

50% of the fee to be credited against future fees if the project goes forward.

$2,765 per application

50% of the fee to be credited against future fees if the project goes forward within six months.

   100%

       $1,546.00

       $2,766.60

     $(1,220.60)

             5

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    55.88%

        $(6,103)

         $13,833

          $7,730

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW S-052

             5

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING COM DEV DIRECTOR           1.50        $412.71            5         $2,064

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           4.00        $442.20            5         $2,211

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           8.00      $1,237.44            5         $6,187

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           1.00        $132.62            5           $663

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           1.00        $232.05            5         $1,160

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           3.00        $309.63            5         $1,548

       $13,833     $2,766.65         18.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $13,833         18.50TOTALS         $2,766.60



S-053BUILDING PLAN CHECK & INSPECTION

Permit Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Checking building construction plans to assure compliance of proposed work with appropriate code requirements, 
and inspecting the construction to insure compliance with approved plans.

Contract with Esgil in which the City receives 25% of the plan check and permit revenues collected.  Esgil uses 
the Uniform Building Code Table 3-A to establish fees to be charged.

Green Building PC/Inspection - 0-50,000 SF - 3% of Bldg PC/Insp fee
    50,001+ SF - 1% of Bldg PC/Insp Fee 

Commercial Photovoltaic PC/Inspection (based on valuation - $0-$100,000 - $695    $100,001-$500,000 - $865    
$500,001-$1,000,000 - $950    $1,000,001+ - $1,120

Increase all Building Plan Check and Permit fees by 15%, except for:

Green Building Fees - No Change

Commercial Photovoltain Plan Check/Inspection - No Change

   100%

       $3,322.58

       $3,978.63

       $(656.05)

           155

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    83.51%

      $(101,688)

        $616,688

        $515,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

BUILDING PLAN CHECK & INSPECTION S-053

           155

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER 33%           3.53        $390.23          155        $60,486

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER 1/2 Hr/Wk Of 3           0.50         $77.93          155        $12,079

BUILDING SERVICES CAP Charges           0.00        $464.86          155        $72,053

BUILDING SERVICES Trak-It           0.00        $220.39          155        $34,160

BUILDING SERVICES Building Budget           0.00      $2,496.77          155       $386,999

ENGINEERING ASSISTANT CIVIL ENGINEER           0.50         $59.57          155         $9,233

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           1.00        $165.67          155        $25,679

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           1.00        $103.21          155        $15,998

      $616,688     $3,978.63          6.53TYPE SUBTOTAL

      $616,688          6.53TOTALS         $3,978.63



S-053AFIRE BUILDING PLAN CHECK/INSPECTION

Plan/Inspection Developer/Resident/BusinessFIRE

Checking building construction plans by the Fire Department to assure compliance of proposed work with 
appropriate fire code requirements.

$70 per plan

Commercial:
  Plan Check - $200 per plan
  Inspection - $135 per inspection
Residential:
  Plan Check - $135 per plan
  Inspection - $100 per inspection

Reinspection (3rd Inspection) - $100 per reinspection

   100%

          $70.00

         $257.69

       $(187.69)

           101

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    27.16%

       $(18,957)

         $26,027

          $7,070

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FIRE BUILDING PLAN CHECK/INSPECTION S-053A

           101

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Commercial PC           1.50        $198.93           26         $5,172

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Commercial Inspect           1.00        $132.62           26         $3,448

        $8,620       $331.55          2.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Residential Plan Chk           1.00        $132.62           75         $9,947

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Residential Inspect           0.75         $99.47           75         $7,460

       $17,407       $232.09          1.75TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $26,027          4.25TOTALS           $257.69



S-054COMM. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSP

Plan/Inspection Developer/BusinessFIRE

Review of proposed commercial sprinkler plans to insure compliance with appropriate Fire codes and inspecting 
the construction to insure compliance with approved plans.

Plan Check:
  1-10 heads - $45
  11-50 heads - $135
  51+ heads - $270
Inspection:
  1-10 heads - $70
  11-50 heads - $300
  51+ heads - $600

Plan Check:
  Tenant Improvement - $65
  New - Actual Costs
Inspection:
  Tenant Improvement - $135
  New - $525
 

   100%

         $115.00

         $361.50

       $(246.50)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    31.81%

          $(493)

            $723

            $230

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

COMM. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSP S-054

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL TI Plan Check           0.50         $66.31            1            $66

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL TI Inspection           1.00        $132.62            1           $133

          $199       $198.93          1.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL New Plan Check T&M           0.00          $0.00            1             $0

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL New Inspection           2.00        $265.24            1           $265

FIRE FIRE MARSHAL New Inspection           2.00        $258.92            1           $259

          $524       $524.16          4.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $723          5.50TOTALS           $361.50



S-054ARES. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSP

Plan/Inspection Developer/ResidentFIRE

Review of proposed single family residential sprinkler plans to insure compliance with appropriate Fire codes and 
inspecting the construction to insure compliance with approved plans.

Plan Check:
  1-10 heads - $45
  11-50 heads - $135
  51+ heads - $270
Inspection:
  1-10 heads - $70
  11-50 heads - $300
  51+ heads - $600

0-2,500 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $200    Inspection Only - $100
2,501-5,000 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $265    Inspection Only - $135
5,001-7,000 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $300    Inspection Only - $165
7,001-10,000 Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $400    Inspection Only - $200
10,000+ Sq Ft:  PC/Inspection - $430    Inspection Only - $230

   100%

         $394.00

         $484.00

        $(90.00)

             5

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    81.40%

          $(450)

          $2,420

          $1,970

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

RES. FIRE SPRINKLER PLAN CHK/INSP S-054A

             5

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 0-2,500 Sq Ft PC/In           1.50        $198.93            1           $199

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 0-2,500 Sq Ft Insp           0.75         $99.47            1            $99

          $298       $298.40          2.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 2,501-5K Sq Ft PC/In           2.00        $265.24            1           $265

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 2,501-5K Sq Ft Insp           1.00        $132.62            1           $133

          $398       $397.86          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 5K-7K Sq Ft Insp           1.25        $165.78            1           $166

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 5,001-7K Sq Ft PC/In           2.25        $298.40            1           $298

          $464       $464.18          3.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 7K-10K Sq Ft Insp           1.50        $198.93            1           $199

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 7,001-10K Sq Ft PC/I           3.00        $397.86            1           $398

          $597       $596.79          4.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 10,000+ Sq Ft Insp           1.75        $232.09            1           $232

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL 10,000+ Sq Ft PC/In           3.25        $431.02            1           $431

          $663       $663.11          5.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $2,420         18.25TOTALS           $484.00



S-055FIRE ALARM/MONITOR SYSTEM PC/INSP

Plan/Inspection Developer/Resident/BusinessFIRE

Review of proposed alarm or monitoring system plans to insure compliance with appropriate Fire codes and 
inspecting the construction to insure compliance with approved plans.

Plan Check:
  1-10 devices - $135
  11-50 devices - $270
  51+ heads - $400
Inspection:
  1-10 devices - $70
  11-50 devices - $135
  51+ heads - $200

Plan Check - $135 or actual costs with charges at the fully allocated hourly rates for all personnel involved plus any 
outside costs.
Inspection - $430

   100%

         $205.00

         $560.00

       $(355.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    36.61%

          $(355)

            $560

            $205

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FIRE ALARM/MONITOR SYSTEM PC/INSP S-055

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Plan Check           1.00        $132.62            1           $133

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Inspection           2.25        $298.40            1           $298

FIRE FIRE MARSHAL Inspection           1.00        $129.46            1           $129

          $560       $560.48          4.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $560          4.25TOTALS           $560.00



S-055AFIRE SPEC PROT SYSTEM PC/INSP

Plan/Inspection Developer/Resident/BusinessFIRE

Review of proposed specialized fire protection system plans to insure compliance with appropriate Fire codes 
and inspecting the construction to insure compliance with approved plans.

Plan Check - $135
Inspection - $70

$200 per plan

   100%

         $205.00

         $199.00

          $6.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   103.02%

             $6

            $199

            $205

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FIRE SPEC PROT SYSTEM PC/INSP S-055A

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           1.50        $198.93            1           $199

          $199       $198.93          1.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $199          1.50TOTALS           $199.00



S-055BFIRE SOLAR SYSTEM PLAN CHECK/INSP

Plan/Inspection Developer/Resident/BusinessFIRE

Review of proposed multi-family, commercial, or industrial solar system plans to insure compliance with 
appropriate Fire codes and inspecting the construction to insure compliance with approved plans.

None

Single Family Residential - included as part of Building fees
Multi-Family, Commercial, or Industrial - $265

   100%

           $0.00

         $265.25

       $(265.25)

             4

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

        $(1,061)

          $1,061

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FIRE SOLAR SYSTEM PLAN CHECK/INSP S-055B

             4

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL MFR/Comm/Ind PC           1.00        $132.62            4           $530

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL MFR/Comm/Ind Insp           1.00        $132.62            4           $530

        $1,061       $265.24          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,061          2.00TOTALS           $265.25



S-056BUILDING PERMIT EXTENSION REVIEW

Application Developer/Resident/BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing expiring building permit applications to determine if extension should be permitted with or without new 
restrictions. This does not include the first two ministerial extensions.

$329 per application

$230 per application

   100%

         $329.00

         $232.00

         $97.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   141.81%

            $97

            $232

            $329

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

BUILDING PERMIT EXTENSION REVIEW S-056

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           1.50        $232.02            1           $232

          $232       $232.02          1.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $232          1.50TOTALS           $232.00



S-057ASHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL PERMIT

Application BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Processing and issuing permits for short term vacation rentals for compliance with City codes and standards.

New - $110 per permit
  Late Fee - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
Renewal - $17 per permit
  Late Fees - 31-90 days late - $17 plus renewal fee
    91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

New - $100 per permit
  Late Fee - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
Renewal - $55 per permit
  Late Fees - 31-90 days late - $17 plus renewal fee
    91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

By Municipal Code, this fee is defined as the same fee as a new business certificate.  The code should be changed 
to remove that conenction.

   100%

          $26.30

          $58.77

        $(32.47)

           200

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    44.75%

        $(6,493)

         $11,753

          $5,260

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL PERMIT S-057A

           200

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III New           0.25         $27.91           20           $558

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           0.67         $70.79           20         $1,416

        $1,974        $98.70          0.92TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III Renewal           0.25         $27.91          180         $5,024

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           0.25         $26.42          180         $4,756

        $9,779        $54.33          0.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $11,753          1.42TOTALS            $58.77



S-066BUSINESS FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION

Inspection BusinessFIRE

Inspection of new and existing businesses located within the City to determine compliance with appropriate Fire 
codes.

New:
  0-1,000 SF - $150
  1,001-3,500 SF - $170
  3,501-10,000 SF - $265
  10,001 SF - $570
Renewal:
  0-1,000 SF - $55
  1,001-3,500 SF - $75
  3,501-10,000 SF - $170
  10,001 SF - $475

B, R2, R2.1 Occupancies:
  0-1,000 SF - $100
  1,001-3,500 SF - $200
  3,501-10,000 SF - $265
  10,001 SF - $795
All Other Occupancies:
  0-1,000 SF - $200
  1,001-3,500 SF - $400
  3,501-10,000 SF - $530
  10,001 SF - $1,060

   100%

          $89.34

         $219.52

       $(130.18)

           958

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    40.70%

      $(124,714)

        $210,304

         $85,590

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

BUSINESS FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION S-066

           958

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL B/R2 1-1,000           0.75         $99.47          405        $40,285

       $40,285        $99.47          0.75TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL B/R2 1k-3,500           1.50        $198.93          303        $60,276

       $60,276       $198.93          1.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL B/R2 3.5k-10k           2.00        $265.24           45        $11,936

       $11,936       $265.24          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL B/R2 10,000+           6.00        $795.72           16        $12,732

       $12,732       $795.72          6.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Other 1-1,000           1.50        $198.93           45         $8,952

        $8,952       $198.93          1.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Other 1k-3,500           3.00        $397.86           78        $31,033

       $31,033       $397.86          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Other 3.5k - 10k           4.00        $530.48           47        $24,933

       $24,933       $530.48          4.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Other 10,000+           8.00      $1,060.96           19        $20,158

       $20,158     $1,060.96          8.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

      $210,304         26.75TOTALS           $219.52



S-067FIRE ALT. MATERIALS & METHODS REV.

Application DeveloperFIRE

Review of a request to use alternate materials and methods for fire safety purposes.

None

$265 per application plus actual costs at the fully allocated hourly rates for all time after two hours

   100%

           $0.00

         $265.17

       $(265.17)

             6

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

        $(1,591)

          $1,591

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FIRE ALT. MATERIALS & METHODS REV. S-067

             6

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Base Time           2.00        $265.24            6         $1,591

        $1,591       $265.24          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,591          2.00TOTALS           $265.17



S-068U/G TANK INSTALL/REMOVE PC/INSPECT.

Permit BusinessFIRE

Reviewing plan and inspecting the installation or removal of an underground tank.

$351 per permit

$400 per permit

   100%

         $351.00

         $398.00

        $(47.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    88.19%

           $(47)

            $398

            $351

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

U/G TANK INSTALL/REMOVE PC/INSPECT. S-068

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Plan Check           1.00        $132.62            1           $133

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL Inspection           2.00        $265.24            1           $265

          $398       $397.86          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $398          3.00TOTALS           $398.00



S-069NEW DEVELOPMENT FLOW TEST

Test DeveloperFIRE

Conduct a test of fire hydrant flow for a new development to insure adequate water flow.

$191 per test

This service is now provided by the Water District.

   100%

           $0.00

           $0.00

          $0.00

             0

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

             $0

              $0

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

NEW DEVELOPMENT FLOW TEST S-069

             0

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

          0.00          $0.00            0             $0

            $0         $0.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

            $0          0.00TOTALS             $0.00



S-070MISCELLANEOUS FIRE INSPECTION

Inspection Developer/Resident/BusinessFIRE

Inspection of needed Fire reviews not otherwise included in another Fire fee.

None

$135 per hour

   100%

           $0.00

         $133.00

       $(133.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

          $(133)

            $133

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MISCELLANEOUS FIRE INSPECTION S-070

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           1.00        $132.62            1           $133

          $133       $132.62          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $133          1.00TOTALS           $133.00



S-071AFTER HOUR INSPECTION

Inspection Developer/Resident/BusinessFIRE

Inspection performed by the Fire Department after normal business hours, such as responding to overcrowding 
situations or after hour development inspections.

$330 minimum plus actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates

Actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates ($265 minimum)

   100%

         $330.00

         $265.00

         $65.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   124.53%

            $65

            $265

            $330

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

AFTER HOUR INSPECTION S-071

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL At OT Rate           2.00        $265.24            1           $265

          $265       $265.24          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $265          2.00TOTALS           $265.00



S-073STAND-BY CHARGE

Request Business/Comm. GroupFIRE

Request to provide stand-by emergency fire service for a special event or other requested activity.

$470 minimum plus actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates

Actual cost using fully allocated hourly rates ($600 minimum)

   100%

         $470.00

         $623.00

       $(153.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    75.44%

          $(153)

            $623

            $470

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

STAND-BY CHARGE S-073

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           0.50         $66.31            1            $66

FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE CAPTAIN I/II           2.00        $202.70            1           $203

FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE ENGINEER/PARAMEDIC           2.00        $183.54            1           $184

FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE FIGHTER/PARAMEDIC           2.01        $170.65            1           $171

          $623       $623.20          6.51TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $623          6.51TOTALS           $623.00



S-077JUNIOR LIFEGUARD PROGRAM

Participant Resident/Non-ResidentMARINE SAFETY

A comprehensive youth training progrm (for ages 7-16) designed to develop and build self esteem, life 
saving/emergency skills and techniques, respect and appreciation of the ocean environment.

2 week session - $250 (Non-resident) $225 (Resident)
4 week session - $375 (Non-resident) $350 (Resident)
5 week session - $450 (Non-resident) $425 (Resident)

This program is recovering 101% of its direct program costs and 72% of its total costs.

Due to upcoming changes to the program, no changes to the fees are recommended at this time until the effects of 
the program changes are identified.

    60%

         $412.22

         $574.32

       $(162.10)

           900

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    71.78%

      $(145,888)

        $516,888

        $371,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

JUNIOR LIFEGUARD PROGRAM S-077

           900

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS ASST PROG DIR - PT           0.56         $17.98          900        $16,182

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS MARINE SAFETY CAPTAIN           0.18         $28.08          900        $25,272

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS MARINE SAFETY LIEUTENANT           0.18         $23.45          900        $21,105

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS MARINE SAFETY SERGEANT           0.91         $96.42          900        $86,778

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS PROGRAM ASSISTANT - PT           3.89        $122.66          900       $110,394

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS PROGRAM DIRECTOR - PT           1.11         $32.00          900        $28,800

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS SENIOR INSTRUCTORS - PT           2.22         $94.40          900        $84,960

JUNIOR LIFEGUARDS Various Accounts           0.00        $159.33          900       $143,397

      $516,888       $574.32          9.05TYPE SUBTOTAL

      $516,888          9.05TOTALS           $574.32



S-079MARINE SAFETY PERMIT

Permit Developer/Resident/BusinessENGINEERING

Request to use City-owned property for access to the beach for construction purposes.

Ramp Fee - $5.30 per round trip
Trip Fee - $2.70 per ton
plus $27 per day for days 1-30 and $53 per day for 31 and subsequent days
plus actual staffing costs

A deposit is collected and these fees are charged agains tthe deposit.

Ramp Fee - $5.30 per round trip
Trip Fee - $2.70 per ton
plus $27 per day for days 1-30 and $53 per day for 31 and subsequent days
plus actual staffing costs

plus 15% deposit management fee

   100%

       $1,500.00

       $1,623.50

       $(123.50)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    92.39%

          $(247)

          $3,247

          $3,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MARINE SAFETY PERMIT S-079

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER           2.00        $309.36            2           $619

ENGINEERING ADMIN ASSISTANT III           0.25         $21.65            2            $43

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           2.00        $464.10            2           $928

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           5.00        $828.35            2         $1,657

        $3,247     $1,623.46          9.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $3,247          9.25TOTALS         $1,623.50



S-080SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT

Application Business/Comm. GroupPUBLIC SAFETY

Request to host a special activity or gathering of more than 25 persons in any public right-of-way. May or may not 
involve a road closure.

Resident/Non-Profit - $50
Non-Resident - $250

$765 per permit

If event involves a lane or street closure, then charge the actual cost for the planning of the event.

Plus actual costs incurred the day of the event

   100%

          $50.00

         $780.03

       $(730.03)

            40

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     6.41%

       $(29,201)

         $31,201

          $2,000

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT S-080

            40

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FIRE DEPARTMENT DEPUTY FIRE MARSHAL           1.00        $132.62           40         $5,305

ENGINEERING DIR. OF PW/CITY ENGINEER           0.25         $58.01           40         $2,320

ENGINEERING PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER           0.50         $82.84           40         $3,314

ENGINEERING SR ENGINEERING TECH           0.25         $25.80           40         $1,032

STREET MAINTENANCE PW OPERATIONS MANAGER           0.25         $56.40           40         $2,256

COMMUNITY SERVICES MANAGEMENT ASST (3/4 TIME           0.50         $49.20           40         $1,968

RECREATION RECREATION MANAGER           3.00        $358.80           40        $14,352

       $30,547       $763.67          5.75TYPE SUBTOTAL

CITY MANAGER ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER With Street Closure           1.00        $115.68            1           $116

RECREATION RECREATION MANAGER With Street Closure           4.50        $538.20            1           $538

          $654       $653.88          5.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $31,201         11.25TOTALS           $780.03



S-085CONTRACT ENRICHMENT CLASSES

Participant Resident/Non-ResidentRECREATION

Providing youth classes, including coordination, facilities and contract instructors.

The Class Instructor receives 70% of the class fee and the City receives 30% of the class fee.

No Change

    50%

           $0.00

           $0.00

          $0.00

           388

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

             $0

              $0

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

CONTRACT ENRICHMENT CLASSES S-085

           388

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

          0.00          $0.00            0             $0

            $0         $0.00          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

            $0          0.00TOTALS             $0.00



S-086DAY CAMP PROGRAM

Participant/Week Resident/Non-ResidentRECREATION

Providing the summer day camp program to the community.

Resident - $106 per week 
Non-Resident - $123 per week
Aftercare Program - $27 per week

This program is recovering 102% of its direct program costs, and 63% of its total costs, including facility 
maintenance and replacement.

    40%

         $213.21

         $340.12

       $(126.91)

           280

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    62.69%

       $(35,534)

         $95,234

         $59,700

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DAY CAMP PROGRAM S-086

           280

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

RECREATION RECREATION MANAGER 20%           1.18        $141.64          280        $39,659

RECREATION Facility Maint/Repl           0.00         $15.59          280         $4,365

RECREATION CAMP PROGRAMRECREATION LEADER - PT $11,400           2.68         $94.18          280        $26,370

RECREATION CAMP PROGRAMSENIOR REC LEADER - PT $6,200           1.43         $51.21          280        $14,339

RECREATION CAMP PROGRAM Camp Exp/Insure           0.00         $37.50          280        $10,500

       $95,234       $340.12          5.29TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $95,234          5.29TOTALS           $340.12



S-091SPORTS FIELD MANAGEMENT

Hour Resident/Non-ResidentRECREATION

Coordination of the ballfields for use by community groups and private groups.

Resident/Non-Profit - No Charge
Other - $20 per hour

No Change

    50%

           $0.00

           $3.80

         $(3.80)

           820

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

        $(3,116)

          $3,116

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

SPORTS FIELD MANAGEMENT S-091

           820

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

RECREATION RECREATION MANAGER           0.03          $3.80          820         $3,116

        $3,116         $3.80          0.03TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $3,116          0.03TOTALS             $3.80



S-094FACILITY RENTAL (COMM. CENTER)

Hour Comm. GroupsRECREATION

Rental of a Community Center by a private organization, group or individual for private events, meetings or 
gatherings as authorized by the City.

La Colonia:
  Resident - $60 per hour
  Non-Resident - $65 per hour

Fletcher Cove - fees are set by initiative

No Change

    20%

         $179.50

       $1,341.95

     $(1,162.45)

           155

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    13.38%

      $(180,180)

        $208,002

         $27,822

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FACILITY RENTAL (COMM. CENTER) S-094

           155

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

RECREATION RECREATION MANAGER 15%           1.60        $191.90          155        $29,745

RECREATION Private Rentals           0.00        $113.33          155        $17,566

RECREATION Mira Costa College           0.00        $602.30          155        $93,357

RECREATION Custodial/Security           0.00         $87.10          155        $13,501

RECREATION Comm Sing Along           0.00         $13.10          155         $2,031

RECREATION Gardens Foundation           0.00         $32.74          155         $5,075

RECREATION Lions Club           0.00         $43.65          155         $6,766

RECREATION Boys & Girls Club           0.00        $236.00          155        $36,580

RECREATION Historical Society           0.00         $21.83          155         $3,384

      $208,002     $1,341.95          1.60TYPE SUBTOTAL

      $208,002          1.60TOTALS         $1,341.95



S-111BUSINESS REGISTRATION - DUPLICATE

Duplicate BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Providing a duplicate of a business registration certificate on request.

$17 per duplicate

$20 per duplicate

   100%

          $17.00

          $19.00

         $(2.00)

            10

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    89.47%

           $(20)

            $190

            $170

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

BUSINESS REGISTRATION - DUPLICATE S-111

            10

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III           0.17         $18.98           10           $190

          $190        $18.98          0.17TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $190          0.17TOTALS            $19.00



S-112BUSINESS REGISTRATION - NEW

Application BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Reviewing and processing new/changed business license applications for businesses in town and mobile services 
working in Solana Beach such as landscapers, carpet cleaners, mobile car detailers, etc.

Home Base/Outside City - $110
Inside City:
  0-1,000 SF - $150
  1,001-3,500 SF - $170
  3,501-10,000 SF - $265
  10,001 SF - $570
Late Fees:
  90 days late - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
  91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

Home Base/Located outside the City - $100 per application
Business located within the City - $225 per application

Late Fees:
  90 days late - $100 plus the cost of the Certificate
  91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

   100%

         $134.00

         $173.53

        $(39.53)

           600

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    77.22%

       $(23,719)

        $104,119

         $80,400

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

BUSINESS REGISTRATION - NEW S-112

           600

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING Pentamation           0.00          $7.39          600         $4,434

        $4,434         $7.39          0.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III           0.25         $27.91          600        $16,746

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III Printing Process           0.33         $36.84          600        $22,104

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER           0.25         $27.64          600        $16,584

       $55,434        $92.39          0.83TYPE SUBTOTAL

PLANNING JUNIOR PLANNER Zone Review-In Town           1.00        $110.55          360        $39,798

PLANNING PROJECT PLANNER Zone Review-In Town           0.08         $12.37          360         $4,453

       $44,251       $122.92          1.08TYPE SUBTOTAL

      $104,119          1.91TOTALS           $173.53



S-113BUSINESS REGISTRATION - RENEWAL

Renewal BusinessCOMM DEVELOPMENT

Annual reviewing and processing a business certificate.

Home Base/Outside City - $17
Inside City:
  0-1,000 SF - $55
  1,001-3,500 SF - $75
  3,501-10,000 SF - $170
  10,001 SF - $475
Late Fees:
  31-90 days late - $17 plus the cost of the Renewal
  91+ days late - Per SBMC 4.02.230

$47 per renewal

Plus 100% late fee if more than 60 days late

Thereafter Administrative Citation Process

   100%

          $35.10

          $47.24

        $(12.14)

         2,100

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    74.29%

       $(25,504)

         $99,204

         $73,700

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

BUSINESS REGISTRATION - RENEWAL S-113

         2,100

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III 600 Hrs/Yr           0.28         $31.26        2,100        $65,646

PLANNING Pentamation           0.00         $15.98        2,100        $33,558

       $99,204        $47.24          0.28TYPE SUBTOTAL

       $99,204          0.28TOTALS            $47.24



S-114AAMUSEMENT PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of amusement businesses within the City.

New - $271 per permit plus $62 per device
Renewal - $237 per permit plus $62 per device

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

         $254.00

         $186.50

         $67.50

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   136.19%

           $135

            $373

            $508

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

AMUSEMENT PERMIT S-114A

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            2            $56

           $56        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            1           $106

          $106       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $373          3.25TOTALS           $186.50



S-114BDANCE PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of dance businesses within the City.

New - $117 per permit
Renewal - $75 per permit

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

          $96.00

         $186.50

        $(90.50)

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    51.47%

          $(181)

            $373

            $192

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DANCE PERMIT S-114B

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            2            $56

           $56        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            1           $106

          $106       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $373          3.25TOTALS           $186.50



S-114CENTERTAINMENT PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of live entertainment businesses within the City.

New - $406 per permit
Renewal - $374 per permit

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

         $390.00

         $186.50

        $203.50

             2

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   209.12%

           $407

            $373

            $780

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT S-114C

             2

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            2            $56

           $56        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            1           $106

          $106       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $373          3.25TOTALS           $186.50



S-114DFIREARMS SALE PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of firearms sale businesses within the City.

New - $138 per permit
Renewal - $43 per permit

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

          $74.67

         $168.67

        $(94.00)

             3

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    44.27%

          $(282)

            $506

            $224

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

FIREARMS SALE PERMIT S-114D

             3

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            3            $84

           $84        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            2           $211

          $211       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $506          3.25TOTALS           $168.67



S-114EMASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of massage businesses within the City.

This does not include massage technician fees, as they are regualted by the State.

New - $541 per permit ($509 + $32 DOJ fee + $32 for each co-owner or corporate officer
Renewal - $471 per permit + 10% per month for late renewal fees after 30 days expired

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

         $485.00

         $154.80

        $330.20

             5

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   313.31%

         $1,651

            $774

          $2,425

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT PERMIT S-114E

             5

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            5           $140

          $140        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            4           $423

          $423       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $774          3.25TOTALS           $154.80



S-114FSECONDHAND DEALER PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of secondhand dealer businesses within the City.

New - $278 per permit + $32 DOJ Fees plus $32 for each co-owner or corporate officer plus $195 for additional 
state fees
Renewal - $48 per permit plus $10 State fees

New - $240 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

         $124.67

         $168.67

        $(44.00)

             3

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    73.91%

          $(132)

            $506

            $374

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

SECONDHAND DEALER PERMIT S-114F

             3

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            3            $84

           $84        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            2           $211

          $211       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $506          3.25TOTALS           $168.67



S-114GSOLICITORS PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of solicitors operating within the City.

New - $159 per permit + $32 DOJ Fees plus $82 for each additional solicitor
Renewal - None

New - $240 per permit plus $105 for each additional solicitor plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $135 per permit plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

          $60.25

         $186.50

       $(126.25)

             4

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    32.31%

          $(505)

            $746

            $241

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

SOLICITORS PERMIT S-114G

             4

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            4           $112

          $112        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New-Add'l Solicitor           1.00        $105.66            1           $106

          $106       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            3           $317

          $317       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $746          4.25TOTALS           $186.50



S-114HTAXI BUSINESS PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of taxi businesses operating within the City.

New - $131 per permit + $32 DOJ Fees plus $32 for each co-owner or corporate officer plus $195 for additional 
state fees plus $53 per cab
Renewal - $113 per permit plus $10 State fees plus $53 per cab

New - $345 per permit plus $20 for each cab plus DOJ and other State fees
Renewal - $185 per permit plus $20 for each cab plus DOJ and other State fees

   100%

         $191.00

         $216.54

        $(25.54)

            41

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    88.21%

        $(1,047)

          $8,878

          $7,831

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

TAXI BUSINESS PERMIT S-114H

            41

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91           41         $1,144

        $1,144        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           3.00        $316.98            1           $317

          $317       $316.98          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.50        $158.49           40         $6,340

        $6,340       $158.49          1.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Each Cab           0.17         $17.96           60         $1,078

        $1,078        $17.96          0.17TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $8,878          4.92TOTALS           $216.54



S-114ITOBACCO SALES PERMIT

Permit BusinessCODE ENFORCEMENT

Regulation and inspection of tabacco sales businesses within the City.

New - $135
Renewal - $110
Duplicate - $10
Late Fee - Renewal fee + 10%

New - $240
Renewal - $135
Late Fee - Renewal fee + 10%

   100%

         $114.17

         $151.17

        $(37.00)

             6

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    75.52%

          $(222)

            $907

            $685

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

TOBACCO SALES PERMIT S-114I

             6

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT III All           0.25         $27.91            6           $167

          $167        $27.91          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE New           2.00        $211.32            1           $211

          $211       $211.32          2.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

CODE ENFORCEMENT SR CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE Renewal           1.00        $105.66            5           $528

          $528       $105.66          1.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $907          3.25TOTALS           $151.17



S-115NOTARY PUBLIC SERVICE

SIGNATURE Resident/Non-ResidentCITY CLERK

Certifying a signature for members of the public.

$10 per signature.

This fee is set by the State

$15 per signature.

This fee is set by the State

    40%

          $10.00

          $37.71

        $(27.71)

             7

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    26.52%

          $(194)

            $264

             $70

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

NOTARY PUBLIC SERVICE S-115

             7

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK CITY CLERK           0.25         $37.67            7           $264

          $264        $37.67          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $264          0.25TOTALS            $37.71



S-116DOCUMENT CERTIFICATION

Item Resident/Non-ResidentCITY CLERK

Reviewing City documents to ensure that they are true and legal and providing certification thereof.

$35 per item

$40 per item

   100%

          $35.00

          $37.67

         $(2.67)

            12

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    92.92%

           $(32)

            $452

            $420

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DOCUMENT CERTIFICATION S-116

            12

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK CITY CLERK           0.25         $37.67           12           $452

          $452        $37.67          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $452          0.25TOTALS            $37.67



S-117CC MEETING REPRODUCTION

Tape/Disk Resident/Non-ResidentCITY CLERK

Copying video/audio tape of City proceedings and making such recordings available for listening or purchase by 
the public.

Audio CD - $15
DVD - $15
Convert VHS to DVD - $45

Audio CD - $21.25
DVD - $21.25
Convert VHS to DVD - $41.25
Convert Audio Cassette to CD/MP4 - Actual Costs

   100%

          $21.38

          $24.17

         $(2.79)

            47

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    88.47%

          $(131)

          $1,136

          $1,005

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

CC MEETING REPRODUCTION S-117

            47

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK Audio CD +$1.25           0.25         $19.93           12           $239

          $239        $19.93          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK MP4/DVD Copy+$1.25           0.25         $19.93           25           $498

          $498        $19.93          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK VHS To DVD + $1.25           0.50         $39.86           10           $399

          $399        $39.86          0.50TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,136          1.00TOTALS            $24.17



S-118ANNUAL AGENDA MAILING SUBSCRIPTION

Subscriber PublicCITY CLERK

Copying and mailing City Council agendas requested by private individuals or companies as per State 
Government Code section 54954.1.

$436 staff costs plus $38 copying/mailing costs = $474 per subscriber per year

$325 staff costs plus $57 copying/mailing costs = $382 per subscriber per year

   100%

         $436.00

         $325.00

        $111.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   134.15%

           $111

            $325

            $436

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ANNUAL AGENDA MAILING SUBSCRIPTION S-118

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK 10min X 24mtgs           4.08        $325.26            1           $325

          $325       $325.26          4.08TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $325          4.08TOTALS           $325.00



S-118AANNUAL AGENDA PACKET SUBSCRIPTION

Subscriber PublicCITY CLERK

Copying and mailing entire City Council agenda packets requested by private individuals or companies as State 
Government Code section 54954.1.

$1,063 staff costs plus $478.50 copying/mailing costs = $1,542 per subscriber per year

$955 staff costs plus $600 copying/mailing costs = $1,555 per subscriber per year

   100%

       $1,063.00

         $957.00

        $106.00

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:   111.08%

           $106

            $957

          $1,063

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ANNUAL AGENDA PACKET SUBSCRIPTION S-118A

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK 30min X 24mtgs          12.00        $956.64            1           $957

          $957       $956.64         12.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $957         12.00TOTALS           $957.00



S-118BANNUAL SPECIAL NOTICE SUBSCRIPTION

Subscriber PublicCITY CLERK

Copying and mailing required special notices requested by private individuals or companies as per various State 
Code sections.

$44 staff costs plus $3 copying/mailing costs = $47 per subscriber per year

$50 staff costs plus $4 copying/mailing costs = $54 per subscriber per year

   100%

          $44.00

          $50.00

         $(6.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    88.00%

            $(6)

             $50

             $44

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

ANNUAL SPECIAL NOTICE SUBSCRIPTION S-118B

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK CITY CLERK 10min X 2notices/Yr           0.33         $49.72            1            $50

           $50        $49.72          0.33TYPE SUBTOTAL

           $50          0.33TOTALS            $50.00



S-119DOCUMENT PRINTING & COPYING

Copy Resident/Non-ResidentVARIOUS

Providing the service of copying documents including paper and copy machines as requested by an individual.

Black and White Copy - $1 for first page plus $0.10 per page for every page thereafter
Color Copy - $1 for first page plus $0.20 per page for every page thereafter
Document Imaging  - $1 for first page plus $0.02 per page for every page thereafter
Data Copy - $8
Agenda Packet - $65
Maps/Blueprints - Actual Costs

All Copies - First 10 pages - No Charge   $0.20 per page for every page thereafter
Document Imaging  - First 10 pages - No Charge   $0.15 per page for every page thereafter
Data Copy - $8 per device
Agenda Packet - $65
Maps/Blueprints - Actual Costs

   100%

           $1.71

           $2.92

         $(1.21)

           164

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    58.46%

          $(199)

            $479

            $280

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

DOCUMENT PRINTING & COPYING S-119

           164

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK B/W & Color           0.01          $0.80          150           $120

          $120         $0.80          0.01TYPE SUBTOTAL

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK Agenda Packet           0.75         $59.79            2           $120

          $120        $59.79          0.75TYPE SUBTOTAL

CITY CLERK DEPUTY CITY CLERK CD Copy + $1.25           0.25         $19.93           12           $239

          $239        $19.93          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $479          1.01TOTALS             $2.92



S-120CANDIDATE PROCESSING

CANDIDATE ResidentCITY CLERK

Processing a request for a candidate for City office.

None

$25 per candidate

This fee is set by the State.

     5%

           $0.00

         $452.00

       $(452.00)

             4

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:     0.00%

        $(1,808)

          $1,808

              $0

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

CANDIDATE PROCESSING S-120

             4

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK CITY CLERK           3.00        $451.98            4         $1,808

        $1,808       $451.98          3.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,808          3.00TOTALS           $452.00



S-121INITIATIVE PROCESSING

INTIATIVE Resident/BusinessCITY CLERK

Processing a request for a local initiative on the ballot.

$200 per initiative

$200 per intiative

This fee is set by the State.

    15%

         $200.00

       $1,205.00

     $(1,005.00)

             1

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    16.60%

        $(1,005)

          $1,205

            $200

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

INITIATIVE PROCESSING S-121

             1

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK CITY CLERK           8.00      $1,205.28            1         $1,205

        $1,205     $1,205.28          8.00TYPE SUBTOTAL

        $1,205          8.00TOTALS         $1,205.00



S-122VERIFICATION OF RESIDENCY

REQUEST ResidentCITY CLERK

Certification of a verification of residency on request.

$12.50 per request

$19 per request

    50%

          $12.60

          $37.60

        $(25.00)

             5

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    33.51%

          $(125)

            $188

             $63

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

VERIFICATION OF RESIDENCY S-122

             5

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

CITY CLERK CITY CLERK           0.25         $37.67            5           $188

          $188        $37.67          0.25TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $188          0.25TOTALS            $37.60



S-123NSF CHECK

NSF CHECK Resident/Non-ResidentFINANCE

Processing a check returned for insufficient funds.

$35 per NSF check

$55 per NSF check

   100%

          $35.00

          $55.20

        $(20.20)

             5

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

REVENUE AND COST SUMMARY WORKSHEET

SERVICE REFERENCE NO.

PRIMARY DEPARTMENT UNIT OF SERVICE SERVICE RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

CURRENT FEE STRUCTURE

REVENUE AND COST COMPARISON

UNIT REVENUE:

UNIT COST:

UNIT PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

TOTAL UNITS:

TOTAL REVENUE:

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL PROFIT (SUBSIDY):

PCT. COST RECOVERY:    63.41%

          $(101)

            $276

            $175

SUGGESTED FEE FOR COST RECOVERY OF:

June 28, 2018



June 28, 2018

City of Solana Beach

FY 2017-2018

COST DETAIL WORKSHEET

SERVICE

NSF CHECK S-123

             5

REFERENCE NO.

TOTAL UNITSNOTE

Unit Costs are an Average of Total Units

DEPARTMENT POSITION TYPE UNIT TIME UNIT COST ANN. UNITS TOTAL COST

FINANCE ADMIN ASSISTANT II           0.58         $48.13            5           $241

FINANCE SENIOR ACCOUNTANT 20 Min/Mo           0.01          $1.09            5             $5

FINANCE Bank Charge           0.00          $6.00            5            $30

          $276        $55.22          0.59TYPE SUBTOTAL

          $276          0.59TOTALS            $55.20



THIS PAGE

INTENTIONALLY BLANK
























































































































































































































































































































































	11-28-18 Agenda
	A.1. Minutes
	A.2. List of Demands
	A.3. Budget Updates
	A.4. 800 MHz Radios
	C.1. SEA Update
	B.1. Fire, Park & Public Use Fac. DIFs
	B.2. Schedule of Fees Update
	B.3. Solana 101, Zephyr - 17-14-18
	C.2. Ord 489 - Mayoral Duties
	C.3. Ord. 495 - Shared Mobility 
	C.4. Ord. 497 - Sidewalk Vending
	C.5. Citizen Initiative Pet.- Cannabis
	C.6. Ord. 491 - City Proj. Expiration 



